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The Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory is responsible
for the management, protection and sustainable development of the
Territory’s parks and reserves. The Commission provides high-quality,
unique recreational, cultural, and natural experiences, which enhance
tourism, create greater opportunities for recreation, protect important
natural assets, and deliver economic benefits for the entire Northern
Territory community. The Parks and Wildlife Commission works closely with
a range of stakeholders to facilitate opportunities for development, while
conserving the intrinsic natural and cultural values of the parks estate.
The Commission also oversees the sustainable management of native
wildlife throughout the Northern Territory. The Commission works closely
with the community to ensure ongoing education and appropriate
management of the Territory’s wildlife, through the administration of the
permit system, effective management of pest wildlife, protection of native
populations, and enforcement of illegal activities.

Purpose of the Report
The Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory has achieved
significant outcomes against our environmental, community and visitor goals.
The report focuses on recognising our achievements against our strategic goals
and outcomes, while also acknowledging regional highlights that have resulted
in outcomes for conservation, management, visitor satisfaction, tourism, or
community engagement.
Pursuant to section 28 of the Public Sector Employment and Management
Act, the report aims to inform Parliament, Territorians, and other stakeholders of:
•

The primary functions and responsibilities of the Commission;

•

Significant activities undertaken during the year highlighting specific
achievements against budget outputs; and

•

The Commission’s fiscal management and performance.

•

The Government Business Division, Territory Wildlife Parks, is responsible for
managing the Alice Springs Desert Park and the Territory Wildlife Park. A
separate financial report is prepared for this entity.
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Mrs Bess Nungarrayi Price MLA
Minister for Parks and Wildlife
PO Box 1120
ALICE SPRINGS NT 0871
Dear Minister
I am pleased to present you with the Annual Report of the Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern
Territory for the financial year 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014.
The report provides information regarding the performance and key achievements of the Commission, as
required under section 28 of the Public Sector Employment and Management Act.
With regard to my duties as Accountable Officer, pursuant to section 13 of the Financial Management
Act, and section 131 of the Information Act, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the system of
internal control and audit provide reasonable assurance that:
a)

Proper records of all transactions affecting the Commission are kept and that employees under my
control observe the provisions of the Financial Management Act, its regulations and applicable
Treasurer’s Directions;

b)

Procedures within the Commission afford proper internal control and a current description of
such procedures is recorded in the accounting and property manual which has been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Financial Management Act;

c)

No indication of fraud, malpractice, major breach of legislation or delegation, major error in
omission from the accounts and records exists;

d)

In accordance with section 15 of the Financial Management Act, the results of internal audits
have been reported to me and are in accordance with the Treasurer’s Directions;

e)

the financial statements included in the Annual Report have been prepared from proper accounts
and records and are in accordance with Treasurer’s Directions;

f)

all Employment Instructions issued by the Commissioner for Public Employment have been satisfied;
and

g)

in respect of my responsibility pursuant to section 131 of the Information Act, I advise that to
the best of my knowledge and belief, the Commission has implemented processes to achieve
compliance with the archives and record management provisions as prescribed as part 9 of the
Information Act.

Yours sincerely

ANDREW BRIDGES
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
10 October 2014
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SECTION 1:
OVERVIEW

Our Report
The Parks and Wildlife Commission’s Annual Report provides a comprehensive
overview of the successes and achievements of the Parks and Wildlife Commission
during the 2013-14 financial year. The report aligns with our strategic vision
of ‘connecting people with the Territory’s unique nature and culture’ and our
organisational purposes:
• ‘To deliver high quality and sustainable environmental, cultural and visitor
outcomes for Northern Territory parks, reserves and wildlife’; and
• ‘Strengthen local communities and economies by recognising that
environmental and cultural resources are vital to delivering positive social,
sustainable and economic outcomes’.

Our Stakeholders
The Parks and Wildlife Commission has a diverse range of partners and
stakeholders. This Annual Report aims to inform our stakeholders about our
achievements and future activities. Our stakeholders include, but are not limited
to:
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The wider community,
Recreational groups and organisations,
Commercial operators,
Tour guides and operators,
Wildlife traders, including pet shops,
Wildlife carers,
Schools,
Safari hunters,
Concessionaires and lease holders,
Permit holders,
Tourists,
Traditional owners and joint management partners,
Other government agencies, and

•

Land Councils.
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Message from the CEO
I am pleased to present the annual report of the Parks and Wildlife Commission of
the Northern Territory for the year ending 30 June 2014.
The Parks and Wildlife Commission is responsible for the management, protection
and sustainable development of the Territory’s parks and reserves. The Commission
provides high-quality, unique recreational, cultural, and natural experiences, which
enrich tourism, create opportunities for recreation and protect important natural
assets, including the spectacular West MacDonnell Ranges, Karlu Karlu (Devil’s
Marbles) and the Tabletop Range and spectacular waterfalls at Litchfield National
Park. Our national parks also deliver considerable economic benefits for the entire
Northern Territory community. The Parks and Wildlife Commission works closely
with a range of stakeholders to enhance opportunities for development and
diversification while conserving the intrinsic natural and cultural values of the parks
estate.
The Commission also oversees the sustainable management of native wildlife
populations throughout the Northern Territory. The Commission works closely with
the community to ensure the ongoing education and appropriate management of
the Territory’s wildlife, through the administration of the permit system, effective
management of pest wildlife, protection of protected wildlife, and enforcement of
illegal activities.
This Annual Report provides information on the Parks and Wildlife Commission’s
activities and achievements for the 2013-14 financial year. It is tabled in the
Northern Territory’s Legislative Assembly primarily as an accounting reporting
mechanism for the Commission’s Minister to the Parliament. The Annual Report is
a finalisation of the Commission’s achievements, income and financial expenditure
from the Northern Territory Budget 2013-14.
The Commission recorded strong achievements across a range of activities in
2013-14. In particular, the Commission has focused increasingly on opportunities
to develop innovative programs to enhance the visitor experience on our parks
and reserves. This has translated to increased visitor numbers and satisfaction rates
across our parks and reserves. It is anticipated that the Commission will continue to
achieve significant outcomes and make meaningful contributions to the Northern
Territory in future years as a result of focused community engagement programs
and initiatives, growth and development of commercial opportunities on parks and
reserves, strengthening of relationships with recreation groups, and as parks and
reserves are increasingly opened for local Territorians to use parks and reserves in
new and innovative ways.
We have about 340 employees, who deliver across a range of programs and
services, from on-ground management of fire, weeds and feral animals, through to
active biodiversity conservation initiatives, threatened species recovery programs,
community engagement, tourism and visitor services, wildlife management
activities, and regulation and enforcement of the Territory Parks and Wildlife
Conservation Act. The Commission is made up of some of the most dedicated
and committed staff in the Northern Territory, driven by a passion to contribute
meaningfully to the protection and promotion of our natural environment.
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I thank each of the Commission’s employees for their efforts over the past year
in achieving significant inroads against our strategic goals. It is the ongoing
dedication and commitment of these employees that has resulted in improved
outcomes for biodiversity, conservation and visitor satisfaction.
I look forward to working with my staff and the Commission’s stakeholders in
2014-15, in what I see is an exciting year, aiming to deliver enduring benefits for
our natural environments and all Territorians.

ANDREW BRIDGES
Chief Executive Officer
Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory
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Agency Snapshot

87 parks and
reserves
2.86 million visitors
per annum

More than 5550
permits administered
each year

473 000 km2
of land

341
employees

Over 28 000 people
educated directly through
over 40 organised
community engagement
programs each year

NORTHERN TERRITORY GOVERNMENT

25 office
locations

32 joint
management
parks
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SECTION 2:
ABOUT US

Overview
The Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory oversees the
management of the parks and reserves estate as well as the effective management
of wildlife throughout the Northern Territory. The Commission is committed to
protecting the natural and cultural assets within the parks estate, promoting
conservation and providing exemplary visitor experiences for tourists and local
Territorians.
To achieve this, the Commission invests in on ground management programs
to protect native flora, fauna and habitats from destruction as a result of
inappropriate fire regimes, weeds and feral animals.
The vision of the Commission is to connect people with the unique natural
and cultural values of the Territory. There are clear links between people’s
experiences of nature, feeling connected with nature and becoming advocates for
conservation. Moreover, there are demonstrated health benefits associated with
nature-based recreation.
Therefore, one of the key priorities of the Parks and Wildlife Commission is to
provide opportunities to immerse in nature, experience culture, value our wildlife
and enjoy the serenity of the Northern Territory environment.
Our parks and reserves lie largely within the intact landscape of the Northern
Territory. The Territory environment offers lots of opportunities for effective
conservation efforts. However, the Commission cannot do it alone. The
Commission relies on working with the community and with other agencies and
partners to enhance management and conservation efforts – for the benefit of all
Territorians.
The Commission is made up of 341 employees across nine Divisions, spread widely
throughout the Northern Territory. Each of these Divisions plays a significant role in
ensuring the Commission can deliver on our strategic plan.
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Strategic Objectives
Our Vision
Connecting people with the Territory’s unique nature and culture.

Our Purpose
To deliver high quality and sustainable environmental, cultural and visitor
outcomes for Northern Territory parks, reserves and wildlife.
Strengthen local communities and economies by recognising that
environmental and cultural resources are vital to delivering positive social,
sustainable and economic outcomes.

Our Values
Commitment to Service
Ethical Practice

Respect
Accountability
Impartiality
Diversity

Goal 1: Parks for Wildlife
Strategies:
•

Manage and conserve parks according to their unique natural value.

•

Minimise threats to biodiversity health.

Goal 2: Parks for People
Strategies
•
•
•
•

Expand opportunities for recreation and education in parks and reserves.
Grow sustainable nature and culture-based tourism.
Enhance the quality and safety of the visitor experience.
Protect and care for the natural and cultural assets within parks and reserves.

Goal 3: Strong Partnerships
Strategies:
•
•
•

Develop meaningful opportunities to help care for and invest in our parks and
wildlife.
Build and strengthen relationships with the community.
Strengthen Aboriginal partnerships and improve joint management.
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Goal 4: Living with Wildlife
Strategies:
•
•
•

Promote public responsibility and stewardship for living with wildlife.
Minimise harm from crocodiles.
Deliver effective wildlife management programs.

Goal 5: Our Organisation
Strategies:
•
•
•
•

Inspire and support a collaborative and respectful workplace.
Continue to improve business processes and streamline key internal systems.
Build and enhance strategic leadership and workforce capability and diversity.
Ensure a safe working environment in both office and field operations.

Our Parks and Wildlife Organisational Structure
Andrew Bridges
Chief Executive Officer

Neva McCartney
Director
Northern Australian Parks

Kristen Appel
Director
Wildlife Operations

Chris Day
Director
Central Australian Parks

Amanda Moore
Director
Business Services

Paul Ngala AhChee
Director
Alice Springs Desert Park

Mike Deegan
Director
Technical Services

Shael Martin
Director
Territory Wildlife Park

Mac Moyses
Director
Planning Services

Bryan Harty
Director - George Brown
Darwin Botanic Gardens

* Located in Alice Springs
* located in Darwin

Andrew Bridges
Andrew began his career with the Commission at Uluru-Kata Tjuta National Park
in 1981. Since this time, Andrew has worked extensively throughout the Central
Australian region.
Through his career, Andrew has seen the evolution of protected areas
management from a model that focused on protecting parks from people,
to a model that works with people to protect parks for people. A model that
encompasses social, economic and environmental benefits for local communities,
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including supporting jobs and economic wellbeing, and providing high quality
sustainable experiences that build a love and appreciation of what the natural
world has to offer.
Andrew’s passion is to help connect people with the wonders of the natural world.
Amanda Moore
Amanda has worked in the Northern Territory Public Sector for the past 29 years.
She commenced an Administrative Traineeship in 1985 with the Department of
Transport and Works, transferring within the agency to gain experience across all
areas of business support over the following five years. Amanda then transferred
to the Department of the Chief Minister, working across a range of areas,
including payroll, staff development, human resources management, electoral, the
Chief Minister’s Office and youth affairs.
Amanda commenced with the Parks and Wildlife Commission in June 2000 as the
Manager of Secretariat. Since this time, Amanda has held a number of positions
including, Manager Concessions and Permits, Business Officer Parks North,
Manager Business Administration and Director Business Services.
Amanda has held the role of Director Business Services since November 2012.
Bryan Harty
Bryan has been employed in the Northern Territory Public Sector with the Parks
and Wildlife Commission for the close to three years. Prior to taking on the role
of Director George Brown Darwin Botanic Gardens, Bryan was employed as the
Indigenous Employment Program Coordinator with the agency.
Bryan has a diverse employment background, having worked for Charles Darwin
University (12 years), the Northern Land Council (4 years) and Parks Australia at
Kakadu (2 years) and Booderee Botanic Gardens (1 year). Bryan holds a Bachelor of
Science (Environmental Science), an Associate Diploma of Applied Science (Tropical
Horticulture), Graduate Certificate in Tertiary Teaching, and a Certificate IV in
Training and Assessment. As such, Bryan has extensive knowledge and experience
in protected areas management and Indigenous employment and training.
Bryan has held the role of Director George Brown Darwin Botanic Gardens for the
past year.
Chris Day
Chris began his career with the Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern
Territory in 1981 as a T1 Ranger. Since then, Chris has worked at a number of
parks throughout the Central Australian region, including Alice springs Telegraph
Station Historical Reserve, and remote parks (2 years), Finke Gorge National Park
(7 years), Watarrka National Park (4 years), and Senior District Ranger, and Chief
District Ranger for Central, East and Barkly Parks (5 years), and West District Parks
for 10 years.
In addition to his extensive experience in protected areas management, Chris also
has considerable expertise in joint management, training and development of staff,
visitor management, interpretation, and community engagement.
Chris thrives in the diversity of work provided by the Parks and Wildlife
Commission and believes that he has the best office in the world.
Chris has held the role of Director Central Australian Parks for the past two years.
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Kristen Appel
Kristen Appel has been employed by the Parks and Wildlife Commission for the
past 31 years, having started with the agency as a Trainee Ranger which included a
six month placement at Uluru-Kata Tjuta National Park, when it was still managed
by the Northern Territory Government. Kristen has worked across all regions of the
Northern Territory mainly in Park management, including Watarrka National Park,
Trephina Gorge Nature Park, Arltunga Historical Reserve, Keep River National Park,
Nitmiluk National Park, Litchfield National Park and all of the Darwin Parks.
Kristen has been Director Wildlife Operations for the past two years.
Kristen has been involved in the International Ranger Federation since 1994. She
is also a member of the Northern Territory Ranger Association. The Federation
and associated Ranger Association have played an important role in recognising
the role of Rangers, while enabling Rangers to build professional networks, assist
with professional development and provide social and professional enrichment for
rangers in isolated locations.
Mac Moyses
Mac first arrived in the Territory as a 20 year old when he started a 14 year career
as a Ranger, mainly across the Central Australian region. During this time, he spent
a year working in the South-West National Park in Tasmania on a ranger exchange
program. Mac moved into the Planning Services team in 1999 and has been
Director of Planning Services for the past five years.
Mac has a Bachelor of Applied Science in Wildlife and Park Management and a
Graduate Certificate in Public Sector Leadership.
Mac has a keen interest in planning, management effectiveness and joint
management and brings many years of experience in this area to the Commission.
Mac also has considerable experience and knowledge in park operations planning,
working with complex legislation to achieve organisational objectives, land
administration, strategic planning and policy development.
Mike Deegan
Mike started the Northern Territory Public Sector in 1974 with the Department
of Transport and Works, where he completed an apprenticeship, and over time,
worked his way up within the organisation to hold a number of positions,
including Tradesman, Leading Hand, Procurement Officer, Plant Inspector,
Workplace Supervisor, and Senior Plant Inspector. Mike later moved to the
Department of Police, Fire and Emergency Services as a Senior Mechanic before
joining the Parks and Wildlife Commission in 1989, where he has held a number
of positions, including Technical Officer Fleet and Radio, Manager Fleet and Repairs
and Maintenance, and Manager Technical Services. Mike has been a member of
the Leadership Team since 2006 and Director Technical Services for the past two
years.
Mike brings vast knowledge to the organisation in terms of asset acquisition and
management, contract management, procurement procedures, infrastructure
maintenance, and budget planning and prioritisation. Mike’s experience, acquired
over many years, is also a significant asset to the Commission.
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Neva McCartney
Neva commenced employment with the Northern Territory Public Sector in 1994
with the Conservation Commission of the Northern Territory. Neva spent 12 years
in the Katherine region with the Parks and Wildlife Commission before moving
to Darwin in 2006 to pursue a career in natural resource management and policy
development in other divisions of the former Department. Neva returned to the
Parks and Wildlife Commission in 2011 as Director Park Operations.
Neva has qualifications in park management and has extensive knowledge and
experience across a range of areas, including policy design and implementation,
natural resource management, business management, contract management and
Government processes. Neva graduated with a Masters in Public Administration in
2013.
Neva has been employed in the role of Director Northern Australian Parks for the
past two years.
Paul Ngala Ah Chee
Paul grew up in Alice Springs, where he is well-known as a musician and business
man, who specialises in cultural tourism and management. Paul has skills across a
broad range of areas, which is demonstrated in the wide range of roles that he has
played over many years.
Paul has played a key role in the development of cultural tourism in Central
Australia and has also worked with ‘Enterprise Connect’, an initiative driven by the
Commonwealth Department of Innovation, Industry, Science and Research, which
provided specialist knowledge to businesses to drive productivity and success. Paul
has also held positions on the boards of the South Australian Museum and the
Australian Tourist Commission over many years.
Paul took on the role of Director of the Alice Springs Desert Park in 2012. His
extensive networks throughout the Northern Territory, and knowledge and
leadership in cultural understanding and appreciation are significant assets to the
Parks and Wildlife Commission.
Shael Martin
Shael has worked with the NT Public Sector intermittently since 1994. She has
worked across a number of different agencies including the Department of
Transport and Works, the Power and Water Corporation, the Parks and Wildlife
Commission of the Northern Territory, the Department of Infrastructure, Planning
and Environment, the Department of Natural Resources, Environment, the Arts
and Sport, and at the Office of the Commissioner for Public Employment. Shael
returned to the Parks and Wildlife Commission again in 2012.
Shael has a strong background in human resources management, community
development planning, and social development, gained through her considerable
experience across a broad range of roles within in the Northern Territory, as well
as through completion of a Bachelor of Psychology and Masters in Development
Management.
Shael has been Director Territory Wildlife Park since October 2012.
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Our D-ivisions
The Parks and Wildlife Commission is made up of nine business divisions,
including Northern Australian Parks, Central Australian Parks, Planning Services,
Technical Services, Business Services, Wildlife Operations, the George Brown
Darwin Botanic Gardens, the Territory Wildlife Park, and the Alice Springs Desert
Park. Each of these units is individually and collectively responsible for delivering
to the Commission’s strategic goals and in ensuring the delivery of high quality
environmental, cultural, tourism and visitor services.
Northern Australian Parks
The Northern Australian Parks Division is responsible for overseeing the
management and protection of the parks estate in the northern region, including
Katherine. This Division undertakes the strategic management of feral animals,
fire and weeds across the parks estate, promotes visitor activities on our parks and
undertakes biodiversity monitoring programs in partnership with scientists from
the Department of Land Resource Management.
Central Australian Parks
The Central Australian Parks Division is responsible for overseeing the management
and protection of the parks estate in the southern region, including the Barkly
District. The Division implements on-ground management programs for fire, weeds
and feral animals, visitor management and biodiversity surveys to enhance the
natural, recreational, cultural and tourism values of our parks and reserves. Central
Australian Parks staff works with traditional owners to deliver joint management
programs at joint managed parks across the region.
Also included in this division are the teams that oversee Park Interpretation,
Community Engagement, Tourism Development, and Training and Partnerships.
These units assist the Commission to effectively manage the parks estate
throughout the Northern Territory, with the view to improving visitor experiences,
promoting tourism opportunities and experiences, working with training partners,
and successfully engaging the local community through education and events.
They are also responsible for developing new and emerging opportunities to
enhance the visitor experience on parks and reserves.
Planning Services
The Planning Services Division provides professional advice, support, and services
for the Commission. This Division develops the Commission’s production capability,
with care and responsibility for park planning and policy, land administration,
spatial data management, performance monitoring and reporting and supporting
major programs such as joint management, at the policy level. Through planning
teams and collaboration with other Divisions, Planning Services also adds value to
the forward works program. To be effective, Planning Services focus on positive
internal and external relationships, and aim especially to give excellent service and
support to operational staff.

Nitmiluk National Park
Plan of Management July 2014

Photo courtesy of Tourism NT
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Wildlife Operations
The Wildlife Operations Division deals with human-wildlife interactions throughout
the Territory in balance with protecting our wildlife. This ranges from crocodile
management for public safety, enabling the community to care for wildlife through
rehabilitation or as pets and the provision of advice and management of native
pest animals. In particular, the Division is responsible for providing opportunities for
community participation in wildlife-related programs and opportunities, enhancing
community awareness for wildlife management practices, providing advice and
education to the community and stakeholders, protecting public safety through
delivering the problem crocodile management program consistently, and working
with partners and the community to achieve our goals.
The Division takes a lead role in improving the legislation and regulations to reflect
current and future wildlife practises and our operational needs which will lead to
efficiencies by reducing the administration burden of the current permit system
and improve service to the community.
Business Services
The Business Services Division leads and manages the Commission’s business,
financial, human resource, legal services, secretariat, permits and concessions, and
overseeing the function of boards and committee services across the Northern
Territory. The Division is responsible for providing strategic and operational advice
to the Executive Leadership Team and Senior Managers in the development and
implementation of policies and procedures that support and facilitate the delivery
of these programs whilst ensuring good governance systems are implemented and
maintained.
Technical Services
The Technical Services Division manages the development and delivery of the
Commission’s capital works and repairs and maintenance programs, oversees
fleet management and staff housing requirements, and monitors and reports on
portable and attractive assets. This small team delivers projects using evidence
based decision making processes that support delivery and development of
effective asset management for the agency. Where necessary, this Division
facilitates effective negotiations that will enhance the likelihood of developing
appropriate and cost efficient projects, within a tight financial framework.
George Brown Darwin Botanic Gardens
The Gardens provide an educational opportunity for visitors to view unique
collections of local and exotic plant including palms, cycads and boabs. The living
collection includes species that are uncommon or threatened in their original
habitat. The location of the Gardens in close proximity to Darwin city means that
the site also provides an important recreational location for tourists and local
people to enjoy. The Gardens supports tourism by attracting and encouraging
visitors to extend their stay. The Gardens also provide a site for a number of
significant social and cultural events such as the Darwin Festival, Tropical Garden
Spectacular and many private functions such as weddings.
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Territory Wildlife Park
The Territory Wildlife Park aims to provide a quality experience to visitors through
presentation of flora and fauna in a variety of Top End habitats and ecosystems.
Specifically, the Park works to connect visitors with nature through authentic
encounters and exciting experiences. The Park delivers high quality education
programs for visitors to the Park and develops and promotes conservation
strategies and initiatives to influence responsible community behaviour towards
the Territory environment, inspiring change and long-term action by developing
environmental awareness. The Territory Wildlife Park has a particular goal of
continuing to develop programs to promote conservation of threatened species
and plays a central role in facilitating and advocating conservation research
programs in Northern Australia.
Alice Springs Desert Park
The Alice Springs Desert Park plays a key role in showcasing the exceptional
diversity of Central Australia’s unique flora and fauna. These facilities provide
opportunities for the community and tourists to interact with flora and fauna in a
natural setting that is educational, interactive and inspiring for the visiting public.
In addition to the significant role the Park plays in education and awarenessraising, the Park also presents its exhibits and presentations with interpretation
that entwines the significance of Indigenous culture to this region. The Park also
provides invaluable conservation outcomes through specialised breeding programs
and cooperative research projects. The Park provides an exceptional recreational
and tourist experience and promotes visitor understanding, respect and enjoyment
of the Territory’s natural environment.
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Agency Highlights
The Parks and Wildlife Commission’s Strategic Plan 2013-16 identifies a series
of strategies to ensure the protection of parks and reserves, while expanding
opportunities for tourism and recreation in parks and reserves. The Commission
recognises that these strategies can only be effective if undertaken in partnership
with stakeholders, joint management partners and the wider community.
The strategic plan identifies five overarching goals of the Parks and Wildlife
Commission.
Parks for Wildlife
The underlying strategies recognise that parks should be managed to ensure
the conservation and protection of native wildlife, communities and habitats.
These strategies require that the Commission implement effective processes
for conservation planning and holistic management approaches to enhance
biodiversity health.
Parks for People
The Commission recognises that parks and reserves should be open and accessible
to the community. The Commission’s strategies seek to identify and develop quality
commercial, recreational and volunteer experiences for visitors to our parks and
reserves. The Commission recognises the importance of community input into
management and decision making at a number of levels, with benefits for both
parks and community stewardship.
Strong Partnerships
The Commission recognises that our stakeholders play a fundamental role in
the success of the agency. The strategic vision of the Commission is to develop
meaningful opportunities for our partners to have active involvement in their
parks and reserves, to be provided with opportunities to interact with and care for
wildlife, and to be involved in decision making and planning with respect to parks
and reserves. Over one third of our parks and reserves are managed under a joint
management arrangement. As such, the Commission works closely with our joint
management partners, who play a vital role in decision making on our parks and
reserves.
Living with Wildlife
The Commission aims to increase community awareness of the important role
that wildlife plays in maintaining the natural environment. The Commission
is therefore actively involved in encouraging the community to interact with
wildlife appropriately and in accordance with the Territory Parks and Wildlife
Conservation Act.
Our Organisation
The Parks and Wildlife Commission employees are driven, resourceful, motivated
and passionate about their work and the important role they play in sustaining the
natural environment. The organisation’s strategies support, inspire and develop the
capability and diversity of our workforce, both now and into the future.
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Key Achievements 2013-14
The Parks and Wildlife Commission recognises that to fully appreciate our
achievements, we must link these with our strategic goals and priorities.

Goal 1: Parks for Wildlife
Manage and conserve parks
according to their unique
natural value.

Added Woodgreen Conservation Reserve under
the Commission’s care control and management
(1000 km2).
Assisted the Department of Land and Resource
Management to undertake surveys to improve
knowledge about small mammal decline across
the Top End (Charles Darwin National Park,
Holmes Jungle and Casuarina Coastal Reserve).
In collaboration with the scientists from the
Department of Land Resource Management,
the Commission conducted surveys to assess
biodiversity values within Central Australian
Parks as part of the exiting five-year Central
Australian survey program.
Commenced development of ‘Integrated
Conservation Strategies’ for the Territory’s
highest biodiversity parks to identify the key
biodiversity values with measurable targets
within five and ten year timeframes.
Began development of Park Report Cards for
our 15 most valuable parks for presentation
early in 2014-15. The Report Cards will
inform the Commission and the public about
the effectiveness of visitor and conservation
programs and inform adaptive management that
improves continuously over time.

Minimise threats to
biodiversity health.

Established a conservation program for the
endangered local plant species, Helicteres
macrothrix at the George Brown Darwin Botanic
Gardens.
Located and protected nine Flatback Sea Turtle
nests in Darwin Parks.
Provided support for ongoing weed
management on Bremer Island in East Arnhem
land to enhance the biodiversity health of the
Dhimurru Indigenous Protected Area.

20

NORTHERN TERRITORY GOVERNMENT

Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory

Annual Report 2013-14

Partnered with researchers (Territory Wildlife
Park) to enhance quoll survival by ‘teaching’
quolls to avoid cane toads, leading to improved
conservation in the wild.
Collaborated with Northern Environmental
Research Program and Charles Darwin University
(TWP) to improve knowledge of the survivorship
of threatened elasmobranchs (sharks and rays)
following rehabilitation and release into the wild.
Collaborated with the Northern Environmental
Research Program, Charles Darwin University,
Australian Wildlife Conservancy and the
University of Tasmania to reduce the current rate
of small mammal decline in northern Australia
by better understanding the response of prey
species to predators (feral cats).
In collaboration with partners, conducted
strategic pest animal management programs
across multiple land tenures in the central
Australia region, including six programs for
camel management; four programs to contribute
to the Red Centre Biodiversity Fund Project;
and one shoot in partnership with the Central
Land Council for pest animal management on
Indigenous land.

Goal 2: Parks for People
Expand opportunities for
recreation and education in
parks and reserves.

Invested $150 000 in the development of a
network of mountain bike tracks at the Alice
Springs Telegraph Station Historic Reserve,
consisting of approximately 28 kilometres of trail
(four connected loops, of three, four, eight and
11 kilometres).
Provided $200 000 for the ongoing
management of the Olive Pink Botanic Garden
to ensure the protection and preservation
of threatened, rare, endemic and culturally
significant central Australian plant species.
Delivered a ‘reinvigorated’ Junior Ranger
Program to 80 children and their families, which
presents hands-on environmental education to
improve knowledge and awareness, while also
promoting ownership about parks, reserves and
wildlife.
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Participated in and coordinated a variety of
events, including information stalls, community
activities on parks, presentations and exhibitions
for a total of 20 379 visitors, including over 2000
participants during Parks Week celebrations and
over 9000 during the show circuit. In addition,
the Unit gave presentations at 71 schools to over
4232 children. Overall, it is estimated that over
28 000 people were exposed to park messages
through community engagement activities in
2013-14.
The Territory Wildlife Park partnered with the
University of Queensland to improve the delivery
of environmental messages to achieve paradigm
shifts that ultimately results in behavioural
change, to enhance conservation efforts.
Grow sustainable nature
and culture-based tourism.

Initiated the development of a Tourism and
Recreation Master Plan in collaboration with
Tourism NT and Department of Business with a
series of community and stakeholders workshops
to help set the direction of visitor management
and tourism development into the future.
Successfully completed renovations of the
Wesleyan Church in preparation for the opening
of Eva’s Café, which provides a new opportunity
for visitors to enjoy the George Brown Darwin
Botanic Gardens.
Restored and re-opened the 197 kilometre
Broadarrow Track (4WD) in Judbarra/Gregory
National Park following a five year closure.
Entered into new contracts for operation of
the Munbililla campground (Limmen National
Park), Ormiston Gorge (West MacDonnell
National Park) and the Alice Springs Telegraph
Station, demonstrating the significant value
parks can provide to the local economy through
employment.
Finalised leases to World Expeditions for two
exclusive tented campsites on the Larapinta Trail,
and constructed a further two camp site shelter
facilities which were funded through the minor
new works program.
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Coordinated the Green Hill Island Turtle Surveys
through the Conservation Volunteers Australia
voluntourism program, which saw 25 nesting
Flatback turtles tagged for ongoing monitoring.
Enhance the quality
and safety of the visitor
experience.

In consultation with stakeholders, successfully
implemented the Kings Canyon Rim Walk Heat
Strategy which significantly reduced heat related
risks to visitor safety at Watarrka National Park.
Realigned the goals of the Territory Wildlife
Park and increasing its relevance to the local
community, through the implementation of
innovative programs and approaches. This has
included opening new, or refreshing existing
exhibits and introducing innovative engagement
and educational programs. These efforts have
resulted in an increase in visitor numbers to the
Territory Wildlife Park of 7.4 per cent from
2012-13.
Undertook large scale remediation of areas
within the George Brown Darwin Botanic
Gardens that are contaminated with asbestos
material to ensure the safety of visitors and
employees.
In partnership with the NT Police, conducted an
intensive community safety program over the
Easter long weekend to address and remove
anti-social behaviour from high visitation areas of
Litchfield National Park.
Funded over $870 000 through the minor new
works program to enhance visitor safety in parks
and reserves, including remediation of asbestos,
upgrading pathways and walking tracks,
installation of emergency communications, and
the installation of stairs along walking tracks.
Upgraded and reprinted the Parks Guide and
made the guide available to the public digitally
through the website.

Grow sustainable nature
and culture-based tourism.

NORTHERN TERRITORY GOVERNMENT

Funded $47 000 in signage to improve
interpretation along the Larapinta Trail to reflect
the cultural values of the Trail and inform the
community about the importance of the area for
the local Arrernte people.
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Undertook cooperative on ground work with
Western Desert Resources for fire, weeds and
feral animal management to minimise threats
to biodiversity and cultural sites throughout the
Gulf District, including Limmen National Park.

Goal 3: Strong Partnerships
Develop meaningful
opportunities to help care
for and invest in our parks
and wildlife.

Continued to utilise the skills and capacity
of local Landcare groups, friends groups and
community organisations (Casuarina Coastal
Reserve Landcare Group, the Larrakia Rangers
and Conservation Volunteers Australia) to
deliver projects to protect biodiversity values or
improving our knowledge of parks and reserves.
Played an integral role in supporting the Friends
of the Larapinta Trail, resulting in the cultivation
of an important partnership between the two
organisations. This partnership has resulted in
improved maintenance and management of the
trail through weed management and restoration
of infrastructure as well as coordination of fund
raising and donations – all of which will have
significant ongoing benefits for park visitors and
the local community.
Provided $50 000 in grants to fund wildlife care
and rescue activities for injured and orphaned
wildlife throughout the Northern Territory,
including a phone service to provide advice to
the public.
Continued to participate in the Biodiversity
Matters program, which aims to educate and
engage Alice Springs community members in
biodiversity conversation activities in central
Australia.

Build and strengthen
relationships with the
community.

Signed a Memorandum of Understanding with
NT Field and Game to increase use and enhance
management of Top End parks, while also
enabling NT Field and Game members to camp
within hunting reserves for the first time.
Provided $165 000 for Land for Wildlife
Programs in Alice Springs to promote community
knowledge and awareness about the importance
of landscape connectivity for the conservation of
native flora and fauna.
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Developed a partnership with the Sporting
Shooters Association Conservation Pest
Management Branch to conduct feral animal
management on Adelaide and Mary River Parks.
Strengthen Aboriginal
partnerships and improve
Joint Management.

Provided $1.53 million for lease payments to
Aboriginal Lands Trusts for Aboriginal owned,
jointly managed parks for the benefit of
Indigenous people in regional and remote areas.
Provided $490 000 to the Central Land Council
and the Northern Land Council to support joint
management of parks and reserves throughout
the Northern Territory.
Finalised the Parks and Wildlife Commission
Indigenous Employment Strategy, which sets
the Commission’s priorities with respect to
Indigenous Employment over the next three
years.
Formed a Joint Management Steering
Committee, made up of representatives from
the Commission, the Northern Land Council and
the Central Land Council to focus on improving
joint management, with a view to improving
outcomes for Traditional Owners and the wider
community.

Goal 4: Living with Wildlife
Promote public
responsibility and
stewardship for living
with wildlife.

Issued over 5500 permits across a range of areas,
including 411 permits for pig hunting, 2070
permits for waterfowl hunting, 161 permits
wildlife permits, 456 by-law permits, and 1237
permits to keep native wildlife.
The Territory Wildlife Park provided expert advice
and assistance with the production of a variety
of television productions to raise community
awareness, including three episodes of
‘Monsterfish’, a National Geographic production
based on the world’s largest freshwater fish
species, a BBC wildlife documentary series about
ghost bats, a documentary series on Combcrested Jacanas, and wildlife documentary series
on Australia’s most dangerous animals.
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Conducted seven sea turtle conservation talks
at Casuarina Coastal Reserve between October
and March, releasing 287 sea turtle hatchlings
and educating over 1160 members of the
community.
Conducted community consultation to develop
a series of wildlife carer guidelines to better
educate and inform wildlife carers on the most
up-to-date techniques and information relating
to the care, rehabilitation and release of injured
and orphaned wildlife.
Conducted 64 investigations following
allegations against the Territory Parks
and Wildlife Conservation Act, including
prosecution for illegally keeping protected
wildlife (1), interference with crocodile traps (2),
shooting or killing of crocodiles (4) and illegally
taking crocodile eggs (1).
Conducted approximately 30 fauna inspections,
issued 57 infringement notices (by-law offences)
and attended approximately 130 callouts for the
rescue and rehabilitation of wildlife throughout
the Darwin region.
Minimise harm from
crocodiles.

Provided $410 000 for the proactive
management of Saltwater Crocodiles across the
Top End, including Darwin Harbour, increasing
community safety in and around our waterways,
which saw the removal of 273 crocodiles.
Reviewed the Be Crocwise education and
engagement program to assess its effectiveness
and to identify new and innovative opportunities
to raise community awareness about the dangers
posed by crocodiles.
Issued permits for the management of 60
problem crocodiles on private land to reduce
impacts on pastoral productivity or to protect
public safety.
Collaborated with the Department of Land
Resource Management to conduct annual
crocodile surveys (Adelaide River, Daly/Katherine
River and Mary River) for both saltwater and
freshwater crocodiles to comply with the NT
Crocodile Management Plan.
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Provided advice, training and assistance to
Timor Leste and the Solomon Islands in the
management of Saltwater Crocodiles.
Deliver effective wildlife
management programs.

Funded $177 500 for 24 hour per day, seven
day per week snake call-out services in Darwin,
Katherine and Alice Springs to protect the public
in and around residential properties.
Assisted pastoralists to conduct wild dog
management programs across 44 properties
throughout the Northern Territory.
Partnered with Laynhapuy Ranger Association to
conduct a feral pig management program in the
Indigenous Protected Area.
Worked with the wider community in the Darwin
CBD to prevent the establishment and spread of
feral sparrow populations.
Partnered with the City of Darwin Council,
Litchfield Council and the Alice Springs Town
Council to effectively manage feral dogs within
the town municipal boundary.

NORTHERN TERRITORY GOVERNMENT

Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory

Annual Report 2013-14

27

Regional Highlights
Casuarina Coastal Reserve
•
Provided a total of $376 000 in funding to upgrade existing tracks throughout
the Reserve to improve visitor experience and safety, and better accommodate
disabled visitors to Lee Point.
•
Identified, effectively protected and facilitated the release of hatchlings from
the first Olive Ridley Turtle nest in Casuarina Coastal Reserve since 2008.
•
Partnered with the Department of Land Resource Management to assist in the
rescue and survival of several turtles and dugongs.
•
Participated in the 2012 Darwin Harbour Clean-Up Day, which saw four
tonnes of rubbish removed from Darwin Harbour’s coastlines and waters.
•
Provided thousands of Territorians with an opportunity to celebrate Territory
Day safely and comfortably.
•
In collaboration with partners, facilitated reintroduction of the Atlas Moth into
Casuarina Coastal Reserve as part of the ‘Corridors of Green’ project.
Howard Springs Nature Park
•
Doubled visitation to Howard Springs Nature Park (139 055 visitors), including
more than 4000 visitors over the Easter long weekend.
•
Erected shade and child safety structures around water play areas at Howard
Springs Nature Park to enhance the visitor experience and improve the safety
of children and toddlers in line with community requests.
•
Released the Howard Springs Nature Park Draft Plan of Management for
public comment, to ensure that management continues to maintain the
cultural and natural values of the Park in line with visitor experiences and
community expectations.
•
Relocated five barramundi from a private lagoon in Darwin to the main pool,
to enhance the visitor experience and to ensure the survival of the fish.
Charles Darwin National Park
•
Used as location for the award-winning feature Cannes festival film, ‘Charlie’s
Country’.
Berry Springs Nature Park
•
Collaborated with Junior Rangers to instigate an extensive landscaping
program to improve the amenity and use of the Berry Springs carpark.
Garig Gunak Barlu National Park
•
Celebrated the 40th anniversary of Cobourg’s declaration as the first Ramsar
site in the world.
•
Discovered a large, rare land crab Cardisoma carnifex, that has never been
observed at Garig Gunak Barlu National Park before, and was last observed in
the Northern Territory in 1985.
•
Located two new nesting populations of Olive Ridley Turtles.
•
Removed four ghost nets from within the Marine Park, which pose a
significant threat to native populations of turtles, dugong, fish and other
marine wildlife.
•
Identified, tagged and tracked four False Killer Whales off the Cobourg
coastline – the first ever tagged in Australia.
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Litchfield National Park
•
Awarded a TripAdvisor Certificate of Excellence (2013 and 2014) as a result of
extremely high and consistent visitor satisfaction ratings.
•
Commenced work on new toilet and change room facilities at Buley Rockhole
to enhance the visitor experience and to better meet with visitor demand.
•
Recognised Buley Rockhole as one of the top ten natural waterholes in the
world by TripAdvisor.
•
Worked with the Finniss and Reynolds River Catchment Group to manage
Mimosa pigra and aerial control of feral animals on the Reynolds River.
•
Assisted Charles Darwin University and the Department of Land Resource
Management to implement aerial surveys of Gamba Grass to inform
management decisions.
•
Conducted biodiversity surveys in partnership with NT Field Naturalists.
•
Upgraded interpretive signage on the Shady Creek Walk at Florence Falls to
enhance the visitor experience.
Adelaide River Parks
•
Released the Adelaide River Conservation Reserves Draft Joint Management
Plan to public comment.
•
Partnered with Charles Darwin University to deliver training and park
management experience to Certificate IV Conservation and Land
Management students at Fogg Dam Conservation Reserve and Litchfield
National Park.
•
Worked with the Daly/Moyle River Catchment Group and Natural Resource
Management to manage Mimosa pigra at the Stray Creek Conservation
Reserve.
•
Assisted the University of Sydney researchers to conduct ongoing Cane Toad
research at Fogg Dam Conservation Reserve.
Mary River National Park
•
Assisted with ongoing research of Freshwater Crocodile population dynamics
of the McKinlay River with Wildlife Management International.
•
Conducted research with Wollongong University on Hydro-Geomorphology
and paleo-sedimentation at Litchfield National Park, the Adelaide River parks
and Mary River National Park.
•
Partnered with James Cook University to conduct research on methane release
of wetlands for climate change.
•
Continued to deliver environmental education to hundreds of school children
through the Environmental Campground initiative.
Nitmiluk National Park
•
Completed the construction of a pedestrian bridge at Leliyn and realigned the
existing Leliyn Loop walking track to improve the visitor experience, improve
visitor safety and allow for unobstructed views of Edith Falls and the Plunge
Pool.
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•

•
•
•

Conducted a rigorous survey of endangered Gouldian Finch populations in
habitats adjacent to Leliyn Falls to assess changes to population size and
structure over time.
Implemented an aerial control program to manage pest animal populations, in
particular buffalo, following several years without management.
Located and registered a new sacred site at Leliyn Falls to ensure the ongoing
protection of the cultural values of the Park and the local traditional owners.
Released the Nitmiluk National Park Draft Plan of Management for public
comment, which aims to ensure the park continues to protect significant
natural, cultural and biodiversity values, while opening the Park to new and
innovative visitor experiences.

Elsey National Park
•
Installed new bridges on the River Side Walk, including stone pitching and
steps in accordance with the Elsey Walking Track Strategy (2013-18). This
work will reduce the need for ongoing maintenance and facilitate rapid
reinstatement of the walking trail after wet season flooding.
•
Continued to control Bellyache bush to maintain low density recruitment of
new plants within the Park, with benefits for biodiversity. The Park Rangers
have been working with local Indigenous Ranger Groups on adjoining
Northern Land Council managed land to enhance program outcomes and
ensure the protection of biodiversity on adjacent sites.
•
Hosted a production crew from the BBC Natural History Unit to film predation
of Little Red Flying-fox by Freshwater Crocodiles for a new series (‘Monsoon’).
Limmen National Park
•
Invested $352 000 to install a new solar power system at the Nathan River
Ranger Station, reducing greenhouse emissions and running costs for the
benefit of the local environment.
•
Successfully tendered for a concessionaire to operate the Munbililla
campground.
•
Released the Limmen National Park Public Discussion Paper for public
comment to encourage the community to have active participation in, and
contribution to, the strategic direction of the Park into the future.
•
Visitor display designed and produced for Nathan River Visitor Centre in
Limmen National Park.
Barranyi National Park
•
Organised six crocodile management activities, significantly contributing to
safety of the community and surrounding areas.
•
Reinforced the Be Crocwise message to the local community at the
Borroloola Show Parks and Wildlife stand, as well as through the replacement
of old and damaged crocodile management signs in the area.
•
Successfully entered into a host agreement with the Commonwealth
Government for ‘Remote Jobs and Community Program’ workers to
participate in on ground works associated with walking track maintenance;
including clearing vegetation, constructing stone steps, paving, erosion
and drainage control and painting at Caranbirini Conservation Reserve and
Barranyi National Park.
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Judbarra / Gregory National Park
•
Repairs and maintenance upgrade to orientation signage across Judbarra/
Gregory National Park, including new interpretation signage on the
Nawilbinbin walking track at Joe Creek on the Victoria Highway.
•
Removed 467 cattle from the park.
•
Installed a new toilet at Big Horse Campground.
•
Carried out a fauna survey at Kaiser Yards near Gregory’s Pillar.
•
Purchased ‘raindance machine’ for aerial incendiary burning.

Welcome to Karlu Karlu Campground

Karlu Karlu has been a meeting place for many hundreds of generations.
We welcome you as visitors to our country. As you enjoy your visit, please
respect this sacred site
and help keep it open for the generations to come. Follow the guidelines
below the map to look after yourself and this place.
“Ngalanya manu ngini Warumungu, Kaytetye, Alyawarr, Warlpiri
kari. Kurtu apijirra angkinyi munu kina. Yingal mana.”
(This country belongs to the Warumungu, Kaytetye, Alyawarr
and Warlpiri people. Welcome to our country. Don't be afraid.)

Traditional Owners and Parks and Wildlife
Commission of the NT Working Together

To Tennant Creek 100 km

way

INSET

Karlu Karlu
Campground

High

Keep River National Park
•
Completed the installation of a solar system to power the Keep River Ranger
Station.
•
Constructed fire and weed spray units with a pick-up/drop off facility.
•
Rehabilitated the main park roads after a long wet season which caused
extensive damage.
•
Reinstated park boundary fencing to control feral animals.

Sand Monitor
Veranus gouldii
warlkan

Karlu Karlu
Day use area

Karlu Karlu
Day use area

Central Netted Dragon
Ctenophorus nuchalis
lakapurra

Desert Tree Frog
Litora rubella

Karlu Karlu
Campground

ngalarranki

Alice Springs Telegraph Station Historical Reserve
•
Opened a new network of mountain bike trails (beginners, intermediate)
connecting the Reserve with bike paths into the centre of Alice Springs.
•
Contributed to the successful Mbantua Festival at the Alice Springs Telegraph
Station in cooperation with the Department of the Chief Minister, the
Department of Correctional Services, the Department of Transport and the
Arrulka Business Corporation. The picnic and function areas also hosted a
number of smaller concerts and functions enhancing the reputation of the site
as a public entertainment and function venue.

Unsealed Road

art

Walking Track

Stu

“The four outer circles represent the
four traditional groups of Karlu Karlu Warumungu on the northern side, Alyawarra
on the eastern side, Kaytetye on the southern
side, and Warlpiri on the western side.

which is the only fruit found in Karlu Karlu.
The bush tucker painted along the edges
is found on the outskirts of Karlu Karlu.

PK(2012)-DKC1

Parking Area

Short Walk

Information

Picnic Area

Toilets

Picnic Shelter

Cars/Tents

Communal Firepit

Caravans

Dogs on leads

Please Remember

“The footprints represent the four traditional
groups walking into Karlu Karlu. The main
people who stayed at Karlu Karlu in the
Dreamtime were the Alyawarra people.
The other tribes came in later, all sharing
their culture amongst each other. However
the Alyawarra then left and moved to the
east. The other three tribes remained and
the Alyawarra people come back to visit.”

“The centre circle represents Karlu Karlu.
Caustic Vine
Sarcostemma australe
ngamuna ngamuna

A Sacred Site

Pets

This area is a registered sacred site and
all natural and cultural items are protected
by law. Do not damage or remove any flora,
fauna, rocks or artefacts.
The Traditional Owners request that visitors respect
this sacred landscape and do not climb on the Boulders.

For Your Safety
Carry and drink plenty of water
Wear sunscreen and protective clothing

Avoid walking during the heat of the day
Be aware that snakes and other animals
live amongst the Karlu (boulders).
Please keep to the established walking
tracks and watch where you are walking.

Help Keep our Wildlife Wild

Dogs are permitted on a lead in the day use area
carpark only. Please clean up after your dog.

Feeding animals can turn them into a nuisance and make them sick.
Dingoes can become dangerous when fed.
Keep food secure and do not leave out any scraps.

Campground Use

Photography

Camping is allowed in the designated area beyond
this sign only. Tents or campervans are welcome
on this side of the fence.
Please pay your camping fee here.
Generators are not permitted.

Photography is allowed for personal use only. Any other use of photos
or video requires a permit. For more information phone Parks and
Wildlife
Commission of the NT on (08) 8951 8250.
Some areas should not be photographed for cultural reasons.
Please adhere to all signs.

If the campground is full, commercial camping is available
at Tennant Creek, Wauchope or Wycliff Well.
Fires are permitted in the communal fire pits. Please collect
firewood outside of the Reserve.
Bins are not provided, please take your rubbish with you.
Alcohol is not permitted among the Boulders.
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Traditional Owners and Parks and Wildlife
Commission of the NT Working Together

The Traditional Way

c 2008
Karlu Karlu by S.Braedon, O

For the Upper Southern Arrernte people, the place you see
before you is known as Wurre, a bushtucker dreaming site
and an important ceremony place. Charcoal, grindstones and
rock art that date back thousands of years remind us that after
plentiful rain, people have always met and camped here.

Please look after this place and yourselves

• Please don’t walk on the claypan or climb on Wurre formations.
• Respect our land and culture

Walks to Enjoy
There are two short walks to enjoy within the Reserve and overnight
visitors can enjoy sunset views from the various viewing platforms
shown on the map.
Unsealed Road

From this campground it is a 350 metre walk (10 minutes one way)
to the
Rainbow Valley picnic area and information shelter, where both of the
following
walks begin.There is a viewing platform at the top of the sand dune
which is
perfect for sunset photography.

Walking Tracks
To
Stuart Highway
22 km

Claypans
Park Boundary
Parking Area
Information
Toilets
Camping

Picnic Facilities

Claypan Walk

Gas BBQ
Fireplaces

Time: 1 hour

Short Walks

Bush
Campground

Camping Code

and serenity of the Reserve.

• Keep noise to a minimum.
• No off road driving.
• Pets are not permitted.

Camping Fees

Campfire

Drinking Water

Please pay your camp fees by
filling out your details on the
envelope provided in the camp fee
box adjacent to this shelter.

• Light fires only in the communal
firepits provided.

There is no drinking water
provided in this campground or
along the walking tracks. Ensure
you have adequate drinking
water with you before setting out.

• All firewood must be collected
outside the Reserve.

Rainbow Valley
Campground

Grade 2: Easy
This walk takes visitors to Mushroom Rock,
an arch shaped formation eroded over time
by wind and water. Look out for the mud
nests of Fairy Martins welded to the
sandstone overhangs.

Even for short walks and mild
conditions walkers are advised to
carry and drink plenty of water.

Use sunscreen. Sunburn can
lead to severe dehydration.

Wear sturdy footwear and
loose fitting clothing that gives
maximum sun protection.

Avoid strenuous activity in the
heat of the day. Avoid walking
alone and always notify a
reliable person of your route
and intended time of return.

Wear a shady hat.

Mushroom Rock

• Remember, trees grow slowly in
the arid zone and wood is
precious, small campfires will
help to conserve it.

KC-0213-RVC1

Distance: 1 km return
Time: 45 minutes

Grade 2: Easy
This walking track meanders along the edge of
the mostly dry claypans that transform into
shallow reflective pools for short periods after
rain. There are several viewing platforms along
the way that provide the best views of Rainbow
Valley. Look out for Samphire, a succulent plant
unique to arid deserts of Australia.

Be Prepared When Walking

• Respect other campers who are
here to experience the peace
• Generators are not permitted.

Rainbow Valley Traditional Owners

Mushroom Rock Loop Walk

Distance: 1.6 km return

Lookouts

Caravan and Trailer

It’s an important place for family to visit and camp
and to teach kids about that place and looking after country...
When we look at the land, it’s part of us not just a pretty sight. It’s about keeping country alive
for future generations.

Rainbow Valley Conservation Reserve
Traditional Owners and Parks and Wildlife working together.

Please look after this place and yourselves

• Please don’t walk on the claypan or climb on Wurre formations.
• Respect our land and culture

This arid landscape is a place of dramatic change.
The pastel tones of morning give way to washed out colours of noon,
which slowly change to a rich glow at sunset.
Times of heavy rain bring an explosion of animal life and vivid wildflowers,
then drought covers the landscape in a red blanket of silence.

Unsealed Road
Walking Tracks
Claypans

To
Stuart Highway
22 km

Desert Oak Allocasuarina decaisneana seed pods
Irrkepe

Park Boundary
Parking Area
Information
Toilets
Camping
Caravan and Trailer

Picnic Facilities
Gas BBQ
Fireplaces
Lookouts
Short Walks
Central Netted Dragon
Ctenophorus nuchalis
Kepalye

Parakeelya Calandrinia balonensis
Parrkelye

Desert Raisin Solanum centrale
Katyerre

Bush
Campground

Look carefully in the soft desert sand for the numerous animal tracks

Don’t Risk Your Life
Samphire Tecticornia verrucosa.

Things to do
From here you can meander along the two
walking tracks on offer to get the best views
of Rainbow Valley and the Claypans.
Access to other areas of the Reserve is by
permit only. Contact the Parks and Wildlife
Commission on 89518250 for more information.
Late afternoon in winter is a great time to be
at Rainbow Valley as you can photograph its
colourful rock glowing in the setting sun.
AS(KC)-0808(2013)-RVI1b
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Park Boundary
Sealed Road
Karlu Groups

To Wauchope 9 km
To Alice Springs 393 km

Karlu Karlu by S.Braedon, O
c 2008

A Word from the Artist

Corkwood
Hakea chordophylla
jitana

Mulga
Acacia aneura
wakiri

Iytwelepenty / Davenport Range National Park
•
Following fencing of the eastern section of the Park, Rangers have undertaken
feral animal management. In 2013-14, two management programs were
undertaken, resulting in the removal of 570 donkeys and one horse.
Rainbow Valley Conservation Reserve
•
Rangers and traditional owners have conducted considerable work to reduce
the amount and extent of Buffel Grass within managed areas on the Reserve.
•
Erected new interpretive signage to compliment the walking track system and
provide a greater understanding of the cultural significance of the Reserve.

LEGEND

Native Fig
Ficus brachypoda
witjiji
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Karlu Karlu / Devils Marbles Conservation Reserve
•
Widened the roadway and resealed the day use area carpark.
•
A combined project by Rangers and traditional owners saw the installation of
new bollards in the campground.
•
Installed new interpretive signage to promote the cultural importance of the
Reserve to traditional owners and to recognise the important role that they
have played in the management of the Reserve over time.
•
Reserve walking track system formalised.

Dingo
Canis lupus
winkkalki

Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory

Rainbow Valley
Campground

Walks to Enjoy
Claypan Walk
Distance: 1.6 km return

Mushroom Rock Loop Walk
Distance: 1 km return

Time: 1 hour

Time: 45 minutes

Grade 2: Easy

Grade 2: Easy

This walking track meanders along the edge of
the mostly dry claypans that transform into
shallow reflective pools for short periods after
rain. There are several viewing platforms along
the way that provide the best views of Rainbow
Valley.

This walk takes visitors to Mushroom Rock, an
arch shaped formation eroded over time by wind
and water. Look out for the mud nests of Fairy
Martins welded to the sandstone overhangs.

Mushroom Rock

Even for short walks and mild
conditions walkers are advised to
carry and drink plenty of water.

Use sunscreen. Sunburn can
lead to severe dehydration.

Wear sturdy footwear and
loose fitting clothing that gives
maximum sun protection.

Avoid strenuous activity in the
heat of the day. Avoid walking
alone and always notify a
reliable person of your route
and intended time of return.

Wear a shady hat.

Reserve
Rainbow Valley Conservation
Wildlife working together.
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•

•
•

•

Awarded a five year concession for the operation of the entry station and
shop at the Alice Springs Telegraph Station the ‘The Trail Station’ providing
enhanced opportunities for visitors including mountain bike hire.
Held Heritage Week activities in April, including a Heritage Night which was
attended by over 700 visitors.
Rangers, in conjunction with students from Batchelor College (Conservation
and Land Management students) implemented a program to control the
newly declared weed, Cylindropuntia (Cactus).
Held several events during 2013-14, including cross country running and
orienteering events as well as major mountain biking events, which included
the Inkerreke Mountain Bike Challenge, Firefly overnight cycling race and the
Easter in the Alice Mountain Bike Muster.

West MacDonnell National Park
•
Worked with neighbours and partners to implement landscape-scale
prescribed burning activities across adjacent land tenures, including the West
MacDonnell National Park, Finke Gorge National Park and Owen Springs
Reserve, with benefits for neighbours and partners.
•
Undertook aerial platform feral animal control programs on the West
MacDonnell National Park, Finke Gorge National Park and Owen Springs
Reserve to reduce the environmental impact of grazing herbivores within
those parks.
•
Awarded a new camp ground and kiosk concession for Ormiston Gorge.
•
Conducted consultation and production of Indigenous artwork for display on
locker doors along the Larapinta Trail at Jay Creek and 2 Mile campgrounds.
•
Commenced construction of new steps and hand rails at the Ormiston Gorge
Waterhole walk in the West MacDonnell National Park.
•
Oversaw the re-surface of the Redbank Gorge access road in the West
MacDonnell National Park, improving vehicle access to the popular waterhole
and Larapinta Trail access point at the base of Mount Sonder.
Watarrka National Park
•
Completed works to refresh the Canyon and Sunset Viewing Area amenities
to enhance the visitor experience.
•
Upgraded the Kings Canyon Rim Walk track to improve visitor safety and
enjoyment, while minimising impacts on visitor use and appreciation.
•
Continued to manage the captive-bred Mala Wallaby population as part
of the Department of Land Resource Management’s Recovery Program. In
2013-14, Rangers undertook significant work on the conservation enclosure,
including control of the rabbit population, to ensure the ongoing protection
of the endangered mala population.
George Brown Darwin Botanic Gardens
•
Hosted the annual Tropical Garden Spectacular, which saw 5300 visitors enjoy
the George Brown Darwin Botanic Gardens.
•
Held numerous events throughout the 18 day Darwin Festival celebrations
(including the Teddy Bear’s Picnic), which attracted approximately 16 000
visitors to the George Brown Darwin Botanic Gardens.
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•

•

•

Launched the inaugural ‘Easter Kids Holiday Fun Week’, in which
approximately 2000 children actively participated in activities and events
throughout the George Brown Darwin Botanic Gardens.
Hosted 99 events throughout the year, including: the National Surf Life Saving
Championship which attracted approximately 2000 people, a Wine Tasting
event in which approximately 500 people participated and approximately 30
weddings,
Completed stages 1 and 2 of a large project to seal roads and pathways
through the Woodlands and formalised drainage headworks to reduce soil
erosion and minimise exposure of underlying asbestos materials.

Territory Wildlife Park
•
Increased visitor numbers by 7.4 per cent from 2012-13 to 59 849 visitors.
•
Maintained visitor satisfaction rates at 95 per cent.
•
Opened a water and wildlife-wise garden at the Flight Deck.
•
Opened a new ‘Keepers Kitchen’ in the Nocturnal House.
•
Introduced a new ‘Keeper Kids’ school holiday program for children who
want to ‘Be a Zoo Keeper’ for a day and a ‘Keeper Kids’ play zone for younger
children.
•
Launched night-time events: a ‘Spooky Glow Party’ for children, two ‘Cane
Toad Busts’, and a ‘Twilight Night’.
•
Coordinated a Christmas Market, showcasing local crafts and other produce
along with a ‘Tree Topper’ competition for upcycled Christmas decorations.
•
Coordinated Darwin’s first national Threatened Species Day event at the
Waterfront Precinct.
•
Awarded a 2014 ‘Certificate of Excellence’ for continual high ratings of
satisfaction on TripAdvisor.
•
Reinstated the ‘Artists in the Park’ Program with several artists practicing a
range of genres (dance, painting, sculpture, written, textiles) interpreting
nature and conservation in unique and thought-provoking ways.
Alice Springs Desert Park
•
Increased visitation by 1.5 per cent on the 2012-13 financial year to
		
56 028 visitors.
•
Maintained visitor satisfaction rates at over 97 per cent.
•
Conducted successful breeding programs for five endangered species (Bilbies,
Ghost Bats, Mala, Sticknest Rats, Slater Skink).
•
Introduced of a new product ‘Close encounter’ with a Wedgetail Eagle.
•
Developed a new dingo enclosure for two new Dingoes.
•
Introduced a Perentie exhibit as part of renovation of Riverine Display 3
(existing aviary and new aquarium).
•
Introduced the ‘Desert Explorer Holiday Program’ for young children during
the June / July school holidays.
•
Sealed the ‘Nocturnal tour’ pathway to enhance visitor safety and satisfaction.
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Park Visitation
Territory Parks and Reserves present a unique natural, cultural and historical
character and values of the Northern Territory. Parks and reserves provide space for
people to encounter and connect with nature in a meaningful way; they provide
opportunities for innovative and inspiring natural and cultural experiences; they
offer learning experiences that cannot be offered in a classroom; and they protect
many significant natural, cultural, historical and recreational assets, so that they
can continue to be enjoyed by future generations.
The Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory is committed to
providing better access to our parks and reserves for tourists and local Territorians.
By acknowledging the varying interests and expectations of our visitors and
capturing the stories of the Territory, the Parks and Wildlife Commission can
expand on existing ventures or create new initiatives to ensure that all visitors can
truly ‘experience’ the Northern Territory in a profound and meaningful way.
There are 87 parks and reserves in the Northern Territory parks estate. These parks
and reserves exist for their spectacular natural, cultural, geological, historical
or tourism / recreational values and continue to be a significant contributor to
the local economy, particularly in regional and remote areas.These parks are
celebrated by local communities and are increasingly used by the Northern
Territory community for recreational activities and events, and by tourists seeking
to truly ‘experience’ the Northern Territory. The Parks and Wildlife Commission
enjoyed positive visitor satisfaction ratings at parks and reserves during the
2013-14 financial year. These ratings are based on independent visitor experiences
(monitored through TripAdvisor) as well as visitor satisfaction surveys that are
conducted by Commission employees.
The TripAdvisor Certificate of Excellence awards those organisations that
consistently achieve outstanding independent traveller reviews on TripAdvisor.
A TripAdvisor Certificate of Excellence is based on individual review ratings,
the overall rating and the quantity and frequency of reviews. To be eligible,
organisations must maintain a rating of at least four out of five, have a minimum
number of reviews, and have been listed on TripAdvisor for at least 12 months.
In 2013-14, the Parks and Wildlife Commission achieved seven TripAdvisor
Certificates of Excellence. Many of the Commission’s Top 20 visitor parks are listed
on the TripAdvisor website, and of these, all have been ranked four out of five or
higher.
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Park Listing

TripAdvisor
Award

Casuarina Coastal Reserve
Berry Springs Nature Park

TripAdvisor Park
rating 2013-14
Not listed

Certificate of
Excellence 2014

4.5

Fogg Dam Conservation
Reserve

4.5

Howard Springs Nature Park

4.5

Litchfield National Park

Certificate of
Excellence 2014

4.5

Cutta Cutta Caves Nature
Park

4.5

Judbarrra/Gregory National
Park

4

Limmen National Park

5

Keep River National Park

4.5

Nitmiluk National Park

Certificate of
Excellence 2014

4.5

Karlu Karlu / Devils Marbles
Conservation Reserve

Certificate of
Excellence 2014

4.5

Tennant Creek Telegraph
Station Historical Reserve
Alice Springs Telegraph
Station Historical Reserve

4
Travellers Choice
2014 Winner

Arltunga Historical Reserve

4.5
5

Chambers Pillar Historical
Reserve

4.5

Rainbow Valley Conservation
Reserve

4.5

Watarrka National Park

4.5

Kings Canyon (within
Watarrka National Park)

Certificate of
Excellence 2014

4.5

West MacDonnell Ranges
National Park (MacDonnell
Ranges)

Certificate of
Excellence 2014

4.5
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It is estimated that in 2013 more than 2.86 million people visited the Territory’s top
22 parks and reserves (excluding the Territory Wildlife Parks and the George Brown
Darwin Botanic Gardens). The most popular parks and reserves are Casuarina
Coastal Reserve, Alice Springs Telegraph Station, Litchfield National Park, Nitmiluk
National Park, the West MacDonnell National Park and Watarrka National Park. In
2013-14, 80 percent of international visitors and 36 percent of domestic visitors
attended at least one national park during their stay in the Northern Territory (Source: Tourism NT), which is significantly higher than the national average of 39
percent and 8 percent respectively.
A large proportion of park users in the Northern Territory are local residents.
The diverse range and distances of our parks means that they are accessible for
half day, full day and extended camping trips, providing significant opportunities
for the Parks and Wildlife Commission to create a diverse range of unique and
exceptional visitor experiences, each catering to different interests, needs and
expectations.
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Visitation Numbers for the PWCNT Top Visitor Parks
Total Visitor numbers
2013-14

Park
Alice Springs Desert Park

56 028

Territory Wildlife Park

59 849

George Brown Darwin Botanic Gardens

281 659

Berry Springs Nature Park

108 004

Casuarina Coastal Reserve (WOP*)

935 656

Howard Springs Nature Park

139 055

Arltunga Historical Reserve

6 111

Chambers Pillar Historical Reserve

5 284

Karlu Karlu/Devils Marbles Conservation
Reserve

138 362

Elsey National Park (WOP*)

137 747

Limmen National Park

Darwin Region
Da
KATHERINE

Katherine
n Region

22 428

Rainbow Valley Conservation Reserve

8 243

Tennant Creek Telegraph station

12 117

Trephina Gorge

19 851

Alice Springs Telegraph Station Historical
Reserve
Finke Gorge National Park

193077

TENNANT
CREEK

Barkly Region
g

ALICE SPRINGS

Central Australia Region

21 142

Watarrka National Park

255 441

West MacDonnell NP (WOP*)

139 200

Litchfield National Park

325 650

Fogg Dam Conservation Reserve

79 036

Mary River National Park - Shady Camp

23 949

Judbarra/Gregory National Park (WOP*)

29 717

Keep River National Park

7 303

Nitmiluk National Park (WOP*)
TOTAL

DARWIN

248 404
2 856 004

(WOP*) - whole of Park
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Community Engagement
The Parks and Wildlife Commission is committed to creating the best outcomes
for parks, reserves and wildlife. Community engagement is receiving increasing
recognition as an important component of environmental protection and
management. Moreover, there is mounting evidence to demonstrate that, if
implemented effectively, community engagement can increase public awareness
about threats to the environment. Further to this, long-term studies indicate that
an informed community, who are exposed to a variety of opportunities to actively
participate through volunteering, attendance at local events or decision-making,
feel a stronger sense of ‘ownership’ of ‘their Parks’ and have a greater propensity
for advocating on behalf of their parks, reserves and wildlife.
The Community Engagement Unit works in partnership with other units in
the Commission to provide the interface between the community and the
Commission. This unit provides information, advice and support within the agency
as well as to schools, universities, educational institutions, service providers, other
agencies and the wider community. In addition to ensuring that the public is
equipped with up-to-date, relevant and stimulating information that can be used
by a wide range of audiences, this unit is responsible for engaging the community
in the wider issues, and for telling the Commission’s story in a way that is
meaningful to the community. In collaboration with other Divisions, this team adds
value to the on-ground work across the organisation, by providing the community
with the background information and knowledge along with opportunities to
actively participate in conservation projects and the management of Northern
Territory parks and reserves.
In 2013-14, the Community Engagement Unit was actively involved in coordinating
or attending over 44 community engagement events and programs and reaching
over 28 000 people.
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Event type
Information stall

No. of Participants
15 623

Community activity on
Park

3573

Presentation

2548

Guided Walk

365

Exhibition/Static display

2705

School presentations

3768

Total attendance

28 582

The Be Crocwise campaign aims to raise community awareness about the
dangers of crocodiles and change people’s behaviour when in, or near the water.
The campaign includes an education program (school presentations and teacher
education kit) and a community awareness campaign (television commercials,
press and radio advertisements, display materials, posters, stickers, fact sheets,
postcards, an information booklet, webpage and merchandise).
In addition, the agency was responsible for conducting 21 Be Crocwise
presentations across 14 community groups, businesses and schools.
In 2013, the Commission ran a school-based song writing competition to
encourage children to take ownership of the Be Crocwise messages and actively
engage in promoting them in their community. A total of 12 songs were submitted
and all have been compiled onto a CD which was launched to schools and radio
stations across the Top End in November 2013. It was intended that these songs
could be used predominantly for radio advertisements with the option to use on
televsion for the 2013-14 campaign. The songs could also be used for school and
community group visits. They are also available on-line.
Also in 2013, the Commission held a school-based drawing competition to design
a Be Crocwise colouring-in sheet. Over 50 designs were entered and some have
been made into a colouring-in sheet available on-line. Some designs were also
used on the Be Crocwise song compilation CD cover.
In 2013-14, Community Engagement Officers in Darwin and Katherine have
been involved in several community events providing significant new outreach
opportunities to targeted sections of the adult community and additional outreach
to children. These events have included:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The Katherine and Darwin Shows
The Darwin Boat Show
The Top End Caravan and Camping Show
Reel Women Fishing Competition
The Nightcliff Sea Breeze Festival
The Barunga Festival
The Never Never Festival Markets
The Merrepen Festival, Daly River
Borroloola Show
Splashfest, Water Safety Week event, Darwin
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Territory Parks Alive 2013-14
The Territory Parks Alive (TPA) program was delivered across the Territory between
1 May and 30 September 2013. Within Central Australian Parks, there were 11
different activities on offer at nine locations, while Northern Australian Parks
offered 21 activities at 13 locations.
Central Australian Parks
Park Rangers presented activities at Ormiston Gorge and Simpsons Gap within
West MacDonnell National Park, Finke Gorge National Park, Watarrka National
Park, Rainbow Valley Conservation Reserve, Chambers Pillar Historical Reserve,
Trephina Gorge Nature Park, Arltunga Historical Reserve and Karlu Karlu/Devils
Marbles Conservation Reserve. Events at the Alice Springs Desert Park are run
throughout the year but details of these have not been included here.
The number of activities offered in 2013 was very similar to 2012 (267 compared
to 273). Encouragingly, average participation was up from 11.6 per cent per
activity in 2012 to 15.7 per cent in 2013.
Northern Australian Parks
Park Rangers presented activities at Charles Darwin National Park, Holmes Jungle
Nature Park, Casuarina Coastal Reserve, Howard Springs Nature Park, Berry Springs
Nature Park, Fogg Dam Conservation Reserve, Litchfield National Park, Garig
Gunak Barlu National Park, Nitmiluk National Park, Judbarra/Gregory National Park
and Keep River National Park. Events at the Territory Wildlife Park and Window on
the Wetlands Visitor Centre are run throughout the year but details of these are
reported separately.
The number of activities offered in 2013 were slightly less than 2012 (119
compared to 139). Encouragingly, average participation was up from 19.3 per cent
per activity in 2012 to 36 per cent in 2013.

Future Priorities for 2014-15
Based on the Strategic Plan 2013-2016 and the priorities identified in Budget
Paper 3, the Parks and Wildlife Commission priorities for the future are:
•

To increase tourism and business investment opportunities in parks and
reserves. This will be achieved by:
• Increasing recreational use of parks by Territorians.
• Reviewing the joint management of parks in conjunction with land
councils to improve outcomes for both traditional owners and the wider
community.
• Streamlining the process for the issue and regulation of permits.
• Protecting the public from dangerous and nuisance wildlife, particularly
Saltwater Crocodiles.
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Overview
The Commission is made up of 341 employees, located throughout the
Northern Territory, in regional and remote areas. The Commission prides itself on
maintaining a strong and healthy workplace and as such, the Commission has
developed a series of strategic goals to support and inspire a collaborative and
respectful workplace, to improve processes for our staff, to build and enhance
opportunities for leadership and progression and to ensure a safe workplace for all
employees.

SECTION 3:
OUR PEOPLE

These strategies are outlined in the Parks and Wildlife Strategic Plan and include:
•
•
•
•

Inspire and support a collaborative and respectful workplace
Continue to improve business processes and streamline key internal systems
Build and enhance strategic leadership and workforce capability and diversity
Ensure a safe working environment in both office and field operations

The Commission’s progress against each of these strategies is outlined in the
ensuing sections.

Staff Snapshot as at 30 June 2014
The Commission is made up of 341 staff or 276.4 full-time equivalent employees.
This includes 13 graduates, apprentices or cadets (3.8 per cent) and 39.6 (FTE)
Indigenous employees (14.3 per cent of the total FTE).

STAFF NUMBERS

No. positions

Percentage

Ongoing full-time
Fixed Period
(Temporary) full-time
Ongoing part-time
Fixed Period
(Temporary) part-time
Fixed Period (Casual)

235
35

68.9
10.2

18
7

5.3
2.1

46

13.5

TOTAL Headcount

341

Shared Services Arrangement
The Commission has an arrangement with Department of Land Resource
Management to provide Human Resource (HR) Services through a Service Level
Agreement to deliver best practice in HR management for each and every
employee. Senior managers support and encourage a positive workplace culture
which is reinforced through programs, policies and frameworks to comply with
legislative requirements for employment.
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Employee Profile
The following graphs detail the employee profile of the Commission:
Employees by Age
The Commission is made up of a diversity of age groups. The highest prevalence of
employees fit within the 31-40 year old age group, followed by the 41-50 year old
age group.
Employees by Age
61 - 70

51 - 60

41 - 50

31 - 40

21 - 30

Under 21
0

10

20

30

40

50
Female

60

70

80

90

100

110

Male

Employees by Gender
Of the 341 employees within the Commission, 47 per cent are female and 53 per
cent are male.

Employees by Gender

47%
53%
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Employees by Status
Of the 341 employees, 74 per cent ongoing (permanent), 12 per cent hold
temporary contracts, and 14 per cent are employed as casual employees.
Employees by Employment Status

14%

12%
Ongoing (Permanent)
Fixed Period (Temporary)
Fixed Period (Casual)

74%

Employees by Stream Profile
The Parks and Wildlife Commission is primarily made up of technical staff, with
64 per cent of employees falling into the Technical stream, followed by the
Professional stream and then the Administrative stream.
Employees by Employment Status
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Parks and Wildlife employees by classification

Classification

Total
2013-14

2012-13

Variance

Administrative Officer 1

1

1

0

Administrative Officer 2

3

4

-1

Administrative Officer 3

10

6

+4

Administrative Officer 4

9

10

-1

Administrative Officer 5

4

5

-1

Administrative Officer 6

4

5

-1

Administrative Officer 7

6

3

+3

Executive Contract Officer 1

2

3

-1

Executive Contract Officer 3

1

1

0

Physical 1

5

0

+5

Physical 2

11

8

+3

Physical 3

1

1

0

Professional 1

21

32

-11

Professional 2

13

13

0

Professional 3

4

5

-1

Senior Administrative Officer 1

5

6

-1

Senior Administrative Officer 2

10

10

0

Senior Professional 1

2

0

+2

Technical 1

106

99

+7

Technical 2

55

55

0

Technical 3

36

34

+2

Technical 4

16

14

+2

Technical 5

5

3

+2

Technical 6

1

1

0

Grad/Trainee/Apprentice

10

5

+5

Grand Total

341

324

+17

The Commission’s dual-banding of positions as Professional / Technical
provided for staff with tertiary qualifications to be paid in the Professional
stream. The reduction of Professional stream staff is due to Rangers moving
to the Technical stream on promotion because dual-banding is being phased
out. The phasing out the Professional stream has increased Technical T1,
T3, T4, T5. The increase in AO7s is due to the reclassification of positions
in Wildlife Operations, Technical and Business Services to create Assistant
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Director roles. The increase of base grade Trainees, AO3 and T1s is due to the
filling of positions that were vacant roles as at June 2013. Senior Professional 1
staff were previously counted as Professional 1. The decrease in Executive Contract
1 staff was due to the transfer of a Director position to Tourism NT. Other variances
are due to staff resignations and reclassification of some positions to different
levels or streams e.g. Professional to Administrative.

Learning and Professional Development
The Parks and Wildlife Commission is committed to growing and developing our
staff through training and study, opportunities to act in higher level positions, and
internal transfers which enable employees to gain vital experience in other regions
or work units.
Ongoing learning, development and education opportunities were offered to all
employees during 2013-14. The Commission promoted a range of learning and
development activities including:

•

Corporate Induction

•

Code of Conduct

•

Cross Cultural Training (Basic and
In-Depth workshops)

•

Recruitment & Selection
Training

•

Developing personal resilience

•

Freedom of Information
Awareness

•

Combat Bullying Program

•

Performance Management
Conversations

•

Clear Writing Workshops

•

Better Ministerial Writing
Workshops

•

Job Evaluation System (JES)
Training

•

Conservation Officer Training

Employment Programs
School Based Apprenticeship Program
The School Based Apprenticeship Program is an opportunity for agencies to grow
their own young skilled workforce with a range of employment opportunities after
successful completion of the Program.
The Commission supported five school based apprentices in 2013-14, in the areas
of conservation and land management; and tourism. The apprentices are expected
to complete their studies in 2015.
Apprenticeship Program
The Commission supported eight apprentices in 2013-14 to undertake study in the
areas of:
•
•

Certificate III in Conservation and Land Management and
Certificate IV in Conservation and Land Management.

This initiative is a nationally recognised trade level qualification through structured
training combined with practical experience. Two employees successfully
completed their qualifications during 2013-14.
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Corporate Induction
The Corporate Induction program’s purpose is to provide an overview of the
corporate functions of the agency, performance agreement process, entitlements
and conditions of service. It also provides an awareness of appropriate workplace
behaviour as well as an introduction of key contacts such as payroll and
records management. In addition, employees are provided information on their
accountability and responsibilities under the Public Sector Employment and
Management Act, and the Work Health and Safety Act (2011).
New employees are provided a ‘Welcome Pack’ at induction that contains
information relating to conditions of service, key contacts and a checklist for
supervisors to ensure appropriate site specific workplace inductions are conducted.
The HR Services Unit held two Corporate Induction workshops during 2013-14 for
16 employees throughout the regions of the Territory.
Development Programs
The Commission also strongly supported leadership development through the
Office of the Commissioner for Public Employment (OCPE) with representation on
their leadership programs including:
•
•
•

Future Leaders Program;
Kigaruk (Men’s) Indigenous Development Program; and
Discovery Women in Leadership Program.

The Kigaruk Indigenous Leadership Development Program has been specifically
designed to provide an opportunity for participants to gain the knowledge and
skills necessary to increase their effectiveness in their current position and to
improve their career progression.
The objective of the program is to redress the lack of representation of Indigenous
staff in senior management and executive officer positions in the NTPS as well
as retain and support current Indigenous employees. The programs are also a
retention strategy for existing employees by promoting and supporting better
career paths, recognition, opportunities for career development and a sense of
personal achievement.
Future Leaders Program
The Future Leaders Program is an investment in the capability of talented people
to deliver strategic needs for the future. In anticipating the needs for tomorrow, it
is clear that leaders need to strategically plan for succession in order to enhance
capability and create a vibrant and innovative public sector. The course content
has been designed taking into account the identified learning gaps from 360°
assessments in 2009, 2011 and 2012, and the Northern Territory Public Sector
Capability and Leadership Framework. One staff member successfully completed
the Future Leaders program in 2013-14.
Conservation Officer Training
Conservation Officer training was conducted internally and by an external provider
over the 2013-14 period.
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Five Commission employees participated in a Certificate IV in Government
Investigations course that was conducted in Darwin from 3-7 March 2014.
The course was run by the Australasian Environmental Law Enforcement and
Regulators Network (AELERT) and was a follow up to a Certificate II course (Basic
Law Enforcement Course) which was conducted in Alice Springs earlier in the year.
Study Assistance
The Commission supports employees gaining relevant professional and technical
skills through higher education studies. Four employees accessed Study Assistance
during 2013-14.
Areas of study in 2013-14 included:
•
Masters Business Administration – two staff members;
•
Masters of Education (Leadership Management) – one staff member; and
•
Certificate III Conservation & Land Management – one staff member.
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Legislative Compliance
Reporting against Employment Instructions
Number 1 – Filling Vacancies
•
•

Recruitment and establishment procedures are available on the staff intranet.
HR Consultants continue to provide advice on recruitment and selection
processes.

Renewed Merit Selection training was offered during 2013-14 facilitated by the
Office of the Commissioner for Public Employment’s (OCPE) Grievances and
Appeals Unit. This was reviewed to provide updated information due to the
changes of the Public Sector Employment and Management Act.
Sessions were held in Darwin, Katherine and Alice Springs regions. The
Commission’s Leadership Team supported employees; to attend and feedback
received has been strongly supportive of the training. It is expected that OCPE will
offer further sessions in 2014-15.
Number 2 – Probation
•
•

Revised probationary procedures are currently undergoing review by HR
Services to be finalised in 2014-15.
Senior management is regularly advised on the status of employee probations.

Number 3 – Natural Justice
•
•

The Commission observes the principles of natural justice in all dealings with
employees.
The Code of Conduct program includes reference to natural justice principles.

Number 4 – Employee Performance Management and Development
Systems
•

•

•

A performance management and development system is in place for all
employees and managers to utilise for performance and development
discussions.
Performance management in the Commission is a participative process
that requires contribution and involvement of both employees and their
supervisors or managers. Employees and their supervisors work together
to form and apply performance agreements, development plans and
performance assessments.
A new online System was implemented and rolled out to the Commission
during 2013-14. To support the rollout of the program, workshops in
conducting performance discussions were held for managers to further
develop their conversation skills. The Commission’s Leadership Team
supported managers to participate in this program.

Number 5 – Medical Examinations
•
•
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Number 6 – Performance and Inability
•
•

Advice is provided to managers on a case by case basis.
There were no inability cases during 2013-14.

Number 7 – Discipline
•
•
•

The discipline policy and procedures are available for staff on the
Commission’s intranet site.
HR Consultants work closely with managers to ensure processes are followed
correctly.
There were no Section 49 disciplinary actions undertaken during 2013-14.

Number 8 – Internal Agency Complaints and Section 59 Grievance Reviews
•
•

The grievance policy and procedures are available for staff on the
Commission’s intranet site.
HR Consultants work closely with managers to ensure processes are followed
correctly.

Number 9 – Employee Records
•
•
•

All personnel files are securely maintained by the Department of Corporate
and Information Services on behalf of the Parks and Wildlife Commission.
Access to personnel files and the Personnel Integrated Pay System database is
restricted to an ‘in-confidence’ level.
Any requests made by employees to access their employee records are made
through the Director of HR Services.

Number 10 – Equality of Employment Opportunity Programs
•
•
•

The Commission adheres to NTPS wide Equity Programs
The Commission supports Indigenous programs which are detailed in the
report.
The Commission adheres to the principles of the EmployAbility Strategy and
is in the process of developing an in house policy. The Commission is also a
member of the Australian Network on Disability.

Number 11 – Occupational Health and Safety Standards Programs
•
•

•
•

The Commission consulted with staff on a revised Work Health and Safety
(WHS) Management System Framework.
Regular communication on the suggested changes was provided to
employees through the Chief Executive Officer’s updates and the
Commission’s intranet.
Health and Safety programs and associated policy and procedure have been
revised to reflect new Commission and Legislative requirements.
Managers conduct a WHS worksite Induction with new employees upon
commencement with the Commission.
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Number 12 – Code of Conduct
•
•

The Code of Conduct is available to all staff on the intranet and is reinforced
through our HR Consultants’ activities.
The Code is also an integral component in the Corporate Induction that is
mandatory for all new staff.

The HR Services Unit held three Code of Conduct workshops during 2013-14 for
32 employees in the Darwin and Alice Springs regions. The workshop is designed
to enhance employees’ knowledge of ethical business practices and to provide
practical strategies for dealing with situations that arise at work. The workshop
draws on the Northern Territory Public Sector Principles and Code of Conduct, as
set out in Regulations under Public Sector Employment and Management Act.
The Code of Conduct document sets out the conduct expected of all Northern
Territory Public Service employees and the values they are obliged to uphold.

Corporate Governance
The Commission’s Leadership Team uses the following model to depict its
accountability framework as it clearly demonstrates the linkages between the three
key parts of a good governance system: governance,risk and compliance.

Governance
Risk
trade-off
decisions

Risk
tolerance
rules

Risk
Addresses system threats,
system vulnerability,
protection of IT assets,
and risks to management
objectives

Addresses strategic planning,
businessIT alignment, policy
creation and vision setting

Risk trade-off decisions
(how they were made)

Compliance
with
governance
rules

Who decides,
and process
to follow

Compliance
Addresses adherence to
laws, regulations, policies,
standards, best practices,
and frameworks

Impact of not complying

The model requires accountability for the stewardship of the Commission’s
resources while simultaneously encouraging effective and efficient use of these
resources. This facilitates and guides the necessary planning, budgeting and
management of performance, and supports the Chief Executive Officer and
Leadership Team in leading the Commission.
The model outlines a governance structure consisting of the Leadership Team and
the Work Health and Safety body.
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Commission Arrangement
The Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory is responsible for
managing and developing the Territory’s parks and reserves for the benefit of the
community.
It does this by providing high quality nature-based tourism and recreational
experiences and opportunities in a manner that also protects the intrinsic natural
and cultural values of the parks.
Under the Administrative Arrangements Order announced by the Chief Minister on
4 September 2012, the Commission also has responsibility for the Territory Wildlife
Parks (TWP’S) Government Business Division. TWP’S comprises the Territory
Wildlife Park at Berry Springs and the Alice Springs Desert Park. A key responsibility
of both parks is to showcase the Northern Territory’s unique flora and fauna in a
natural environment that is educational, interactive and interesting for the visiting
public. The Park experience enables people to understand, respect and enjoy the
Territory’s natural environments.
The Parks and Wildlife Commission receives corporate services through a shared
service arrangement with the Department of Land Resource Management.
Corporate Services include:
•

•

•

•

•

Human Resource Services - assisting the Commission to operate within
legislative frameworks and provides support through the provision of
comprehensive guidance and expert advice on all aspects of Northern Territory
Public Sector employment;
Financial Services - providing financial services, budgeting support and
compliance reporting to the Commission to facilitate responsible financial
management, a standard approach to financial issues and high level corporate
governance practices in a financial environment;
Information and Business Systems - providing focused and innovative
Information Technology, Information and Records Management services, and
Business Systems that support and enhance the ability of Divisions to achieve
their core objectives;
Communications and Media - providing support, advice and coordination on
a broad range of internal and external communications and media services
to staff across all regions to support Commission activities. The unit is also
responsible for ensuring a consistent communications approach which aligns
with whole-of-government directions;
Corporate Governance - an independent, objective, assurance and
consulting group designed to add value and improve the effectiveness of the
Commission’s governance, risk management and control processes.
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Governance Principles
Governance within the Commission is guided by the following principles:
Principle 1: Government and public sector relationship
The Commission’s relationship with the Government is clear.
Principle 1 is a governance principle that is unique to the public sector and
fundamental to any democratic political system. Ensuring clear and transparent
relationships between the elected government and the bureaucracy is critical to
prevent any undue influence in the administration of the public function and
to ensure the swift and efficient implementation of government policies and
strategies.
Principle 2: Management and oversight
The Commission’s management and oversight is accountable and has clearly
defined responsibilities.
Well defined management responsibilities and accountabilities, meaningful
strategic plans and work programmes, as well as independent oversight are
cornerstones of governance in any type of organisation.
Principle 3: Organisational structure
The Commission’s structure serves its operations.
The quality of an organisation’s governance will depend to a large part on whether
its organisational structure is suitable for what the organisation was set up to do.
As such, it should reflect the organisation’s main operational objectives and do
so in a coherent way while at the same time being flexible enough to respond to
changes in the organisation’s strategy or mission.
Principle 4: Operations
The Commission plans its operations to achieve its goals.
Operational planning is a key instrument to ensure accountability of an
organisation and the effective and efficient management and use of resources. As
such, it touches upon numerous aspects of governance and is a key operational
tool to increase compliance.
Principle 5: Ethics and integrity
Ethics and integrity are embedded in the Commission’s values and operations.
Ethical behaviour is a fundamental corner stone of good governance. It is critical to
ensure integrity in decision making and quality of public service, and is essential to
ensure citizens’ trust in government. What’s more, subscribing to ethics as a basic
value for all operations is key for good business and good outcomes.
Principle 6: People
The Commission’s leadership in people management contributes to individual and
organisational achievements.
In order to ensure effectiveness and efficiency of its operations, it is important
for an organisation to construct adequate governance in the management of
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employees. This encompasses fair, transparent and equal treatment of employees,
as well as comprehensive strategies to motivate and lead people and promote
personal development.
Principle 7: Finance
The Commission safeguards financial integrity and accountability.
Sound financial management is critical to ensure accountability and efficiency in
the management of public resources, and as such an essential element to improve
good public governance.
Principle 8: Communication
The Commission communicates with all parties in a way that is accessible, open
and responsive.
‘Sunlight is the best disinfectant’, as US Supreme Court Justice Louis Brandeis
famously observed. To achieve this and to ensure an organisation’s accountability,
open, accurate and responsive communication is essential. Good communication is
also fundamental to promote citizens’ trust in government.
Principle 9: Risk management
The Commission identifies and manages its risks.
Each organisation has a distinct risk profile. Identifying its particular risk exposure
and developing and implementing risk prevention and remediation plans is critical
to ensure the organisation can operate effectively and efficiently to achieve its
goals.

Frameworks
The Corporate Governance Model is supplemented by frameworks which outline
the requirements for core governance responsibilities. Together the model,
frameworks and their associated policies and procedures form a comprehensive
foundation for the good governance of the Commission.
Frameworks established under the Corporate Governance Model at this time are:
•
Risk Management Framework
•
Internal Audit Manual
•
Work Health and Safety Framework

Funding Agreements
The Commission may receive specific purpose funding from the Commonwealth
and / or Territory Governments. The receipt and use of these funds are
governed by individual funding agreements. These agreements are signed by
the Accountable Officer and / or the relevant Minister and contain all terms and
conditions attached to the funding program, including the required acquittal
process.
The Commission has in place systems and processes to manage its funding
agreement obligations.
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Roles and Responsibilities
Parks and Wildlife Leadership Team
The Leadership Team is the Commission’s principal policy-setting and decisionmaking authority that supports the Chief Executive Officer as the Accountable
Officer. Accordingly, the Leadership Team undertakes a ‘Board’ like function in
managing and reviewing the Commission’s strategic and business objectives and
governance matters, including overseeing the strategic deployment of resources
across the Commission and the development and implementation of policies,
plans and procedures that will provide a foundation of good governance for the
Commission’s activities.
The Leadership Team is supported by a Terms of Reference.
Chair:
Chief Executive Officer, Mr Andrew Bridges
Members:
Director Northern Australian Parks, Ms Neva McCartney
Director Central Australian Parks, Mr Chris Day
Director Alice Springs Desert Park, Mr Paul Ah Chee ‘Ngala’
Director Territory Wildlife Park, Ms Shael Martin
Director George Brown Darwin Botanic Gardens, Mr Bryan Harty
Director Wildlife Operations, Ms Kristen Appel
Director Business Services, Ms Amanda Moore
Director Technical Services, Mr Mike Deegan
Director Planning Services, Mr Mac Moyses
Executive Director Corporate Services, Ms Susan Kirkman
Delegations
The Chief Executive Officer is the Accountable Officer for the Commission for
the purposes of the Financial Management Act. Delegations are maintained
and regularly reviewed for financial, human resource, procurement, information
(records) security and contracts. The delegations allow appropriately authorised
staff to undertake specific responsibilities of the Accountable Officer or Chief
Executive Officer prescribed in the Financial Management Act, the Procurement
Act, and the Public Sector Employment and Management Act.
Corporate Plan
The Commission develops its strategic plan for a 3 year period. The Commission’s
Strategic Plan outlines the vision, purpose, values, objectives and strategies of the
Commission which are developed and agreed through its planning process.
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Business Plans
The Strategic Plan 2013-2016 provides overarching strategies and direction for
annual Business Plans developed by the various Divisions within the Commission.
Business Plans are developed in consultation with staff and stakeholders and are
required to be approved by the Leadership Team.
Accountability
The Commission has key deliverables as outlined in the Budget 2014-15
These measures are enhanced with achievement indicators identified for projects in
Business Plans and aligned with the Commission’s Strategic Plan.
Progress against the Commission’s key deliverables is reported in the Annual
Report as the Commission’s performance report to the Minister and Parliament.
Communication
Dissemination of timely and clear information across all levels within the
Commission is paramount for effective corporate governance. Internal and
external communication mediums and processes utilised by the Commission
include:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Web – intranet and internet;
Face to face meetings, feedback and discussions with staff;
Reports to the Leadership Team and other committees;
Messages from the CEO’s desk and emails;
Minutes and actions of meetings; and
Induction programs.

Policies and Procedures
The Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory has policies and
procedures in place to provide guidance and instruction to staff. These are
available on the intranet site.
In 2013-14 the Commission achieved the following key outcomes under its
governance framework:
•
•
•
•

Implementation and development of its strategic and operational business
processes and plans;
Implementation of its risk management framework and commencement of its
2013-14 risk assessment activities;
Implementation of its internal audit framework; and
Full implementation of the Commission’s risk based annual internal audit plan.
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Insurable Risk
The Commission does not take out commercial insurance against the risk of
damage to its physical assets or against the risk of economic or physical injury
to a natural person. The Commission bears its own risks and meets costs as they
emerge.
The categories covered by the Commission’s self-insurance arrangements,
mitigation strategies and processes employed to reduce the risk for each category,
and the total number, value and average cost of self-insurance claims are detailed
as follows:
Insurable Risk Category

Public Liability

Workers compensation

Assets and Inventories All
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Mitigation Strategies

Total Number /
Total value of
claims
2013-14

•

Formal risk assessments
completed

•

Repairs and maintenance
program to reduce risks
associated with physical assets

•

On-going review of practices
and procedures to ensure
public safety

•

Appropriate signage

•

Education campaigns for staff
and public

•

Independent reviews

•

Formal risk assessments
completed

•

Work Health and Safety
framework developed and
implemented

•

Workplace safety policies and
standard operating procedures

•

Work site assessments

•

Job specific training and
support

•

Utilisation of the Employee
Assistance program

•

Early intervention program

•

Critical incident debriefings

•

Work-life balance strategies

•

Formal risk assessments
completed

•

Ongoing review of policies
and practices to guide
standard operating procedures
to protect assets and
inventories.

Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory

No Claims

12 Claims totalling
$189 768

No Claims

Annual Report 2013-14

Insurable Risk Category

Buildings

Mitigation Strategies

Total Number /
Total value of
claims
2013-14

•

Building audits e.g. security,
maintenance, compliance

•

Appropriate security and
testing e.g. fire systems,
alarms, patrols, staff

•

Repairs and maintenance of
minor new works programs.

•

Regular service and
maintenance checks

•

Driver training (4 wheel drives,
quad bikes, boat handling)

•

Safety equipment and
accessories (Particularly for
off-road vehicles, crocodile
capture boats, etc.).

Inventories

•

Regular stocktaking
performed.

No Claims

Indemnities

•

Formal risk assessments
completed each year and
with each new agreement
executed.

No Claims

Vehicles (e.g. motor
vehicles, quad bikes and
boats)

1 Claim totalling
$9 961

17 Claims totalling
$19 338

The Commission’s commercial insurance premium arrangements are detailed as
follows:
Commercial Insurance Premium

Number/Total value of claims

Commission – various (e.g. overseas travel
insurance, small value one-off travel insurance,
personal accident insurance for volunteers)

No Claims

Territory Wildlife Parks – Public Liability

No Claims
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Work Health and Safety
The Commission is committed to providing and maintaining safe and healthy
workplaces. Following the re-establishment of the Parks and Wildlife Commission
as a stand-alone Agency, a considerable amount of work has been undertaken
to ensure compliance with the Work Health and Safety (National Uniform
Legislation) Act 2011 and the Workers Rehabilitation and Compensation Act
(WRC Act).
Activities undertaken to implement the WHS legislation have included:
•

A gap analysis undertaken by an WHS project officer to identify areas for
review or amendments under the Work Health and Safety Act;
Awareness discussions conducted with staff to provide guidance on the
statutory requirements placed on them. The importance of staff cooperation
and compliance in reporting hazards was promoted to reduce the incidence
of workplace injury and disease; and
Worker consultation through the WHS Committee; WHS Representatives
(where applicable) and information included within regular Chief Executive
Officer newsletters and/or the staff intranet.

•

•

The Commission’s policies share strong linkages to WHS and provide a flexible
framework for the day-to-day management of WHS matters, with a focus on
continuous improvement and strong governance.
Work Health and Safety Incidents 2013-14
There were a total of 59 incidents in the 2013-14 annual financial year, costing the
Parks and Wildlife Commission $189 768.

2013-14

Totals

Incidents With Claim Status

11

11

Incidents Without Claim Status

48

48

59

59

Incident Type Breakdown

Totals
Incidents With Claim Status
Ratio

19%

Number of Incidents By Month
12

No of Incidents

10
8
6

2013
/…
2013-14

4
2
0
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Number of Incidents By Mechanism
16
14
12
10
8
6
4
2
0

2013-14
2013
/…

PWCNT Work Health and Safety (WHS) Approving Body
The Leadership Team acts as the Commission’s Work Health and Safety approving
body and in this capacity is responsible for work health and safety issues pertaining
to the Commission’s business activities, Work Health and Safety Framework, policy
and procedures which apply across the whole Commission.

Chief Executive Officer

Parks and Wildlife
Leadership Team
(PWLT)

Work Health and
Safety Approving
Body (PWLT)

WHS Framework

- WHS Policy
- WHS Procedures
- WHS Committees
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The Leadership Team is supported by four Work Health and Safety Committees:
•
•
•
•

Parks and Wildlife;
the George Brown Darwin Botanic Gardens;
the Territory Wildlife Park; and
the Alice Springs Desert Park.

Each Committee will have at least four members and is chaired by its respective
Leadership Team member who reports to the Leadership Team after each WH&S
Committee meeting.
Responsible for: Providing agency-wide policy and direction to meet worker
safety requirements and responsibilities as the ‘Person conducting a business or
undertaking’ (PCBU) under the Work Health and Safety Act 2011, Public Sector
Employment and Management Act, and Employment Instruction 11.
Responsibilities:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Set WHS strategic direction;
Oversight the development and implementation of the WHS Management
System;
Set and monitor WHS objectives and targets;
Set and approve WHS policy and procedure;
Ensure WHS communication, consultation and issue resolution;
Provide advice, resources and support to divisional WHS committees;
Consider and monitor recommendations made in any WHS related reports;
Oversight reportable incident trends;
Determine changes to the workplace that improve worker health and safety;
Set WHS promotion, education, and training priorities in the workplace;
Maintain compliance with WHS legislation; and
Appoint a representative of the Approving Body to WHS Committees.

The Work, Health and Safety responsibilities of the Leadership Team are supported
by the following committees within the Commission.
Parks and Wildlife WHS Committee
Responsible for: Providing a consultative forum that addresses health and safety
matters arising within the Commission (excluding The George Brown Darwin
Botanic Garden and the Territory Wildlife Parks), in accordance with the Work
Health and Safety Act 2011.
Responsibilities:
•
Provide a forum for managers and staff to work together and consult on
WHS;
•
Assist in the implementation, operation and review of the Commission’s WHS
Management System and associated policies and procedures for the purpose
of minimising worker injury and health issues; and
•
Advise and report to the Commission’s Leadership Team, as WHS Approving
Body, on their actions.
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Membership:
Ms Neva McCartney, Chair. Appointed Director
Ms Tracey Duldig, Deputy Chair. Planning Services North.
Ms Lucy Barlow, Business Services South
Mr Steve Pilkington, Darwin Parks
Mr Sean Webster, Top End Parks
Mr Chris Binney, Savannah Rivers Parks
Mr Jonathan Woods, Gulf Parks
Ms Sheridan Martin, West Parks
George Brown Darwin Botanic Gardens WHS Committee
Responsible for: Providing a consultative forum that addresses health and safety
matters arising within the PWCNT Division, in accordance with the Work Health
and Safety Act 2011.
Responsibilities:
•
Provide a forum for managers and staff to work together and consult on
WHS;
•
Assist in the implementation, operation and review of the Commission’s WHS
Management System and associated policies and procedures for the purpose
of minimising worker injury and health issues; and
•
Advise and report to the Commission’s Leadership Team, as WHS Approving
Body, on their actions.
Membership:
Mr Bryan Harty, Chair. Appointed Director
Mr Anthony Fuller (HSR), HSR
Ms Janice Carter, Deputy HSR
Mr Paul Munns
Mr Glen Holland
Mr Samuel Verburg
Territory Wildlife Park WHS Committee
Responsible for: Providing a consultative forum that addresses health and safety
matters arising within the Territory Wildlife Park, in accordance with the Work
Health and Safety Act 2011.
Responsibilities:
•
Provide a forum for managers and staff to work together and consult on
WHS;
•
Assist in the implementation, operation and review of the Commission’s WHS
Management System and associated policies and procedures for the purpose
of minimising worker injury and health issues; and
•
Advise and report to the Commission’s Leadership Team, as WHS Approving
Body, on their actions.
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Membership:
Ms Shael Martin, Chair. Appointed Director
Ms Sarah Kennedy & Ms Lynda Veyret, Alternates
Ms Jasmine Jan & Ms Sarah Hirst, Alternates
Mr Peter Beesley
Mr Henri Pedersen
Ms Natasha Hoffmann
Alice Springs Desert Park WHS Committee
Responsible for: Providing a consultative forum that addresses health and safety
matters arising within the Alice Springs Desert Park, in accordance with the Work
Health and Safety Act 2011.
Responsibilities:
•
Provide a forum for managers and staff to work together and consult on
WHS;
•
Assist in the implementation, operation and review of the Commission’s WHS
Management System and associated policies and procedures for the purpose
of minimising worker injury and health issues; and
•
Advise and report to the Commission’s Leadership Team, as WHS Approving
Body, on their actions.
Membership:
Mr Paul Ngala Ah Chee, Chair. Appointed Director
Mr Jim Oatley
Mr Robert Jansen
Mr Ben Price
Mr Simon Brown
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Governing Legislation
The Commission is responsible for administering 13 pieces of legislation, with four
Acts and nine pieces of subordinate legislation, on behalf of the Minister for Parks
and Wildlife.
This legislation provides an overriding direction for many functions that the
Commission performs and is the foundation to a number of its Outputs. The
Commission has developed a program of review aimed at ensuring its legislation
remains relevant to its functions and incorporates best practice in the areas it
administers.
1. Cobourg Peninsula Aboriginal Land, Sanctuary and Marine Park Act
• Cobourg Peninsula Aboriginal Land and Sanctuary (Entry and Camping)
By-law.
• Cobourg Peninsula Aboriginal Land, Sanctuary and Marine Park
(Rehabilitation Areas) By-laws.
1. Nitmiluk (Katherine Gorge) National Park Act
2. Parks and Wildlife Commission Act
3. Territory Parks and Wildlife Conservation Act
• Barranyi (North Island) Local Management Committee Regulations
• Djukbinj National Park Local Management Committee (Djukbinj Board)
Regulations
• Flora River Local Management Committee Regulations
• Keep River National Park Local Management Committee Regulations
• Territory Parks and Wildlife Conservation By-laws
• Territory Parks and Wildlife Conservation Regulations
• Tnorala Local Management Committee Regulations

Statutory Authorities and Bodies
The Commission has a statutory responsibility for certain authorities and bodies.
Statutory Authorities and Bodies as at 30 June 2014 are listed below:
Barranyi (North Island) Local Management Committee
The Barranyi (North Island) Local Management Committee is a statutory body
established under the Territory Parks and Wildlife Conservation Act, and the
Barranyi (North Island) Local Management Committee Regulations.
The Committee assists the Commission to manage Barranyi (North Island) National
Park.
Members at 30 June 2014 were:
Chairman: Ms Stephanie Jupiter
Members:
Mr Graham Friday
Mr Ross Friday
Ms Kathleen Jupiter
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Ms Roxanne Jupiter
Mr Robert Arthur
Mr Eddie Webber
Mr Stewart Woerle
Cobourg Peninsula Sanctuary and Marine Park Board
The Cobourg Peninsula Sanctuary and Marine Park Board is a statutory body
established under section 8 of the Cobourg Peninsula Aboriginal Land,
Sanctuary and Marine Park Act. Its purpose is to jointly manage Garig Gunak
Barlu National Park with the Commission.
Members at 30 June 2014 were:
Chairman: Mr Solomon Cooper
Members:
Mr Robert Cunningham
Mr Nigel Weston
Mr Paul Josif
Mrs Neva McCartney
Mr Ronald Lami Lami
Mr Mathius Baird
Vacant (1)
Conservation Land Corporation
The Conservation Land Corporation is a statutory body established under part IV
section 27 of the Parks and Wildlife Commission Act. Its purpose is to acquire,
hold and dispose real and personal property in accordance with the Act.
In accordance with the Administrative Orders the Department of Lands, Planning
and the Environment is responsible for Part IV section 27 of the Parks and
Wildlife Commission Act. The Commission provides support in an administrative
capacity.
Members at 30 June 2014 were:
Chairman: Mr Willem Goedegebuure
Members: Mr Alastair Shields
Djukbinj Local Management Committee
The Djukbinj Local Management Committee is a statutory body under the
Territory Parks and Wildlife Conservation Act, and the Djukbinj Local
Management Committee (Djukbinj Board) Regulations. Its purpose is to assist the
Commission in the management of Djukbinj National Park.
Members at 30 June 2014 were:
Chairman: Vacant
Members: Vacant (2)
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Keep River National Park Local Management Committee
The Keep River National Park Local Management Committee is a statutory body
under the Territory Parks and Wildlife Conservation Act, and the Keep River
National Park Local Management Committee Regulations. The Committee assists
the Commission to manage the Keep River National Park.
Members at 30 June 2014 were:
Chairman: Vacant
Members: Vacant
Nitmiluk (Katherine Gorge) National Park Board
The Nitmiluk (Katherine Gorge) National Park Board is a statutory body under
the Nitmiluk (Katherine Gorge) National Park Act. Its purpose is the joint
management of Nitmiluk National Park with the Parks and Wildlife Commission.
Members at 30 June 2014 were:
Chairperson: Mrs Lisa Mumbin
Members:
Mr Mark Crummy
Mr John de Koning
Mr George Runyu
Ms Jane Runyu-Fordimail
Ms Anne Shepherd
Mr Tony Walla
Mr Joshua Hunter
Mr Braun Bush
Ms Noleen Andrews
Mrs Neva McCartney
Mr Alister Andrews
Vacancy (1)
Olive Pink Botanic Garden
The Olive Pink Botanic Garden is declared a Reserve under section 79 of the
Crown Lands Act. The Garden is run by a board of trustees who are entrusted
with managing the gardens on behalf of the local community, and ensuring that it
enriches the social and cultural life of the community and visitors.
Members at 30 June 2014 were:
Members:
Ms Susan Dugdale
Ms Elizabeth Prell
Mr Geoffrey Kenna
Mr Steven Morton
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Mr James Cocking
Ms Helen Kilgariff
Vacant (1)
Tnorala Local Management Committee
The Tnorala Local Management Committee is a statutory body established under
the Territory Parks and Wildlife Conservation Act, and the Tnorala Local
Management Committee Regulations. Its purpose is to assist the Commission in
the management of Tnorala (Gosse Bluff) Conservation Reserve. Appointment to
the Chair position is pending.
Members at 30 June 2014 were:
Chairman: Pending
Members:
Mr Bevan Malbunka
Ms Lynette Malbunka
Ms Maxine Malbunka
Mr Christopher Day
Mr Gary Weir
Vacancy (1)
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Information Management
The Northern Territory Information Act 2002, came into operation on
1 July 2003. It combines freedom of information (FOI), privacy and records
management legislation.
Access to Information
In compliance with section 11 of the Information Act, the Commission makes its
information available in several ways.
Information is updated regularly and published on the Commission website. It
describes the structure and functions of the Commission, how these functions
affect the public, a comprehensive listing of information that is freely available and
how to access other information that is not published on the website.
Part 3 of the Information Act, formally sets out the process for access to
government information and access to and correction of personal information held
by the Commission. Details about how to apply for access to information, with
links to relevant legislation and related agencies can be found on the Commission
website. Further assistance can be provided by contacting:
FOI Contact Officer
Parks and Wildlife Commission of the NT
PO BOX 496
Palmerston. NT. 0830
08 8999 4420
www.parksandwildlife.nt.gov.au/pwc/foi
Requests for Access to Information in 2012–13
During the reporting year there were no applications received by the Commission
for access to government or personal information under the Information Act.
Records Management
During 2013-14 the Commission continued to improve record management
practices, procedures and policies to ensure compliance with Part 9 of the
Information Act. Part 9 of the Information Act, and the Records Management
Standards require that the Commission develop and implement plans and
processes to ensure full and accurate records are created, captured, discoverable,
secure and where appropriate disposed.
During 2013-14 the Records Training Program was continued to provide whole
of Commission guidance, support and training on information management best
practices and use of the whole-of-government recordkeeping system, TRIM with a
particular focus on electronic records capture.
Ombudsman Enquiries
During the reporting year there were no Ombudsman Enquiries received by the
Commission.
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Grant Programs
The Commission is responsible for administering a number of grants to Territorians
including a number of recurring grant programs and one-off special purpose
grants. All grants, regardless of their type are distributed under a grant agreement
which includes the grant purpose and the reporting process for confirming that
the objective of the grant has been achieved.
A full list of the grants administered by the Commission can be found below.
Grant

Recipient

Olive Pink Botanic Garden
Operating Grant

Olive Pink Botanic Garden
(First installment 2014-15)

Land for Wildlife Grant

Low Ecological Services

Land for Wildlife Grant

Greening Australia

Land for Wildlife Grant

Darwin Wildlife Sanctuary

Joint Management Grants

Northern Land Council and
Central Land Council

Wildlife Grant

Wildcare NT Inc.

$25

Wildlife Grant

Wildlife Rescue Katherine

$10

Wildlife Grant

Wildcare Alice Springs

$15

Community Service Obligation
Payment to Territory Wildlife
Parks
TOTAL
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Audits
Northern Territory Auditor-General Audits
The Office of the Northern Territory Auditor-General undertook five external audits
/ reviews for 2013-14. With the exception of the Compliance audit, audits are
conducted during the 2014-15 year but using data from 2013-14.
Cobourg Peninsula Sanctuary and Marine Park Board Financial Statements
2013-14
The objective of the audit was to examine the financial statements of the Cobourg
Peninsula Sanctuary and Marine Park Board for the year ended 30 June 2014.
Nitmiluk (Katherine Gorge) National Park Board Financial Statements
2013-14
The objective of the audit was to review the financial statements of the Nitmiluk
(Katherine Gorge) National Park Board for the year ended 30 June 2014.
Territory Wildlife Parks (Government Business Division) Financial
Statements 2013-14
The objective of the audit was to examine the financial statements of the Territory
Wildlife Parks (Government Business Division) for the year ended 30 June 2014.
Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory End of Year
Review 2013-14
The audit objective was to review the adequacy of selected aspects of end
of financial year controls over reporting, accounting and material financial
transactions and balances for the primary purpose of providing support to the
audit of the Treasurer’s Annual Financial Statement.
Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory Compliance Audit
2013-14
The objective of the audit was to assess the extent to which the Commission has
complied with the provisions of the Financial Management Act, and Treasurer’s
Directions issued pursuant to the Act. In particular the audit sought to establish
that the Commission’s systems of internal control are effective.

Internal Audits
The following risk based internal audits were conducted under the Commission’s
2013-14 Internal Audit Plan. Management’s implementation of audit
recommendations is monitored by the Commission’s Audit and Risk Management
Committee.
Compliance check of Cabinet Information and Security Measures
The objective of the audit was to assess the Commission’s compliance with the
required Cabinet Information Security Measures.
Physical File Audit
The overall objective of this audit was to evaluate the records management
practices relating to Records Management Standard 3 – Discovery, which states
records must be findable and accessible for as long as they are required.
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Tier 2 and Major Procurements Internal Audits
Three Internal audits were undertaken to review procurement activities for
compliance with the Procurement Act, Regulations, Procurement Delegations and
adherence to procurement processes and procedures. The audits focused on Tier 2
($15 000 to $50 000) and major procurements (over $50 000).
Database Management and Information Security
The overall objective of the audit was to assess the Commission’s current
and active production environment database management and information
security practices against the NT Government IT Database Security Information
Management Frameworks, policies and procures.
Compliance with Budget Management Delegations
The overall objective of this audit was to form an opinion on if the Commission’s
budget management activities and practices comply with the Treasurer’s Directions
and the Commission’s Financial Delegations.
Compliance with Infrastructure Program Delegations
This internal audit assessed the Commission’s infrastructure management practices,
specifically the minor new works and repairs and maintenance activities against the
Treasurer’s Directions, Financial Delegations and the Financial Management Act.
Internal Audit of GST Compliance
The overall objective of this audit was to assess whether the Commission’s
GST practices comply with relevant legislation, Treasurer’s Directions and NT
Government GST policies and procedures.
Agency Safety Management Practises
The overall objective of this audit is to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of
safety management systems as required under the national standard 		
(AS/NZS 4801:2001) for the Commission.
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Budget Highlights 2013-14
Each year, the Northern Territory Government’s Public Sector organisation’s services
and output deliverables are framed through the Budget Paper. The 2013-14
budget was published in May 2013.
The budget highlights for the Parks and Wildlife Commission during 2013-14
reporting periods:
•

$1.53 million ongoing for lease payments to Aboriginal land trusts for
Aboriginal-owned, jointly managed parks;

•

$1.85 million additional ongoing funding for park operations; and

•

$0.2 million additional ongoing funding for asbestos management.

Outputs
Under the Territory’s Financial Management Framework each government agency
is funded by output groups as stated in the annual budget papers.
A description, key deliverables and achievements for each of the Commission’s
Outputs are detailed below.

Output Group: Parks and Wildlife
This Output Group aims to provide opportunities for visitor enjoyment and
education based on natural and cultural values, while protecting the natural
and cultural conservation values of parks and reserves, and supporting wildlife
management programs across the Territory.
Parks, Wildlife and Visitor Services
Key deliverables

2013-14
Budget

2013-14
Estimate

2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Budget

- Visits to major parks

2.9M

2.9M

2.86M

2.9M

- Visitor satisfaction

90%

90%

90%

90%

- Tourism business operating
in parks

165

161

152

161

Parks and reserves covered by
statutory management plans

90%

79%

79%

92%

Area of land and water in care,
control and management of
the Commission (000 km2)

46.3

47.2

47.3

47.2

Parks and Reserves

George Brown Darwin Botanic Gardens
Visitors

265 000

245 000

281 000

252 200

Visitor satisfaction

95%

95%

98.6%

95%

Special events

6

10

4

10

Functions

100

85

99

85
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Key deliverables
(continued)

2013-14
Budget

2013-14
estimate

2013-14
actual

2014-15
Budget

350

330

333

350

Wildlife Management
Number of problem saltwater
crocodiles removed from the
wild

Output Group: Corporate Governance
This Output Group undertakes a range of functions to serve the Commission’s core
corporate, executive and governance needs, including financial services, human
resource management, information and communication technology, governance
and risk services, and communications and media.
Corporate and Governance
Key Deliverables

2013-14
Budget

2013-14
Estimate

2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Budget

>4

5

>4

Minister satisfied with
strategic policy and
operational service delivery 1

1 Rating of 1 = extremely dissatisfied through to 5 = extremely satisfied.

Shared Services Received
Corparate Services are received from the Department of Land Resource
Management under a service level agreement including financial services, human
resource management, information and communication technology, governance
and risk services, and communications and media.

Business Lines: Territory Wildlife Parks
Territory Wildlife Parks is responsible for managing the Territory Wildlife Park at
Berry Springs and the Alice Springs Desert Park.
The key responsibility of both parks is to showcase the Northern Territory’s uniuqe
flora and fauna in a natural environment that is educational, interactive and
interesting for the visiting public as a touris attraction and a community asset. The
park experience enables people to understand, respect and enjoy the Terrtory’s
natural environment.
Business Line - Territory Wildlife Park
Outcome: Provide a quality experience to visitors through the presentation of
flora and fauna in a variety of natural Top End habitats and ecosystems. Provide
high-quality education programs for visitors to the Park and develop and promote
conservation strategies and initiatives to influence responsible community
behaviour towards the Territory environment. Continue to develop programs to
promote conservation of threatened species.
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Key deliverables

2013-14
Budget

2013-14
Estimate

2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Budget

Visitors

58 000

58 000

59 8491

58 000

Biodiversity conservation
programs2

5

5

4

4

New visitor experiences

5

3

4

3

Visitor satisfaction

95%

95%

95%

95%

Explanatory notes to the Table:
1.		

Visitor number increases constituted local visitors; while domestic tourism in the Top End fell
by 11% the Park recorded a decrease of only 2.5% for domestic visitors. International tourism
numbers remained steady.

2.		

Biodiversity conservation programs are dependent on partners (E.g. Universities and other
government agencies) as well as land and traditional owners.

Business Line - Alice Springs Desert Park
Outcome: Provide a quality experience to visitors through the presentation of
flora and fauna in a variety of natural Central Australian habitats and ecosystems.
Provide high-quality education programs for visitors to the Park and develop and
promote conservation strategies and initiatives to influence responsible community
behaviour towards the Territory environment. Continue the Alice Springs Desert
Park’s threatened species breeding programs.
Key deliverables

2013-14
Budget

2013-14
Estimate

2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Budget

Visitors 1

65 000

55 000

56 028

57 500

Threatened species breeding
programs

5

5

5

5

Key new visitor experiences

4

4

5

5

Visitor satisfaction

95%

95%

97%

95%

1.		

Decrease compared to 2013-14 Budget reflects moderating tourism demand in Alice Springs.
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SECTION 4:
FINANCIAL
REPORTS

Financial Statements
The Commission comprises two reporting entities for the purposes of the
Financial Management Act (The Act):
•

Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory; and

•

Territory Wildlife Parks, a Government Business Division (GBD).

The Act requires the Commission to prepare separate financial statements for inclusion in
the Annual Report.
Accordingly, two separate sets of financial statements are provided:
•

Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory (the Commission);

•

and Territory Wildlife Parks (TWPS).

This section of the report provides an analysis of the financial outcome of the Parks and
Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory for the year ended 30 June 2014.

The Commission Financial Statement Overview
The Commission includes the following Divisions:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Northern Australian Parks;
Central Australian Parks;
Wildlife Operations;
Windows on the Wetland;
George Brown Botanical Gardens; and
Corporate and Executive.

Financial Performance
In 2013-14, the Commission made a net loss of $3.4 million. When the loss is adjusted
for non-cash depreciation the Commission made a profit of $0.6 million compared to a
budgeted loss before depreciation of $0.4 million.
The improvement in the operating result of $1.1 million relates to:
•

$0.5 million increase in camping and permit related revenue; and

•

$0.6 million underspend in employee expenses due to a difficulty in filling positions in
remote areas.

The operating result is shown graphically below.
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Income
The Commission received income of $47.6 million in 2013-14, a $1.5 million increase
compared to 2012-13 and an increase of $0.6 million compared to budget.

The Commission is funded primarily through Northern Territory Parliamentary appropriation.
The next major income source is charges for our goods and services and a small income
from grant revenue. Notional revenue for corporate services provided by the Department of
Corporate and Information Services (DCIS) is also recognised.
Output Revenue
In 2013-14, output revenue of $44.4 million was received in accordance with budget. This
represents 93.2 percent of total revenue.
Output revenue decreased over the prior year by $1.5 million predominately due to the
introduction of efficiency saving measures and cessation of one-off funding in 2012-13.
Sale of Goods and Services
In 2013-14, income from the sale of goods and services totalled $1.3 million, $0.2 million
higher than the prior year, and $0.8 million more than budget. The increase reflects:
•

Territory Wildlife Parks’ payments to the Commission for management services and
workers compensation cover; and

•

Increased wildlife permit revenue and monies received for on park activities.

Grants Revenue
In 2013-14, $0.2 million was received as forecast from the Australian Government for
projects compared to $0.6 million in 2012-13. The two projects were for:
•

Protecting and improving the biodiversity of the Red Centre’s national landscape; and

•

Eradication of pest animals within Garig Gunak Barlu National Park.
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Goods and Services Received Free of Charge
In 2013-14, notional goods and services received free of charge from DCIS totalled 		
$1.7 million, which is comparable to budget and $0.2 million less than 2012-13.
This income is offset by a matching notional expense item to allow the Commission to bring
to account the full cost of corporate services it requires to operate.

Expenses
The Commission incurred $51 million in expenses during 2013-14 in the delivery of its
programs and services. This was $0.4 million less than budget and $2.8 million less than
2012-13.

Payments to employees and purchase of goods and services account for 59.3 percent of the
Commission’s outlays. Payments of grants and subsidies and repairs and maintenance are
the other major Commission expenses, with depreciation and corporate charges levied by
DCIS representing non-cash transactions.
Employee expenses
Staffing costs represent 32.8 percent of total expenditure. In 2013-14, employee expenses
totalled $16.7 million, a decrease over the prior year of $1 million and a saving of 		
$0.7 million to budget. The budget underspend was due to difficulties in recruiting to
positions in remote areas.
Goods and Services Expenses
Actual spend on the purchase of goods and services in 2013-14 was $13.6 million, 		
$0.5 million more than budget and a decrease of $2.7 million over 2012-13. The overspend
compared to budget was offset by savings in employee expences as outlined above and
predominately related to unforseen legal settlements.
Grants and Subsidies
Budgeted grants of $8.8 million were distributed in 2013-14 compared to $9 million in
2012-13. Grants included a community service obligation payment of $7.8 million to the
Territory Wildlife Parks for the delivery of non-commercial functions, and $1 million to
support organisations to deliver Indigenous employment and environmental outcomes.
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Repairs and Maintenance
Actual repairs and maintenance expenditure was $6.3 million against a budget of 		
$6.6 million and $0.7 million more than 2012-13. The increase funded urgent asset repairs
and maintenance to park assets caused by the monsoonal trough in January 2014 and
asbestos works.
Goods and Services Received Free of Charge
Notional expenditure on goods and services provided by DCIS was $1.7 million, which was
comparable to budget and $0.2 million less than 2012-13.
Depreciation
Depreciation is the allocation of an asset’s cost over its useful life. In 2013-14 depreciation
came in on budget at $4 million and was higher than the previous year by $0.2 million,
predominately due to upgrades of park facilities being capitalised at the end of the 2012-13
year. Depreciation costs represent eight percent of total expenditure.

Balance Sheet
The Balance Sheet provides a summary of the Commission’s balances at the end of the
financial year for assets, liabilities and equity.
Assets
The Commission’s assets at 30 June 2014 totalled $94.3 million.
The balance of assets consists of:
•

Cash balances of $1.2 million, representing cash held in a Financial Institution and,
petty cash and floats;

•

Receivables of $0.6 million representing the amount that is owed to the Commission
for goods and services provided and delivered;

•

Inventory of $0.3 million representing stock on hand for fuel on remote parks;

•

Prepaid expenses of $0.1 million representing expenses that have been paid before the
good or service was received or provided; and

•

Property, plant and equipment of $92.1 million.

Liabilities
The Commission’s liabilities total $4.7 million as at 30 June 2014.
The balance of liabilities consists of:
•

Deposits held of $0.5 million to recognise the liability for money held on behalf of
third parties until made available for disbursement of refund, such as traditional
owner’s share of park revenue, concessionaire security deposits and gift fund accounts
held on behalf of the community;

•

Payables of $1 million representing the amount owed to creditors for goods and
services purchased and received;

•

Provisions for employee entitlements of $3.1 million such as recreation leave,
leave loading and leave fares to reflect the cost in present day dollars of employee
entitlements that are to be paid in the future; and

•

Unearned revenue of $0.1 million representing the amount received for services not
yet provided.
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Equity
Equity reflects the Commission’s net assets less the liabilities. Equity as at June 2014 was
$89.6 million. The categories of movement in Equity are explained in the Statement of
Changes in Equity. Table A illustrates the 2 year trend for the net assets/equity.

Table A
Balance Sheet Trend
Analysis $'000

Actuals 2013-14

Actuals 2012-13

Assets

94 261

91 489

Liabilities

(4 681)

(5 608)

Net Assets/ Equity

89 580

85 881

Statement of Changes in Equity
This Statement expands on the equity movements in the categories of capital, reserves and
accumulated funds.
Capital relates to cash or assets that have been transferred directly into or out of the
Commission by Government.
Movements in capital of $7.1 million relate to:
•

A transfer in of $0.3 million for appropriation for the purchase of capital items; and

•

A transfer in of $ 6.8 million of completed infrastructure works.

Reserves reflect any changes in asset values that have occurred over time. Commission
assets are re-evaluated periodically to ensure correct values remain current.
There were no movements in the Commission’s reserves for 2013-14.
Accumulated funds move each year by the profit or loss of the Commission. In 2013-14,
accumulated funds represent the reported operating loss of $3.4 million.

Cash Flow Statement
The Cash Flow statement provides information on how cash was received and spent during
the year.
The Commission’s cash balances were $1.2 million at 30 June 2014.
The cash flows are summarised as follows:

2013-14
$’000

2012-13
$’000

47 758

50 446

(47 906)

(49 088)

Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash Held

(148)

1 358

Cash at Beginning of Financial Year

1 358

-

Cash at End of Financial Year

1 210

1 358

Cash received
Less Cash spent
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CERTIFICATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We certify that the attached financial statements for the Parks and Wildlife Commission of
the Northern Territory have been prepared from proper accounts and records in accordance
with the prescribed format, the Financial Management Act, and Treasurer’s Directions.
We further state that the information set out in the Comprehensive Operating Statement,
Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement, and notes to and
forming part of the financial statements, presents fairly the financial performance and cash
flows for the year ended 30 June 2014 and the financial position on that date.
At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render the
particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

………………………………….			

……………………………….

Andrew Bridges				
Chief Executive Officer				
30 September 2014				

Joanna Frankenfeld
Chief Financial Officer
30 September 2014
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Parks and Wildlife Commission
Comprehensive Operating Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2014
2014		

2013

INCOME					
Note		
$’000		
					
Grants and subsidies revenue					
Current						
201		
Appropriation					
Output						
44 382		
Sales of goods and services 					
1 260		
Goods and services received free of charge (1)
4		
1 668		
Other income 						
125		

$’000

							

TOTAL INCOME 			
				

3		

47 636

EXPENSES
					
Employee expenses					
16 700		
Administrative expenses					
Purchases of goods and services
6		
13 558		
Repairs and maintenance				
6 252		
Depreciation and amortisation
10,11		
3 983		
1 674		
Other administrative expenses (1)			
Grants and subsidies expenses					
Current						
972		
Community service obligations			
7 842		
Loss on disposal of assets			
5		
7		

601
45 856
1 120
1 458
120
49 155

17 662
16 263
5 618
3 738
1 460
1 132
7 915
-

TOTAL EXPENSES			
					

3		

50 988

53 788

NET (DEFICIT)				

16		

(3 352)

(4 633)

							
Other Comprehensive Income				
Asset revaluation reserve 					
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME			
				
COMPREHENSIVE RESULT 				

(3 352)

6 386
6 386
1 753

						
Includes DCIS service charges.
The Comprehensive Operating Statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the
financial statements.

1
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Parks and Wildlife Commission
Balance Sheet
For the year ended 30 June 2014
							

2014		

2013

ASSETS					

Note		

$’000		

$’000

Current Assets					
Cash and deposits			
7		
Receivables			
8		
Inventories			
9		
Prepayments					
Total Current Assets					

1 210		
570		
249		
147
2 176		

1 358
268
267
126
2 019

Non-Current Assets					
Property, plant and equipment
10		
Heritage & cultural assets		
11		
Total Non-Current Assets					

92 074		
11
92 085		

89 459
11
89 470

TOTAL ASSETS						

94 261

91 489

						
LIABILITIES					
Current Liabilities
				
Deposits held 			
15		
Payables 				
13		
Provisions			
14		
Other Liabilities			
15		
Total Current Liabilities					
					
Non-Current Liabilities					
Provisions			
14		
Total Non-Current Liabilities				
					

488		
1 030		
2 105		
100
3 723

530
1 729
2 210
4 469

958
958		

1 139
1 139

TOTAL LIABILITIES					
					

4 681

5 608

NET ASSETS						

89 580

85 881

91 178		
6 387		
(7 985)		

84 127
6 387
(4 633)

89 580

85 881

						
					
EQUITY 				
Capital				
Reserves				
Accumulated funds		

16		
16		
16		

TOTAL EQUITY						

				

					

The Balance Sheet is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2014
2013-14

Equity at 1
July

Transactions
with owners in
Comprehensive their capacity as
Result
owners

$’000
Note
									

$’000

Accumulated Funds			

(3 352)		

16		

Reserves
					
Asset Revaluation Reserve					
							

(4 633)		

$’000
-		

						
6 387		
-		
-		

Capital – Transactions with Owners									
Equity Injections									
Capital Appropriation				
382 		
-		
260		
Equity Transfers In- Assets 				
104 653		
-		
6 791
Other equity injections				
1 254		
-		
-		
Equity Withdrawals									
Equity Withdrawal					
(4 805)		
-		
-		
Equity Transfer Out- Assets				
(17 357)		
-		
							
							
TOTAL EQUITY AT 30 JUNE				

Equity at
30 June
$’000
(7 985)
6 387

642
111 444
1 254
(4 805)
(17 357)

84 127		
-		
7 051		
91 178
							
7 051		
89 580
85 881		
(3 352)		

									
2012-13 								
Equity at 1
July
Note
Accumulated Funds		

16		

$’000
-		

Transactions
with owners in
Comprehensive their capacity as
Result
owners
$’000
(4 633)		

Reserves
								
Asset Revaluation Reserve					
-		
6 387		

$’000

$’000

-		

(4 633)

-

6 387

Capital –Transactions with Owners									
Equity Injections									
Capital Appropriation				
-		
-		
382		
Equity Transfers In- Assets 				
-		
104 653
Other equity injections				
-		
-		
1 254		
Equity Withdrawals									
Equity Withdrawal					
-		
(4 805)		
Equity Transfer Out- Assets				
-		
(17 357)

		
					
							
TOTAL EQUITY AT 30 JUNE				

Equity at
30 June

382
104 653
1 254
(4 805)
(17 357)

-		
84 127		
84 127
							
-		
1 754
84 127		
85 881
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Cashflow Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2014

		
Note
		
		

2014
$’000
(Outflows) /
Inflows

2013
$’000		
(Outflows) /
Inflows

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES				
Operating Receipts					
Grants and subsidies received					
Current
201
Appropriation		
Output
44 382
Receipts from sales of goods and services
2 915
Interest received
Total Operating Receipts
47 498

601
45 856
1 824
48 281

Operating Payments
Payments to employees
(17 166)
(13 780)
Payments for goods and services
(21 684)
(21 199)
Grants and subsidies paid				
Current
(972)
(1 132)
Community service obligations
(7 842)
(7 915)
Total Operating Payments
(47 664)
(44 026)
Net Cash (Used In)/From Operating Activities
17
(166)
4 255

					
		
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investing Receipts					
Proceeds from asset sales		
Total Investing Receipts		
Investing Payments		
Purchases of assets
10,11
(200)
(258)
Total Investing Payments		
(200)
(258)
Net Cash (Used In) Investing Activities		
(200)
(258)
					
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES				
Financing Receipts			
Deposits Received		
530
Equity injections				
Capital appropriations
16
260
382
Other equity injections		
1 254
Total Financing Receipts		
260
2 165
Financing Payments				
Deposits paid 		
(42)
Equity withdrawals		
(4 805)
Total Financing Payments		
(42)
(4 805)
Net Cash From/(Used in) Financing Activities		
218
(2 640)
Net (Decrease)/Increase in cash held		
(148)
1 358
Cash at beginning of financial year
1 358
CASH AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR
7
1 210
1 358
The Cash Flow Statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014
INDEX OF NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

Objectives and Funding

2.

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

3.

Operating Statement by Output Group
INCOME

4.

Goods and Services Received Free of Charge
EXPENSES

5.

Loss on Disposal of Assets

6.

Purchases of Goods and Services
ASSETS

7.

Cash and Deposits

8.

Receivables

9.

Inventories

10.

Property, Plant and Equipment

11.

Heritage and Cultural Assets

12.

Fair Value Measurement of Non-Financial Assets
LIABILITIES

13.

Payables

14.

Provisions

15.

Other Liabilities
EQUITY

16.

Equity
OTHER DISCLOSURES
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1. OBJECTIVES AND FUNDING
The primary objective of the Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory is to
manage and develop the Territory’s parks and reserves for the benefit of the community. It
does this by providing high-quality nature-based tourism and recreational experiences and
opportunities in a manner that also protects the intrinsic natural and cultural values of the
parks. The Commission also administers wildlife management programs.
Additional information in relation to the Commission and its principal activities may be
found in sections 1-3 of the Annual Report.
The Commission is predominantly funded by, and dependent on, the receipt of
Parliamentary appropriation. The financial statements encompass all funds through which
the Commission controls resources to carry on its functions and deliver outputs. For
reporting purposes, outputs delivered by the Commission are summarised into three Output
Groups as follows:
•

Parks, Wildlife and Visitor Services;

•

Corporate and Governance; and

•

Shared Services Received.

Note 3 provides summary financial information in the form of an Operating Statement by
Output Group.
2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a)

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Financial Management Act, and related Treasurer’s Directions. The Financial
Management Act, requires the Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory to
prepare financial statements for the year ended 30 June based on the form determined by
the Treasurer. The Commission’s financial statements are to include:
(i)

a Certification of the Financial Statements;

(ii)

a Comprehensive Operating Statement;

(iii)

a Balance Sheet;

(iv)

a Statement of Changes in Equity;

(v)

a Cash Flow Statement; and

(vi)

applicable explanatory notes to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, which
recognises the effect of financial transactions and events when they occur, rather than when
cash is paid out or received. As part of the preparation of the financial statements, all intra
Commission transactions and balances have been eliminated.
Except where stated, the financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with
the historical cost convention.
The form of the Commission’s financial statements is also consistent with the requirements
of Australian Accounting Standards. The effects of all relevant new and revised Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are
effective for the current annual reporting period have been evaluated. The Standards and
Interpretations and their impacts are:
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AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 20107, 101, 102, 108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 138,
139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 1038 and Interpretations 2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 &
132].
AASB 13 replaces the guidance on fair value measurement in existing AASB accounting
literature with a single standard. It defines the definition of fair value, provides guidance on
how to determine fair value and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. With
some exceptions, the standard requires entities to classify these measurements into a fair
value hierarchy based on the nature of the inputs. Additional disclosures following from the
standard are included in the notes to the financial statements.
AASB 119 Employee Benefits (2011), AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (2011) [AASB 1, 8, 101, 124, 134, 1049
& 2011-8 and Interpretation 14].
AASB 119 amends the definition of short-term employee benefits and the accounting for
defined superannuation obligations. The standards do not impact the financial statements.
AASB CF 2013-1 Amendments to the Australian Conceptual Framework, AASB
2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework,
Materiality and Financial Instruments.
AASB CF 2013-1 incorporates Chapters 1 and 3 of the IASB’s Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting into the AASB Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements. It also withdraws SAC 2 Objective of General Purpose Financial
Reporting. The standards do not impact the financial statements.
AASB 2012-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual
Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle [AASB 1, 101, 116, 132 & 134 and Interpretation 2].
The standard amends a number of pronouncements as a result of the 2009-2011 annual
improvements cycle. In particular, amendments to AASB 101 Presentation of Financial
Statements clarify requirements for comparative information, and amendments to AASB
116 Property, Plant and Equipment clarify classification of servicing equipment. The standard
does not impact the financial statements.
(b)

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations Issued but not yet
Effective

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the Standards and Interpretations
listed below were in issue but not yet effective.
AASB 9 Financial Instruments (Dec 2010), AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (Dec 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101,
102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and
Interpretations 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127], AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards – Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition
Disclosures [AASB 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 2011-7 & 2011-8], AASB 2013-9 Amendments
to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, Materiality and
Financial Instruments.
AASB 9 incorporates revised requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial instruments resulting from the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement). Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017.
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AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting
This standard sets out budgetary reporting requirements for not-for-profit entities within the
General Government Sector. Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014.
AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets
Addresses disclosures about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is
based on fair value less costs of disposal. Effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014.
The Standards will not have a financial impact on the financial statements but will require a
number of changes in disclosures.
(c)

Department and Territory Items

The financial statements of the Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory
include income, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity over which the Commission has
control (Commission items). Certain items, while managed by the Commission, are
controlled and recorded by the Territory rather than the Commission (Territory items).
Territory items are recognised and recorded by the Central Holding Authority as discussed
below.
Central Holding Authority
The Central Holding Authority is the ‘parent body’ that represents the Government’s
ownership interest in Government-controlled entities.
The Central Holding Authority also records all Territory items, such as income, expenses,
assets and liabilities controlled by the Government and managed by agencies on behalf of
the Government. The main Territory item is Territory income, which includes taxation and
royalty revenue, Commonwealth general purpose funding (such as GST revenue), fines, and
statutory fees and charges.
The Central Holding Authority also holds certain Territory assets not assigned to agencies
as well as certain Territory liabilities that are not practical or effective to assign to individual
agencies such as unfunded superannuation and long service leave.
The Central Holding Authority recognises and records all Territory items, and as such,
these items are not included in the Commission’s financial statements. However, as the
Commission is accountable for certain Territory items managed on behalf of Government,
these items have been separately disclosed in Note 24 – Schedule of Territory Items.
(d)

Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative information for the 2012-13 financial year has been
reclassified to provide consistency with current year disclosures.
(e)

Presentation and Rounding of Amounts

Amounts in the financial statements and notes to the financial statements are presented in
Australian dollars and have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, with amounts of
$500 or less being rounded down to zero.
(f)

Changes in Accounting Policies

There have been no changes to accounting policies adopted in 2013-14 as a result of
management decisions.
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(g)

Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the financial report requires the making of judgements and estimates
that affect the recognised amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
Judgements and estimates that have significant effects on the financial statements are
disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Notes that include significant
judgements and estimates are:
•

Employee Benefits – Note 2(s) and Note 14: Non-current liabilities in respect of
employee benefits are measured as the present value of estimated future cash
outflows based on the appropriate Government bond rate, estimates of future salary
and wage levels and employee periods of service;

•

Contingent Liabilities – Note 20: The present value of material quantifiable contingent
liabilities are calculated using a discount rate based on the published 10-year
Government bond rate;

•

Doubtful Debts – Note 2(n) & Note 8: Receivables; and

•

Depreciation and Amortisation – Note 2(k), Note 10: Property, Plant and Equipment
and Note 11.

(h)

Goods and Services Tax

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services Tax
(GST), except where the amount of GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is
not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (ATO). In these circumstances the GST is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of
GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables
in the Balance Sheet.
Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis. The GST components
of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities, which are recoverable from, or
payable to, the ATO are classified as operating cash flows. Commitments and contingencies
are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable or payable unless otherwise specified.
(i)

Income Recognition

Income encompasses both revenue and gains.
Income is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, exclusive of the amount
of GST. Exchanges of goods or services of the same nature and value without any cash
consideration being exchanged are not recognised as income.
Grants and Other Contributions
Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions are recognised as revenue
when the Commission obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions. Control
is normally obtained upon receipt.
Contributions are recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services are only recognised
when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not
donated.
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Appropriation
Output Appropriation is the operating payment to each agency for the outputs they provide
and is calculated as the net cost of agency outputs after taking into account funding
from agency income. It does not include any allowance for major non-cash costs such as
depreciation.
Commonwealth appropriation follows from the Intergovernmental Agreement on Federal
Financial Relations, resulting in Special Purpose Payments (SPPs) and National Partnership
(NP) payments being made by the Commonwealth Treasury to state treasuries, in a manner
similar to arrangements for GST payments. These payments are received by Treasury on
behalf of the Central Holding Authority and then on passed to the relevant agencies as
Commonwealth appropriation.
Revenue in respect of appropriations is recognised in the period in which the Department
gains control of the funds.
Sale of Goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised (net of returns, discounts and allowances)
when:
•

the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have transferred to the
buyer;

•

the Commission retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

•

the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;

•

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the Commission; and

•

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured
reliably.

Rendering of Services
Revenue from rendering services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract. The revenue is recognised when:
•

the amount of revenue, stage of completion and transaction costs incurred can be
reliably measured; and

•

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the entity.

Goods and Services Received Free of Charge
Goods and services received free of charge are recognised as revenue when a fair value
can be reliably determined and the resource would have been purchased if it had not been
donated. Use of the resource is recognised as an expense.
Contributions of Assets
Contributions of assets and contributions to assist in the acquisition of assets, being
non-reciprocal transfers, are recognised, unless otherwise determined by Government, as
gains when the Commission obtains control of the asset or contribution. Contributions are
recognised at the fair value received or receivable.
(j)

Repairs and Maintenance Expense

Funding is received for repairs and maintenance works associated with Commission assets
as part of output revenue. Costs associated with repairs and maintenance works on
Department assets are expensed as incurred.
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(k)

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Items of property, plant and equipment, including buildings but excluding land, have limited
useful lives and are depreciated or amortised using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives.
Amortisation applies in relation to intangible non-current assets with limited useful lives and
is calculated and accounted for in a similar manner to depreciation.
The estimated useful lives for each class of asset are in accordance with the Treasurer’s
Directions and are determined as follows:
2014

2013

Buildings

50 Years

50 Years

Infrastructure Assets

8-50 Years

Plant and Equipment

10 Years

10 Years

Leased Plant and Equipment

3-5 Years

3-5 Years

Transport Equipment

10 Years

10 Years

Computer Hardware

3-6 Years

3-6 Years

Heritage and Cultural Assets

100 Years

100 Years

Intangibles – Computer Software

3-6 Years

3-6 Years

8-50 Years

Assets are depreciated or amortised from the date of acquisition or from the time an asset is
completed and held ready for use.
(l)

Cash and Deposits

For the purposes of the Balance Sheet and the Cash Flow Statement, cash includes cash
on hand, cash at bank and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are highly liquid short-term
investments that are readily convertible to cash. Cash at bank includes monies held in the
Accountable Officer’s Trust Account that are ultimately payable to the beneficial owner –
refer also to Note 22.
(m) Inventories
Inventories include assets held either for sale (general inventories) or for distribution at no or
nominal consideration in the ordinary course of business operations.
General inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, while those
held for distribution are carried at the lower of cost and current replacement cost. Cost of
inventories include all costs associated with bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. When inventories are acquired at no or nominal consideration, the cost will
be the current replacement cost at date of acquisition.
The cost of inventories are assigned using a mixture of first-in, first out or weighted average
cost formula or using specific identification of their individual costs.
Inventory held for distribution are regularly assessed for obsolescence and loss.
(n)

Receivables

Receivables include accounts receivable and other receivables and are recognised at fair
value less any allowance for impairment losses.
The allowance for impairment losses represents the amount of receivables the Department
estimates are likely to be uncollectible and are considered doubtful. Analysis of the age
of the receivables that are past due as at the reporting date are disclosed in an aging
schedule under credit risk in Note 18 Financial Instruments. Reconciliation of changes in the
allowance accounts is also presented.
Accounts receivable are generally settled within 30 days.
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(o)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Acquisitions
All items of property, plant and equipment with a cost, or other value, equal to or greater
than $10 000 are recognised in the year of acquisition and depreciated as outlined below.
Items of property, plant and equipment below the $10 000 threshold are expensed in the
year of acquisition.
The construction cost of property, plant and equipment includes the cost of materials and
direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads.
Complex Assets
Major items of plant and equipment comprising a number of components that have
different useful lives, are accounted for as separate assets. The components may be replaced
during the useful life of the complex asset.
Subsequent Additional Costs
Costs incurred on property, plant and equipment subsequent to initial acquisition are
capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the originally
assessed performance of the asset will flow to the Commission in future years. Where these
costs represent separate components of a complex asset they are accounted for as separate
assets and are separately depreciated over their expected useful lives.
Construction (Work in Progress)
As part of the financial management framework, the Department of Infrastructure is
responsible for managing general government capital works projects on a whole of
Government basis. Therefore appropriation for the Parks and Wildlife Commission of the
Northern Territory capital works is provided directly to the Department of Infrastructure
and the cost of construction work in progress is recognised as an asset of that Department.
Once completed, capital works assets are transferred to the Commission.
(p)

Revaluations and Impairment

Revaluation of Assets
Subsequent to initial recognition, assets belonging to the following classes of non-current
assets are re-valued with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of these
assets does not differ materially from their fair value at reporting date:
•

land;

•

buildings; and

•

infrastructure assets.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arms-length transaction.
Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation, which is deemed to
equate to fair value.
The unique nature of some of the heritage and cultural assets may preclude reliable
measurement. Such assets have not been recognised in the financial statements. Assets
recognised in the financial statements are stated at historical cost less depreciation, which is
deemed to equate fair value. Where differences exist, these are not material.
Impairment of Assets
An asset is said to be impaired when the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount.
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Non-current physical and intangible Department assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment on an annual basis. If an indicator of impairment exists, the Department
determines the asset’s recoverable amount. The asset’s recoverable amount is determined as
the higher of the asset’s depreciated replacement cost and fair value less costs to sell. Any
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded
as an impairment loss.
Impairment losses are recognised in the Comprehensive Operating Statement unless the
asset is carried at a re-valued amount. Where the asset is measured at a re-valued amount,
the impairment loss is offset against the Asset Revaluation Reserve for that class of asset to
the extent that an available balance exists in the Asset Revaluation Reserve.
In certain situations, an impairment loss may subsequently be reversed. Where an
impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in the Comprehensive Operating Statement as income, unless the asset is carried
at a re-valued amount, in which case the impairment reversal results in an increase in the
asset revaluation reserve. Note 16 provides additional information in relation to the asset
revaluation reserve.
(q)

Leased Assets

Leases under which the Department assumes substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of an asset are classified as finance leases. Other leases are classified as
operating leases.
Finance Leases
Finance leases are capitalised. A leased asset and a lease liability equal to the present value
of the minimum lease payments are recognised at the inception of the lease.
Lease payments are allocated between the principal component of the lease liability and the
interest expense.
Operating Leases
Operating lease payments made at regular intervals throughout the term are expensed
when the payments are due, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased property. Lease incentives under
an operating lease of a building or office space is recognised as an integral part of the
consideration for the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives are to be recognised as a
deduction of the lease expenses over the term of the lease.
(r)

Payables

Liabilities for accounts payable and other amounts payable are carried at cost, which is
the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received,
whether or not billed to the Commission. Accounts payable are normally settled within
30 days.
(s)

Employee Benefits

Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated as a result of employees rendering
services up to the reporting date. These benefits include wages and salaries and recreation
leave. Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, recreation leave and other
employee benefit liabilities that fall due within twelve months of reporting date are
classified as current liabilities and are measured at amounts expected to be paid. Noncurrent employee benefit liabilities that fall due after twelve months of the reporting date
are measured at present value, calculated using the Government long term bond rate.
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No provision is made for sick leave, which is non-vesting, as the anticipated pattern of
future sick leave to be taken is less than the entitlement accruing in each reporting period.
Employee benefit expenses are recognised on a net basis in respect of the following
categories:
1.

wages and salaries, non-monetary benefits, recreation leave, sick leave and other leave
entitlements; and

2.

other types of employee benefits.

As part of the financial management framework, the Central Holding Authority assumes
the long service leave liabilities of Government agencies, including the Parks and Wildlife
Department of the Northern Territory, and as such no long service leave liability is recognised
in the Department’s financial statements.
(t)

Superannuation

Employees’ superannuation entitlements are provided through the:
•

Northern Territory Government and Public Authorities Superannuation Scheme
(NTGPASS);

•

Commonwealth Superannuation Scheme (CSS); or

•

non-government employee nominated schemes for those employees commencing on
or after 10 August 1999.

•

The Commission makes superannuation contributions on behalf of its employees to
the Central Holding Authority or non-government employee nominated schemes.
Superannuation liabilities related to government superannuation schemes are held by
the Central Holding Authority and as such are not recognised in Commission financial
statements.

(u)

Contributions by and Distributions to Government

The Commission may receive contributions from Government where the Government is
acting as owner of the Commission. Conversely, the Commission may make distributions
to Government. In accordance with the Financial Management Act, and Treasurer’s
Directions, certain types of contributions and distributions, including those relating to
administrative restructures, have been designated as contributions by, and distributions
to, Government. These designated contributions and distributions are treated by the
Commission as adjustments to equity.
The Statement of Changes in Equity provide additional information in relation to
contributions by, and distributions to, Government.
(v)

Commitments

Disclosures in relation to capital and other commitments, including lease commitments are
shown at Note 19.
Commitments are those contracted as at 30 June where the amount of the future
commitment can be reliably measured.
(w) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and liabilities
are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument. The entity’s financial instruments include: cash and
deposits; receivables; payables; advances received; and deposits held.

NORTHERN TERRITORY GOVERNMENT

Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory

Annual Report 2013-14

93

Exposure to interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, credit risk, price risk and liquidity risk
arise in the normal course of activities. The entity’s investments, loans and placements, and
borrowings are predominantly managed through the NTTC and TIO adopting strategies to
minimise the risk. Derivative financial arrangements are also utilised to manage financial
risks inherent in the management of these financial instruments. These arrangements
include swaps, forward interest rate agreements and other hedging instruments to manage
fluctuations in interest or exchange rates.
Classification of Financial Instruments
AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures requires financial instruments to be classified and
disclosed within specific categories depending on their nature and purpose.
Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
•

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;

•

held-to-maturity investments;

•

loans and receivables; and

•

available-for-sale financial assets.

Financial liabilities are classified into the following categories:
•

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

•

financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Financial Assets or Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial instruments are classified as at FVTPL when the instrument is either held for
trading or is designated as at FVTPL.
An instrument is classified as held for trading if it is:
•

acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
term with an intention of making a profit; or

•

part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

•

a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument.

A financial instrument may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:
•

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

•

the instrument forms part of a group of financial instruments, which is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

•

it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and 		
AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits the contract
to be designated as at FVTPL.

Loans and Receivables
For details refer to Note 2 (n).
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
Amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method.
Note 18 provides additional information on financial instruments.
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(x)

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The highest and best use takes into account the use of the asset that is physically possible,
legally permissible and financially feasible.
When measuring fair value, the valuation techniques used maximise the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
used to the extent that sufficient relevant and reliable observable inputs are not available for
similar assets/liabilities.
Observable inputs are publicly available data that are relevant to the characteristics of the
assets/liabilities being valued. Observable inputs used by the Commission include, but are
not limited to, published sales data for land and general office buildings.
Unobservable inputs are data, assumptions and judgments that are not available publicly,
but are relevant to the characteristics of the assets/liabilities being valued. Such inputs
include internal Commission adjustments to observable data to take account of particular
and potentially unique characteristics/functionality of assets/liabilities and assessments of
physical condition and remaining useful life.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the following fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used:
Level 1 – inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 – inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3 – inputs are unobservable.

NORTHERN TERRITORY GOVERNMENT

Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory

Annual Report 2013-14

95

3. OPERATING STATEMENT BY OUTPUT
Parks, Wildlife and
Visitor Services

Corporate and
Governance

Shared Services
Received

Total

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

201

601

-

-

-

-

201

601

40 631

42 157

1 844

2 020

1 907

1 679

44 382

45 856

INCOME
Grants and subsidies revenue
Current
Appropriation
Output
Sales of goods and services

1 018

926

242

194

-

-

1 260

1 120

Goods and services received free of
charge (1)

1 552

1 357

116

101

-

-

1 668

1 458

123

120

2

-

-

-

125

120

43 525

45 161

2 204

2 315

1 907

1 679

47 636

49 155

15 151

16 591

1 549

1 071

-

-

16 700

17 662

10 746

13 928

905

629

1 907

1 679

13 558

16 236

6 036

5 535

216

83

-

-

6 252

5 618

3 704

2 981

279

757

-

-

3 983

3 738

1 552

1 359

122

101

-

-

1 674

1 460

972

1 132

-

-

-

-

972

1 132

7 842

7 915

-

-

-

-

7 842

7 915

Other income
TOTAL INCOME
EXPENSES
Employee expenses
Administrative expenses
Purchases of goods and services
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation and amortisation
Other administrative expenses

(1)

Grants and subsidies expenses
Current
Community Service Obligation

7

27

-

-

-

-

7

27

TOTAL EXPENSES

Loss on disposal of assets

46 010

49 468

3 071

2 641

1 907

1 679

50 988

53 788

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

(2 485)

(4 307)

(867)

(326)

-

-

(3 352)

(4 633)

1 Includes DCIS service charges.			
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2014
$’000

		

		
4.

2013
$’000

GOODS AND SERVICES RECEIVED FREE OF CHARGE			
Corporate and information services

1 668

1 458

			
5.

LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS			
Net proceeds from the disposal of non-current assets

-		

-

Less: Carrying value of non-current assets disposed

(7)

-

Loss on the disposal of non-current assets

(7)

-

				
6.

PURCHASES OF GOODS AND SERVICES			
The net (deficit) has been arrived at after charging the following expenses:
Goods and services expenses:			
Consultants (1)

19

103

Advertising

92

119

(2)

Marketing and promotion (3)

48

53

Document Production

19

27

280

1 819

23

29

Legal expenses (4)
Recruitment (5)
Training and study

166

173

Official duty fares

390

378

Travelling allowance

239

240

(1) Includes marketing, promotion and IT consultants.			
(2) Does not include recruitment advertising 			
(3) Excludes advertising for marketing and promotion
and marketing and promotion consultants’ expenses,
which are incorporated in the consultants’ category.
(4) Includes legal fees, claim and settlement costs. 			
(5) Includes recruitment related advertising costs.				

		
7.

CASH AND DEPOSITS			
Cash on hand
Cash at bank

		

4

4

1 206

1 354

1 210

1 358

		
8.
RECEIVABLES
Current			
Accounts receivable
Less: Allowance for impairment losses
		
GST receivables
Other receivables
Total Receivables
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217

81

217

81

277

166

76

21

570

268
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9.
INVENTORIES

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

General Inventories			
At cost

249

267

Total Inventories

249

267

3 353

3 423

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land

At Fair Value			
Buildings

139 395

133 017

At Fair Value

(64 678)

(61 610)

74 717

71 407

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Infrastructure

30 041

30 041

(17 062)

(16 452)

12 979

13 589

1 660

1 525

(1 095)

(1 007)

565

518

40

45

(40)

(45)

-

-

Transport Equipment Assets

1 373

1 322

At Fair Value

(913)

(800)

460

522

92 074

89 459

At Fair Value
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Plant and Equipment
At Fair Value
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Computer Equipment
At Fair Value
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment Valuations

The latest revaluation was undertaken by the Australian Valuation Office in June 2011. The
revaluation was performed as part of the Northern Territory Government five year rolling
revaluation program. Refer to Note 12 Fair Value Measurement of Non-Financial Assets for
additional disclosures
Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment
Commission property, plant and equipment assets were assessed for impairment as at
30 June 2014. No impairment adjustments were required as a result of this review.
Property, Plant and Equipment Reconciliations
A reconciliation of the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment at the beginning
and end of 2013-14 and 2012-13 is set out below:
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2013-14
Land

Buildings

Infrastructure

Plant &
Equipment

Transport
Equipment

Computer
Hardware

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

3 423

71 407

13 589

518

522

-

89 459

Additions

-

-

-

149

51

-

200

Disposals

-

-

-

(7)

-

-

(7)

(70)

6 475

-

-

-

-

6 405

-

(3 165)

(610)

(95)

(113)

-

(3 983)

3 353

74 717

12 979

565

460

-

92 074

Land

Buildings

Infrastructure

Plant &
Equipment

Transport
Equipment

Computer
Hardware

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

Carrying Amount
as at 1 July 2013

Additions/(Disposals)
from asset transfers
Depreciation and
amortisation
Carrying Amount as
at 30 June 2014

2012-13

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Carrying Amount
as at 1 July 2012

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Additions

-

-

-

170

88

-

258

3 423

74 321

14 203

448

544

-

92 939

-

(2 914)

(614)

(100)

(110)

-

(3 738)

Carrying Amount
as at 30 June 2013
3 423
71 407
			

13 589

518

522

-

89 459

			
11. HERITAGE AND CULTURAL ASSETS

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Additions/(Disposals)
from asset transfers
Depreciation and
amortisation

Carrying Amount				
At Valuation			

14

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

(3)

(3)

Written down value – 30 June		

11

11 				
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Impairment of Heritage and Cultural Assets
		

Department heritage and cultural assets were assessed for impairment as at 		
30 June 2014. No impairment adjustments were required as a result of this review.
Reconciliation of movements

		

Intangibles with a finite useful life			
Other intangibles				
Carrying Amount at 1 July		

11

-

Asset Transfer			

-

14

Depreciation and Amortisation		

-

(3)

11

11

Carrying Amount as at 30 June

12. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS		
(a)

Fair Value Hierarchy

			

Fair values of non-financial assets categorised by level of inputs used to compute fair
value are:					
2014				
Level 1
Level 2
		
$’000
$’000

Level 3
$’000

Total Fair
Value
$’000

Asset Classes				
Land (Note 10)		

-

-

3 353		

3 353

Buildings (Note 10)		

-

-

74 717		

74 717

Infrastructure (Note 10)		

-

-

12 979		

12 979

Total		

-

-

91 049		

91 049

					
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Levels 2 or 3 during the period.
(b)

Valuation Techniques and Inputs
				
Valuation techniques used to measure fair value are:				
						
Level 3
						
Techniques
Asset Classes			
Land				
Buildings				
Infrastructure				

Cost
Cost
Cost

The Commission’s land, buildings, infrastructure and heritage and cultural assets are subject
to the Department of Treasury’s revaluation model, which requires these classes of assets to
be revalued at least once every five years.
The Commission’s land, building and infrastructure are stated at their revalued amounts,
being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, including any additions or
modifications. The latest revaluation of these assets was performed by the Australian
Valuation Office as at 30 June 2011 which complies with the Department of Treasury’s
revaluation model.
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Level 3 fair values of land, buildings and infrastructure were determined by computing
their depreciated replacement costs because an active market does not exist for such assets
due to their unique nature and potential inherent restrictions upon use. The depreciated
replacement cost was based on a combination of internal records of the historical cost of
the assets, adjusted for contemporary pricing and construction approaches, the remaining
useful life of the assets, and current condition of the assets. The valuation technique will be
reviewed when the assets are revalued in accordance with the Department of Treasury’s next
revaluation rotation.

(c)

Additional information for Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

(i)

Reconciliation of Recurring Level 3 Fair Value Measurements		

		
		

Land
$’000

Buildings
$’000

Infrastructure
$’000

Fair value as at 1 July 2013

3 423

71 407

13 589

Additions		

-

Depreciation and amortisation

-

(3 165)

(610)

(70)

6 475

-

Fair value as at 30 June 2014

3 353

74 717

12 979

Unrealised gains/losses 		
recognised in net surplus/deficit

-

-

-

Additions/(Disposals) 		

-

-

from asset transfers

for assets held at the end of
the reporting period					
				
(ii)

Sensitivity analysis				

Asset Class			
Land, Buildings and Infrastructure

Sensitivity Analysis

Unobservable inputs used in computing the fair value
of these assets include the historical cost and the
consumed economic benefit for each asset. Given the
large number of assets, it is not practical to compute a
relevant summary measure for the unobservable inputs.
In respect of sensitivity of fair value to changes in input
value, a higher historical cost results in a higher fair
value and greater consumption of economic benefit
lowers fair value.

			
13. PAYABLES			

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Accounts payable			

318

154

Accrued expenses			

712

1 575

				
			

1 030
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14. PROVISIONS
		
2014
			
$’000
Current				

2013		
$’000		

Employee benefits				
		

Recreation leave		

1 367

1 445

		

Leave loading			

345

351

		
		

Other employee benefits		

29

38		

Other Current Provisions				
Other provisions (fringe benefits,
payroll tax and superannuation)

364

376

				

2 105

2 210

Non-Current				
Employee Benefits				
Recreation leave			

958

1 139

Total Provisions			

3 063

3 349

				
Reconciliation of Provisions
Balance as at 1 July		

3 349

-

Additional provisions recognised

1 771

3 674

Reductions arising from payments

(2 057)

(325)

3 063

3 349 		

Balance as at 30 June		
		

The Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory employed 223 employees as at
30 June 2014 (246 employees as at 30 June 2013).				

				
15. OTHER LIABILITIES		
Current				
Deposits Held - Accountable officers		
trust account and clearing accounts
488

530

Unearned Revenue			

100

-

Total Other Liabilities		

588

530

							
16. EQUITY				
Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Commission.
The Government’s ownership interest in the Commission is held in the Central Holding
Authority as described in note 2(c).
Capital			
Balance as at 1 July
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84 127

-

Capital appropriation		

260

382

Equity transfers in – assets		

6 791

104 653

Equity Withdrawal			

-

(4 805)

Equity transfers out – assets		

-

(17 357)

Other equity injections		

-

1 254

Balance as at 30 June 		

91 178

84 127
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Reserves 			
Asset Revaluation Reserve 			
The asset revaluation reserve includes the net revaluation increments and decrements
arising from the revaluation of non-current assets. Impairment adjustments may also
be recognised in the Asset Revaluation Reserve.
					
			

2014
$’000

Balance as at 1 July

2013		
$’000

6 387

-

Increment – land asset transfer		

-

351

Increment – buildings asset transfer

-

6 036

6 387

6 387

Balance as at 30 June		
					
Accumulated Funds

			

Balance as at 1 July 		

(4 633)

-

(Deficit) for the period 		

(3 352)

(4 633)

Balance as at 30 June		

(7 985)

(4 633)

					
17. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Reconciliation of Cash				
The total of Commission Cash and Deposits of $1.21 million recorded in the Balance
Sheet is consistent with that recorded as ‘cash’ in the Cash Flow Statement.
Reconciliation of Net (Deficit) to Net Cash From Operating Activities
Net (Deficit)			

(3 352)

(4 633)

3 983

3 738

Non-Cash Items:				
Depreciation and amortisation		
Loss on disposal of assets		
Repairs & maintenance non cash

7

-

386

499

Changes in assets and liabilities:			
Decrease/(Increase) in receivables

(302)

(268)

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories

18

(33)

(Increase) in prepayments 		
(Decrease)/Increase in payables
(Decrease)/Increase in other provisions

(21)

(126)

(699)

1 729

(12)

376

(Decrease)/Increase in employment benefits

(274)

2 973

Increase in other liabilities		

100

-

Net Cash (Used in)/From Operating Activities

(166)

4 255
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS			
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments held by
the Commission include cash and deposits, receivables, payables and deposits payable.
The Commission has limited exposure to financial risks as discussed below.
The carrying amounts of the Commission’s financial assets and liabilities by category
are disclosed in the table below.
(a)

Categorisation of Financial Instruments			

				
				
		
Financial Assets

2014
$’000

2013
$’000		

		

Cash and deposits

1 210

1 358

		

Loans and receivables

				

217

81

1 427

1 439

		

Liabilities				

		

Amortised cost

(b)

		

Credit Risk

1 109

1 724

The Commission has limited credit risk exposure (risk of default). In respect of any
dealings with organisations external to Government, the Commission has adopted
a policy of only dealing with credit worthy organisations and obtaining sufficient
collateral or other security where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of
financial loss from defaults.
Additionally, the nature of the Commission’s revenue is such that if the debtor was
to default on the debt it would cause them to suffer a business impact through the
Commission’s ability to discontinue permits etc. until financial obligations are met.
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any
allowances for losses, represents the Commission’s maximum exposure to credit risk
without taking account of the value of any collateral or other security obtained.
Receivables			
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure that exposure to bad
debts is not significant. A reconciliation and aging analysis of receivables is presented
below.
Internal Receivables		
				

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Aging of Receivables				
Not Overdue			
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41

Overdue for less than 30 Days		

-

-

Overdue for 30 to 60 Days		

-

-

Overdue for more than 60 Days

-

-

Total Gross Receivables		
		

51

Aging of Impaired Receivables

104

51

41 		

		

Impaired Receivables for more than 60 Days

-

-

Total Impaired Receivables		

-

-
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Reconciliation of the Allowance for
Impairment Losses		

2014
$’000

2013
$’000		

Allowance for Impairment Losses at the
Beginning of the Reporting Period

-

-

(Decrease)/Increase in allowance
recognised in profit or loss		

-

-

Allowance for Impairment Losses at the
End of the Reporting Period		

-

-

External Receivables				
Aging of Receivables				
Not Overdue			

120

18

Overdue for less than 30 Days		

32

20

Overdue for 30 to 60 Days		

-

1

Overdue for more than 60 Days

14

1

Total Gross Receivables		

166

40

					
Aging of Impaired Receivables			
Impaired Receivables for more than 60 Days

-

-

Total Impaired Receivables		

-

-

					
Reconciliation of the Allowance
for Impairment Losses

(c)

Allowance for Impairment Losses
at the Beginning of the Reporting Period

-

-

(Decrease)/Increase in allowance
recognised in profit or loss		

-

-

Allowance for Impairment Losses
at the End of the Reporting Period

-

-

Liquidity Risk			
Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due.
The Commission’s liquidity risk includes credit cards which are managed with tight
controls and low limits. Credit card use and limits are reviewed regularly.
The following tables detail the undiscounted cash flows payable by the Commission
by remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. It should be noted that as
these are undiscounted and totals may not reconcile to carrying amounts presented in
the Balance Sheet.
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Maturity analysis for financial assets and liabilities		
				
2014		
		
		

Non Interest Bearing

Variable 			
Interest
1 Year
2 Year
$’000
$’000
$’000

Cash and deposits

39

1 171

-

1 210

-

217

-

217

39

1 388

-

1 427

-

488

Receivables
Total Financial Assets

Carrying
Amount
$’000

					
Liabilities				
Deposits Payable

39

Payables
Total Financial Liabilities

449

-

621

-

621

39

1 070

-

1 109

Maturity analysis for financial assets and liabilities			
			
2013		
		
		
Cash and deposits
Receivables
Total Financial Assets
		

Non Interest Bearing

Variable			
Interest
1 Year
2 Year
$’000
$’000
$’000

Carrying
Amount
$’000

38

1 320

-

-

81

-

1 358
81

38

1 401

-

1 439

		

Liabilities				
Deposits Held
Payables
Total Financial Liabilities
(d)

38

492

-

530

-

1 194

-

1 194

38

1 686

-

1 724

Market Risk			
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate due to changes in market prices. It comprises interest rate risk, price
risk and currency risk. The primary market risk that the Commission is exposed to is
interest rate risk.
i.
Interest Rate Risk
The Commission has no exposure to interest rate risk as all financial assets and
financial liabilities, with the exception of the Gift Fund held, are non-interest bearing.
Changes to the variable rates of 100 basis points (1%) at reporting date would have
had no effect on the Commission’s profit or loss and equity as interest earned on the
Gift Fund is accounted for as both an asset and a liability.
ii.
Price Risk
The Commission is not exposed to price risk as the Commission does not hold units in
unit trusts.
iii. Currency Risk
The Commission is not exposed to currency risk as the Commission does not hold
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies or transactional currency exposures
arising from purchases in a foreign currency.
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(e)

Net Fair Value
The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial
statements approximates to their respective net fair values. Where differences exist,
these are not material.

					
19. COMMITMENTS
		
				
(i)

2014				 2013
$’000				 $’000
Internal External

Internal External

Other Expenditure Commitments						
Other non-cancellable expenditure
commitments not recognised as liabilities
are payable as follows:						
Within one year		

-		

944		

Later than one year and
not later than five years		

-		
-

			
(ii)

Operating Lease Commitments

-

433

355

			-

780

1 299

-

1 213

						

The Commission leases property
under non-cancellable operating
leases expiring from 1 to 5 years.
Leases generally provide the
Commission with a right of renewal
at which time all lease terms are
renegotiated. The Commission also
leases items of plant and equipment
under non-cancellable operating
leases. Future operating lease
commitments not recognised as
liabilities are payable as follows: 						
Within one year			

-		

1 409		

-

1 872

Later than one year and
not later than five years		

-		

1 859

-

2 121

				

-		

3 268 		

-

3 993

							
20. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS		
(a) Contingent liabilities

		

The Commission is currently involved in one claim but due to the uncertainty of any
potential liability, no value can be attributed to this claim. There were no claims as at
30 June 2013			
(b) Contingent assets			
The Commission had no contingent assets as at 30 June 2014 or 30 June 2013.		
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21. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE SHEET DATE
No events have arisen between the end of the financial year and the date of this
report that require adjustment to, or disclosure in these financial statements.
22. ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER’S TRUST ACCOUNT
In accordance with section 7 of the Financial Management Act, an Accountable
Officer’s Trust Account has been established for the receipt of money to be held in
trust. A summary of activity is shown below:
Opening
Nature of Trust Money			
Balance
Receipts Payments
1 July 2013
$’000
$’000

Closing
Balance
30 June 2014

Bond money			

10

9

12

7

Security deposits			

94

13

7

100

7

13

5

15

111

35

24

122

Other Money			

23. WRITE-OFFS, POSTPONEMENT, WAIVERS GIFTS AND EX GRATIA PAYMENTS
Commission
2014
$’000

Commission

No. of
Trans

2013
$’000

Write-offs, Postponements and Waivers Under the
Financial Management Act
				

Territory Items

Territory Items

No. of
Trans

2014
$’000

No. of
Trans

2013
$’000

No. of
Trans

1

-

-

-

-

Represented by:						
Amounts written off, waived and postponed by Delegates			
Irrecoverable amounts payable to the Territory or an Agency written off

-

-

2

Losses or deficiencies of money written off		

6

14

-

-

-

-

-

-

Public property written off

7

2

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total written off, waived and postponed by Delegates		 13
18
2
1
										
Amounts written off, waived and postponed by Treasurer
Irrecoverable amounts payable to the Territory or an Agency written off
Wavier or postponement of right to receive or recover money or property		

-

-

24

1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

24

1

-

-

-

-

Gifts Under the Financial Management Act		

-

-

-

-

Ex Gratia Payments Under the Financial Management Act

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total written off, waived and postponed by Treasurer		
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24. SCHEDULE OF TERRITORY ITEMS			
The following Territory items are managed by the Commission on behalf of the
Government and are recorded in the Central Holding Authority (refer note 2(c)).
				
TERRITORY INCOME AND EXPENSES

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Income				
Grants and subsidies revenue				
Capital 				
Fees from regulatory services		

-

4

Royalties and rents			

20

12

Fines			

-

-

Total Income			

20

16

					
Expenses				
Central Holding Authority income transferred

20

16

Total Expenses			

20

16

-

-

				
Territory Income less Expenses
		

		

TERRITORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Assets				
Royalties and rent receivable		

1

-

Total Assets			

1

-

Central Holding Authority income payable

1

-

Total Liabilities			

1

-

				
Net Assets			

-

-

		

Liabilities				
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TERRITORY WILDLIFE PARKS FINANCIAL STATEMENT OVERVIEW	 
This section of the report provides an overview of the financial activities of Territory Wildlife
Parks for the year ended 30 June 2014.
Territory Wildlife Parks is a Government Business Division (GBD) responsible for managing
the Territory Wildlife Park (TWP) at Berry Springs and the Alice Springs Desert Park
(ASDP). As a GBD, Territory Wildlife Parks are required to pay the full cost of resources
used (including tax equivalents), set efficient prices based on costs, and operate under
appropriate commercial accounting and management structures.
The key responsibility of both parks is to showcase the Northern Territory’s unique flora and
fauna in a natural environment that is inviting and interesting for the visiting public. The
Parks experience enables people to understand, respect and enjoy the Territory’s natural
environments.

Financial Performance
In 2013-14 the Territory Wildlife Parks reported a net operating loss of $2.1 million, or an
adjusted loss of $0.3 million prior to charging non-cash depreciation of $1.8 million. This
compares to a budgeted profit before depreciation of $0.1 million.

Net Operating Result Summary
2013-14		
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TWP
$’000

ASDP
$’000

Total
$’000

Income		

5 199

5 235

10 434

Expenses		

(6 846)

(5 716)

12 562

Net Loss		

(1 647)

(481)

(2 128)

Net (Loss)/Profit before		
depreciation

(638)

312

(326)

Parks and Wildlife Commission of the Northern Territory
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Income
The Park’s primary source of income is from the Northern Territory Government in the form
of a Community Service Obligation (CSO) payment. CSO’s allow the Government to achieve
identifiable community or social objectives which would not be achieved if outcomes were
purely commercially delivered. The non-commercial functions carried out by the TWPS are
biodiversity conservation, education, botanical gardens management, tourism growth and
development.
CSO funding of $7.8 million was received in 2013-14 in accordance with budget.
Income from entry fees of $1.8 million was $0.2 million higher than the previous year, due
to increases in visitor numbers in both Parks. The total visitor numbers for 2013-14 were
115 877, an increase of 11 700 visitors in comparison to the previous year (104 177 for
2012-13).
Income from Park tours, functions, café and gift shop increased by $0.1 million
predominately represented by increase in sales in the café at the Territory Wildlife Park.
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Table A illustrates the five year trend in income streams and the 2013-14 budget.
Table A
5 Year Trend Analysis
$’000’s

Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual Budget
2009–10 2010–11 2011–12 2012–13 2013–14 2013-14

Revenue
Community Service Obligation

7 915

7 915

9 418*

7 915

7 842

7 842

Entry Fees

1 644

1 576

1 465

1 576

1 748

1 799

Park Tours, Functions & Camp
Fees

82

109

90

78

159

40

Café & Gift Shop

19

281

401

408

527

400

151

107

154

111

148

99

9,810

9,988

11,527

10,088

10,434

10,180

140 854

129 933

116 954

104 177

115 877

$11.67

$12.13

$12.52

$15.13

$15.17

Other
Revenue Total
Visitor Numbers
Entry Fee Per Visitor

* One off funding received for repairs and maintenance in 2011-12.

Expenses
Operating the Territory Wildlife Parks in 2013-14 cost $12.6 million, $0.6 million more than budget
and $0.6 million more than 2012-13. The budget overspend is predominately due to rising running
costs at Territory Wildlife Park at Berry Springs (TWP).
Employee expenses
Employee costs represent 48.2 percent of total expenditure. In 2013-14, employee expenses
increased by 4.1 percent or $0.2 million more than the prior year. This was due to an increase in
staff numbers at TWP to fill long term vacancies.
Goods and Services Expenses
The purchase of goods and services to operate the Parks’ represents 32.1 percent of total
expenditure at a cost of $4 million, $0.2 million higher than budget. Additional expenditure in
2013-14 on café stock was offset by higher than anticipated café revenue.
Repairs and Maintenance
The repairs and maintenance program for the Parks of $0.7 million was fully expended during the
year.
Depreciation
Depreciation is the allocation of an asset’s cost over its useful life. In 2013-14 depreciation remained
constant with the previous year at $1.8 million, $0.1 million less than budget. Depreciation costs
represent 14 percent of total expenditure.
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Table B below illustrates the trends by category for the last five years and the 2013-14
budget.
Table B
5 year Trend Analysis
$’000

Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual
Actual Budget
2009–10 2010–11 2011–12 2012–13 2013–14 2013-14

Expenses
Employee Expenses

6 286

6 535

6 321

5 820

6 057

5 577

Purchase of Goods and
Services

3 998

3 733

3 910

3 831

4 026

3 778

666

690

1 882

532

666

677

-

308

2

-

-

-

1 922

1 678

1 719

1 759

1 802

1 918

46

( 31)

( 12)

-

11

11

12 918

12 913

13 821

11 942

12 562

11 961

Repairs and
Maintenance Program
Natural Disaster Repairs
and Maintenance
Depreciation
Other Expenses
Expenses Total
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Balance Sheet
The Balance Sheet provides a summary of Territory Wildlife Parks’ balances at the end of the
financial year for assets, liabilities and equity.

Assets
The Territory Wildlife Parks maintain a significant asset base with $36.4 million controlled
assets at 30 June 2014.
The largest asset group is physical buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment with a
value of $35.9 million. An increase in the value of the asset base of $11.9 million over the
prior year relates to:
•

$12.8 million as a result of the re-valuation of buildings and infrastructure during the
year; and

•

$0.9 million transferred into the GBD for completed capital works on buildings.

Offset by:
•

$1.8 million in depreciation.

The balance of assets consists of:
•

Cash balances of $0.3 million, representing cash held in a Financial Institution and,
petty cash and floats;

•

Receivables of $0.2 million representing the amount that is owed to the Territory
Wildlife Parks for goods and services provided and delivered;

•

Inventory of $43 000 representing stock on hand for retail and café facilities; and

•

Buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment of $35.9 million.

Liabilities
Territory Wildlife Parks’ liabilities total $1.3 million as at 30 June 2014.
The $1.3 million liability balance consists of:
•

Deposits held of $67 000 being money held in the TWP’S gift fund account;

•

Payables of $0.5 million representing the amount owing to creditors for goods and
services purchased and received; and

•

Provisions for employee entitlements of $0.8 million, such as recreation leave,
leave loading and leave fares to reflect the cost in present day dollars of employee
entitlements to be paid in the future.

Equity
Equity is Territory Wildlife Parks net worth, that is, ‘what we own’ (total assets of
$36.4 million) less ‘what we owe’ (total liabilities of $1.3 million). Equity as at 		
30 June 2014 is $35.1 million, an increase of $11.5 million over the previous year. This
result is a combination of $0.9 million transferred into the GBD for completed infrastructure
works, $12.8 million recognised as a result of the re-valuation of buildings and
infrastructure, offset by the 2013-14 operating loss of $2.1 million.
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Table C illustrates the 5 year trend for net assets/equity.
Table C
Net Asset Trend
$000’s

Actual
2009-10

Actual
2010-11

Actual
2011-12

Actual
2012-13

Actual
2013-14

Assets

33 333

27 670

26 152

24 757

36 424

Liabilities

(2 122)

(3 956)

(1 417)

(1 195)

(1 334)

Net Assets/Equity

31 211

23 714

24 735

23 562

35 090

Statement of Changes in Equity
This statement expands on the increase in equity of $11.5 million by the capital, reserves
and accumulated funds.
Capital relates to cash or assets that have been transferred directly into or out of the GBD
by Government.
Movements in capital of $0.8 million in 2013-14 relates to completed infrastructure works.
Reserves reflect any changes in asset values that have occurred over time. GBD assets are
revalued every three years to ensure they remain current.
Movement in reserves of $12.8 million in 2013-14 relates to the increase in value of
buildings and infrastructure as a result of the revaluation undertaken during the year.
Accumulated funds are the total profit or loss for the GBD since creation and are adjusted
each year according to operating result. In 2013-14, accumulated funds reduced by
$2.1 million reflecting the 2013-14 net loss as reported in the Comprehensive Operating
Statement.

Cash Flow Statement
The Cash Flow statement provides information on how the cash was received and spent
during the year.
The Territory Wildlife Parks’ cash balances were $0.3 million at 30 June 2014.
The cash flows are summarised as follows:
					
					

2012-13
$’000

2013-14
$’000

Cash received			

10 499

10 860

Less Cash spent			

(10 840)

(11 065)

Net Decrease in Cash Held		

(341)

(205)

Cash at Beginning of Financial Year		

813

472

Cash at End of Financial Year		

472

267
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CERTIFICATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We certify that the attached financial statements for Territory Wildlife Parks have been
prepared from proper accounts and records in accordance with the prescribed format, the
Financial Management Act and Treasurer’s Directions.
We further state that the information set out in the Comprehensive Operating Statement,
Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement, and notes to and
forming part of the financial statements, presents fairly the financial performance and cash
flows for the year ended 30 June 2014 and the financial position on that date.
At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render the
particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.
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Andrew Bridges				
Chief Executive Officer			
30 September 2014				

Joanna Frankenfeld
Chief Financial Officer
30 September 2014
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TERRITORY WILDLIFE PARKS
COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT
For the year ended 30 June 2014

				
NOTE		
						

2014		
$’000		

2013
$’000

INCOME							
Grants and Subsidies Revenue					
Community Service Obligations			

7 842		

7 915

Sale of Goods and Services			

2 564		

2 154

Interest Revenue				

11		

15

Other Income 			
TOTAL INCOME 		

3		

17

4

10 434

10 088

EXPENSES 							
Employee Expenses
Administrative Expenses				

6 057		

5 820

Purchases of Goods and Services

5		

4 692		

4 363

Depreciation and Amortisation

9		

1 802		

1 759

Other Administration Expenses			

6		

(1)

-		

-

Interest Expenses			
4		

5

1

TOTAL EXPENSES				
				

Loss on Disposal of Asset		

12 562

11 942

NET (DEFICIT)		

(2 128)

(1 854)

14		

		

Other Comprehensive Income					
Asset Revaluation				
COMPREHENSIVE RESULT

14		

12 783
10 655

(1 854)

The Comprehensive Operating Statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the
financial statements.
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TERRITORY WILDLIFE PARKS
BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 June 2014
				
NOTE		
						

2014		
$’000		

2013
$’000

ASSETS
Current Assets					
Cash and Deposits		

6		

267		

472

Receivables		

7		

192		

202

Inventories		

8		

43		

37

25

10

Prepayments				
Total Current Assets				

527		

721

Non-Current Assets				
9		

35 897

24 037

Total Non-Current Assets			

Property, Plant and Equipment

35 897

24 037

TOTAL ASSETS				

36 424

24 758

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities					
Deposits Held		

13		

67		

62

Payables 		

11		

471		

321

Provisions		

12		

622

619

Total Current Liabilities				

1 160

1 002

12		

174

194

Total Non-Current Liabilities			

174

194

TOTAL LIABILITIES				

1 334

1 196

NET ASSETS				

35 090

23 562

21 751		

20 878

Non-Current Liabilities					
Provisions		

EQUITY			
Capital				
Reserves				

31 529		

18 746

Accumulated Funds				

(18 190)

(16 062)

TOTAL EQUITY		

35 090

23 562

14		

The Balance Sheet is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
Equity at 1
July

For the year ended 30 June 2014
2013-14

Note
		

Accumulated Funds			
				

Transactions
with owners in
Comprehensive their capacity as
Result
owners

$’000
				

14

(16 062)		

$’000

$’000

(2 128)		

Reserves
			 14
						
Asset Revaluation Reserve				
18 746		 12 783		
					
Capital – Transactions with Owners
14		 15 790		
-		
Equity Injections – Asset Transfers In					

Equity at
30 June

-

$’000
(18 190)

					
-		
31 529		
-

15 790

1 888		

-		

Other Equity Injections					

3 200		

-		

-		

3 200

						

20 878		

-		

873		

21 751

						

873		

2 761

									

TOTAL EQUITY AT 30 JUNE				

23 562		

10 655		

873		

35 090

									

Equity at 1
July
Note

2012-13
Accumulated Funds			

14

Reserves			

14

Transactions
with owners in
Comprehensive their capacity as
Result
owners

$’000

$’000

(14 208)

(1 854)

				

Asset Revaluation Reserve				

Equity at
30 June

$’000

$’000

-

(16 062)

							

18 746

-

-

18 746
15 790

Capital –Transactions with owners

14		

15 790

-

-

Equity Injections – Asset Transfers In		

		

1 207

-

681

Other Equity Injections					

3 200

-

-

3 200

							

20 197

-

681

20 878

TOTAL EQUITY AT 30 JUNE		

24 735

681

23 562

(1 854)

		

1 888

This Statement of Changes in Equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 30 June 2014
					
NOTE
							
							
						

2014		
$’000		
(Outflows) /
Inflows

2013
$’000
(Outflows)/
Inflows

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES					
Operating Receipts					
Grants and Subsidies Received					
Community Service Obligation				
Receipts From Sales of Goods And Services			

7 842			 7 915
3 002			

2 560

Interest Received					

11

18

Total Operating Receipts				

10 855

10 493

Operating Payments					
Payments to Employees					

(6 029)		 (5 936)

Payments for Goods and Services				

(5,025)

Total Operating Payments

			

Net Cash Used In Operating Activities

15		

(4 904)

(11 054)
(199)

(10 840)
		

(347)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES					
Investing Payments					
Purchases of Assets			

9		

(11) 		

-

Total Investing Payments				

(11) 		

-

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities			

(11) 		

-

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES					
Financing Receipts			
Deposits Received					

5		

6

Equity Injections					

-

-

Total Financing Receipts				

5

6

Net Cash from Financing Activities			

5

6

Net Decrease in Cash Held				

(205)		

(341)

Cash at Beginning of Financial Year				

472

813

CASH AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR

267

472

6		

The Cash Flow Statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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TERRITORY WILDLIFE PARKS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014
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1.

OBJECTIVES AND FUNDING

Territory Wildlife Parks is a Government Business Division responsible for managing the
Territory Wildlife Park at Berry Springs and the Alice Springs Desert Park. A key responsibility
of both Parks is to showcase the Northern Territory’s unique flora and fauna in a natural
environment that is interactive and interesting for the visiting public, provides recreational
opportunities and promotes biodiversity conservation principles. The Parks experience
enables people to understand, respect and enjoy the Territory’s natural environments.
Territory Wildlife Parks established under the Financial Management Act (1995), is subject
to the direction of the Minister for Parks and Wildlife. Territory Wildlife Parks is partially
funded by Northern Territory Government in recognition that it carries out activities on a
non-commercial basis. Such partial funding is termed ‘Community Service Obligation’ and
this funding is reflected in the Comprehensive Operating Statement (also refer to Note 18).
These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis in the expectation that
such funding will continue.
TWPS is finalising an alternative operating model which is partly to address liquidity issues
and it continues to meet all debts as they fall due.

2.

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Financial Management Act, and related Treasurer’s Directions. The Financial
Management Act, requires Territory Wildlife Parks to prepare financial statements for the
year ended 30 June based on the form determined by the Treasurer. The form of the Entity’s
financial statements is to include:
(i)

a Certification of the Financial Statements;

(ii)

a Comprehensive Operating Statement;

(iii)

a Balance Sheet;

(iv)

a Statement of Changes in Equity;

(v)

a Cash Flow Statement; and

(vi)

applicable explanatory notes to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, which
recognises the effect of financial transactions and events when they occur, rather than
when cash is paid out or received.
Except where stated, the financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with
the historical cost convention.
The financial statements are also consistent with the requirements of Australian Accounting
Standards. The effects of all relevant new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued
by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are effective for the current
annual reporting period have been evaluated. The Standards and Interpretations and their
impacts are:
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 20107, 101, 102, 108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 138,
139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 1038 and Interpretations 2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 &
132].
AASB 13 replaces the guidance on fair value measurement in existing AASB accounting
literature with a single standard. It defines the definition of fair value, provides guidance on
how to determine fair value and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. With
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some exceptions, the standard requires entities to classify these measurements into a fair
value hierarchy based on the nature of the inputs. Additional disclosures following from the
standard are included in the notes to the financial statements.
AASB 119 Employee Benefits (2011), AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (2011) [AASB 1, 8, 101, 124, 134, 1049
& 2011-8 and Interpretation 14].
AASB 119 amends the definition of short-term employee benefits and the accounting for
defined superannuation obligations. The standards do not impact the financial statements.
AASB CF 2013-1 Amendments to the Australian Conceptual Framework, AASB
2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework,
Materiality and Financial Instruments
AASB CF 2013-1 incorporates Chapters 1 and 3 of the IASB’s Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting into the AASB Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements. It also withdraws SAC 2 Objective of General Purpose Financial
Reporting. The standards do not impact the financial statements.
AASB 2012-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual
Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle [AASB 1, 101, 116, 132 & 134 and Interpretation 2].
The standard amends a number of pronouncements as a result of the 2009-2011 annual
improvements cycle. In particular, amendments to AASB 101 Presentation of Financial
Statements clarify requirements for comparative information, and amendments to AASB
116 Property, Plant and Equipment clarify classification of servicing equipment. The
standard does not impact the financial statements.
(b)

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations Issued but not yet
Effective

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the Standards and Interpretations
listed below were in issue but not yet effective.
AASB 9 Financial Instruments (Dec 2010), AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (Dec 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101,
102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and
Interpretations 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127], AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards – Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition
Disclosures [AASB 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 2011-7 & 2011-8], AASB 2013-9 Amendments
to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, Materiality and
Financial Instruments
AASB 9 incorporates revised requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial instruments resulting from the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement). Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 		
1 January 2017.
AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting
This standard sets out budgetary reporting requirements for not-for-profit entities within the
General Government Sector. Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 		
1 January 2014.
AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets
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Addresses disclosures about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is
based on fair value less costs of disposal. Effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014.
The Territory Wildlife Parks anticipate that the standards will have no material impact on the
financial statements in future periods.
(c)

Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative information for the 2012-13 financial year has been
reclassified to provide consistency with current year disclosures
(d)

Presentation and Rounding of Amounts

Amounts in the financial statements and notes to the financial statements are presented in
Australian dollars and have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, with amounts of
$500 or less being rounded down to zero.
(e)

Changes in Accounting Policies

There have been no changes to accounting policies adopted in 2013-14 as a result of
management decisions.
(f)

Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the financial report requires the making of judgements and estimates
that affect the recognised amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
Judgements and estimates that have significant effects on the financial statements are
disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Notes that include significant
judgements and estimates are:
•
Employee Benefits – Note 2(t) and Note 12: Non-current liabilities in respect of
employee benefits are measured as the present value of estimated future cash outflows
based on the appropriate Government bond rate, estimates of future salary and wage levels
and employee periods of service.
•
Contingent Liabilities – Note 19: The present value of material quantifiable contingent
liabilities are calculated using a discount rate based on the published 10-year Government
bond rate.
•

Doubtful Debts – Note 2(o) & Note 7: Receivables.

•

Depreciation and Amortisation – Note 2(k), Note 9: Property, Plant and Equipment.

(g)

Goods and Services Tax

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services Tax
(GST), except where the amount of GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is
not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (ATO). In these circumstances the GST is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.
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Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of
GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables
in the Balance Sheet.
Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis. The GST components
of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities, which are recoverable from, or
payable to, the ATO are classified as operating cash flows. Commitments and contingencies
are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable or payable unless otherwise specified.
(h)

Taxation

The entity is required to pay income tax on its accounting profit, excluding extraordinary
items, at the company rate of 30 per cent in accordance with the requirements of the
Treasurer’s Directions and the NT Tax Equivalent Regime. The entity does not have a present
income tax liability as it has incurred a loss for income tax purposes and has not taken to
account any future income tax benefits arising from this loss as the potential future income
tax benefit is not probable.
The future income tax benefits will only be realised if:
(i)

the entity derives future assessable income of a nature and amount sufficient to 		
enable the benefit to be realised;

(ii)

the entity continues to comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed by the 		
Treasurer’s Directions; and

(iii)

there are no changes to the NT Tax Equivalent Regime that adversely affects the entity.

(i)

Income Recognition

Income encompasses both revenue and gains.
Income is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, exclusive of the amount
of GST. Exchanges of goods or services of the same nature and value without any cash
consideration being exchanged are not recognised as income.
Grants and Other Contributions
Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions are recognised as income
when the entity obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions. Control is
normally obtained upon receipt.
Contributions are recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services are only
recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would be
purchased if not donated.
Community Service Obligation
Community Service Obligation funding is received from the Northern Territory Government
when an entity is required to carry out activities on a non-commercial basis. Income in
respect of this funding is recognised in the period in which it accrues. Refer also to Note 18.
Sale of Goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised (net of returns, discounts and allowances)
when:
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•

the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have transferred to the
buyer;

•

the Entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

•

the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
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•

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the Entity; and

•

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured
reliably.

Rendering of Services
Revenue from rendering services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract. The revenue is recognised when:
•

the amount of revenue, stage of completion and transaction costs incurred can be
reliably measured; and

•

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the entity.

Interest Revenue
Interest Revenue is recognised as it accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the
financial asset.
Disposal of Assets
A gain or loss on disposal of assets is included as a gain or loss on the date control of the
asset passes to the buyer, usually when an unconditional contract of sale is signed. The
gain or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset at the time of disposal and the net proceeds on disposal. Refer also to Note 4.
Contributions of Assets
Contributions of assets and contributions to assist in the acquisition of assets, being nonreciprocal transfers, are recognised, unless otherwise determined by Government, as gains
when Territory Wildlife Parks obtains control of the asset or contribution. Contributions are
recognised at the fair value received or receivable.
(j)

Repairs and Maintenance Expenses

Costs associated with repairs and maintenance works on the entity’s assets are expensed as
incurred.
(k)

Depreciation and Amortisation

Items of property, plant and equipment, including buildings but excluding land, have limited
useful lives and are depreciated or amortised using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful lives for each class of asset are in accordance with the Treasurer’s
Directions and are determined as follows:
					

2014

2013

Buildings			

20-50 Years

20-50 Years

Infrastructure Assets			

10 Years

10 Years

Plant and Equipment			

5 Years

5 Years

Computer Hardware			

3-6 Years

3-6 Years

Transport Equipment			

5 Years

5 Years

Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or from the time an asset is completed
and held ready for use. Assets may be constructed internally, acquired assets may have
modifications and accessories installed, and equipment may be calibrated and tested,
affecting the date the asset is held ready for use. Refer also to Note 9.
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(l)

Interest Expenses

Interest expenses include interest and finance lease charges. Interest expenses are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.
(m) Cash and Deposits
For the purposes of the Balance Sheet and the Cash Flow Statement, cash includes cash
on hand, cash at bank and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are highly liquid short-term
investments that are readily convertible to cash. Cash at bank includes monies held in
Accountable Officer’s Trust Account (AOTA) that are ultimately payable to the beneficial
owner. Refer also to Note 21.
(n)

Inventories

General inventories are all inventories other than those held for distribution and are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories includes all costs associated
with bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. When inventories are
acquired at no or nominal consideration, the cost will be the current replacement cost at
date of acquisition.
Inventories held for distribution are those inventories distributed at no or nominal
consideration, and are carried at the lower of cost and current replacement cost. Refer also
to Note 8.
(o)

Receivables

Receivables include accounts receivable and other receivables and are recognised at fair
value less any allowance for impairment losses.
The allowance for impairment losses represents the amount of receivables the GBD
estimates are likely to be uncollectible and are considered doubtful. Analysis of the age
of the receivables, which are past due as at the reporting date, are disclosed in an ageing
schedule under credit risk in Note 16 Financial Instruments. Reconciliation of changes in the
allowance accounts is also presented.
Accounts receivable are generally settled within 30 days.
(p)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Acquisitions
All items of property, plant and equipment with a cost, or other value, equal to or greater
than $10 000 are recognised in the year of acquisition and depreciated as outlined below.
Items of property, plant and equipment below the $10 000 threshold are expensed in the
year of acquisition.
The construction cost of property, plant and equipment includes the cost of materials and
direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads.
Complex Assets
Major items of plant and equipment comprising a number of components that have
different useful lives, are accounted for as separate assets. The components may be
replaced during the useful life of the complex asset.
Subsequent Additional Costs
Costs incurred on property, plant and equipment subsequent to initial acquisition are
capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the originally
assessed performance of the asset will flow to Territory Wildlife Parks in future years.
Where these costs represent separate components of a complex asset, they are accounted
for as separate assets and are separately depreciated over their expected useful lives.
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Construction (Work in Progress)
As part of the Financial Management Framework, the Department of Infrastructure is
responsible for managing general Government capital works projects on a whole of
Government basis. Therefore appropriation for most of Territory Wildlife Parks’ capital works
is provided directly to the Department of Infrastructure and the cost of construction work in
progress is recognised as an asset of the TWP’S. Once completed, capital works assets are
transferred to the entity.
(q)

Revaluations and Impairment

Revaluation of Assets
The entity obtains an independent valuation of its property every three years with the latest
revaluation by Herron Todd White for 30 June 2014 taken to book in 2013-14.The following
classes of non-current assets are re-valued with sufficient regularity to ensure that the
carrying amount of these assets does not differ materially from their fair value at reporting
date:
•

Buildings; and

•

Infrastructure Assets.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arms-length transaction.
Other classes of non-current assets are not subject to revaluation and are measured at cost.
Impairment of Assets
An asset is said to be impaired when the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount.
Non-current physical and intangible entity assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
on an annual basis. If an indicator of impairment exists, the entity determines the asset’s
recoverable amount. The asset’s recoverable amount is determined as the higher of the
asset’s depreciated replacement cost and fair value less costs to sell. Any amount by which
the entity’s carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment
loss.
Impairment losses are recognised in the Comprehensive Operating Statement unless the
asset is carried at a re-valued amount. Where the asset is measured at a re-valued amount,
the impairment loss is offset against the Asset Revaluation Reserve for that class of asset to
the extent that an available balance exists in the Asset Revaluation Reserve.
In certain situations, an impairment loss may subsequently be reversed. Where an
impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in the Comprehensive Operating Statement as income, unless the asset is carried
at a re-valued amount, in which case the impairment reversal results in an increase in the
Asset Revaluation Reserve. Note 14 provides additional information in relation to Asset
Revaluation Reserve.
(r)

Leased Assets

Leases under which Territory Wildlife Parks assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset are classified as finance leases. Other leases are classified as operating
leases. The entity does not have any assets under a finance lease.
Operating Leases
Operating lease payments made at regular intervals throughout the term are expensed
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when the payments are due, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased property.
(s)

Payables

Liabilities for accounts payable and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the
fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received,
whether or not billed to Territory Wildlife Parks. Accounts payable are normally settled
within 30 days.
(t)

Employee Benefits

Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated as a result of employees rendering
services up to the reporting date. These benefits include wages and salaries and recreation
leave. Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, recreation leave and other
employee benefit liabilities that fall due within twelve months of reporting date are
classified as current liabilities and are measured at amounts expected to be paid. Noncurrent employee benefit liabilities that fall due after twelve months of the reporting date
are measured at present value, calculated using the Government long term bond rate.
No provision is made for sick leave, which is non-vesting, as the anticipated pattern of
future sick leave to be taken is less than the entitlement accruing in each reporting period.
Employee benefit expenses are recognised on a net basis in respect of the following
categories:
•

wages and salaries, non-monetary benefits, recreation leave, sick leave and other leave
entitlements; and

•

other types of employee benefits.

As part of the Financial Management Framework, the Central Holding Authority
assumes the long service leave liabilities of Government Business Divisions including Territory
Wildlife Parks, and as such no long service leave liability is recognised in the entity’s financial
statements.
(u)

Superannuation

Employees’ superannuation entitlements are provided through the:
•

Northern Territory Government and Public Authorities Superannuation Scheme
(NTGPASS);

•

Commonwealth Superannuation Scheme (CSS); or

•

non-government employee nominated schemes for those employees commencing on
or after 10 August 1999.

The entity makes superannuation contributions on behalf of its employees to the Central
Holding Authority or non-government employee nominated schemes. Superannuation
liabilities related to Government superannuation schemes are held by the Central Holding
Authority and as such are not recognised in the entity’s financial statements.
(v)

Dividends

The entity has not provided for a dividend.
(w) Commitments
Disclosures in relation to capital and other commitments, including lease commitments are
shown at Note 17.
Commitments are those contracted as at 30 June where the amount of the future
commitment can be reliably measured.
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(x)

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and liabilities
are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument. The entity’s financial instruments include cash and
deposits; receivables; payables; advances received; and deposits held
Exposure to interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, credit risk, price risk and liquidity risk
arise in the normal course of activities. The entity’s investments, loans and placements, and
borrowings are predominantly managed through the NTTC and TIO adopting strategies to
minimise the risk.
Classification of Financial Instruments
AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures requires financial instruments to be classified and
disclosed within specific categories depending on their nature and purpose.
Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
•

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;

•

held-to-maturity investments;

•

loans and receivables; and

•

available-for-sale financial assets.

Financial liabilities are classified into the following categories:
•

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

•

financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Financial Assets or Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial instruments are classified as at FVTPL when the instrument is either held for
trading or is designated as at FVTPL.
An instrument is classified as held for trading if it is:
•

acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
term with an intention of making a profit; or

•

part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

•

a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument.

A financial instrument may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:
•

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

•

the instrument forms part of a group of financial instruments, which is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

•

it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and AASB
139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits the contract to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Loans and Receivables
For details refer to Note 2 (o).
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
Amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method.
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(y)

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The highest and best use takes into account the use of the asset that is physically possible,
legally permissible and financially feasible.
When measuring fair value, the valuation techniques used maximise the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
used to the extent that sufficient relevant and reliable observable inputs are not available for
similar assets/liabilities.
Observable inputs are publicly available data that are relevant to the characteristics of the
assets/liabilities being valued. Observable inputs used by the entity include, but are not
limited to, published sales data for land and general office buildings.
Unobservable inputs are data, assumptions and judgments that are not available publicly,
but are relevant to the characteristics of the assets/liabilities being valued. Such inputs
include internal entity adjustments to observable data to take account of particular and
potentially unique characteristics/functionality of assets/liabilities and assessments of
physical condition and remaining useful life.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the following fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used:
Level 1 – inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 – inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3 – inputs are unobservable.
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3.

INCOME

		

							
							

2014		
$’000		

2013
$’000

Sale of Goods and Services From Ordinary Activities

2 564		

2 154

Community Service Obligations – Note 18			

7 842		

7 915

NT Treasury Interest					

11		

15

Miscellaneous Revenue					

17		

4

							

7 870		

7 934

Total Income					

10 434		

10 088

Other Income:			

				

4.

LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF ASSET 			

Net proceeds from the disposal of non-current assets

-		

-

Less: Carrying value of non-current assets disposed

(5)		

(1)

(Loss) on the disposal of non-current assets			

(5)		

(1)

							

5.

PURCHASES OF GOODS AND SERVICES			

The net (deficit) has been arrived at after charging the following expenses:
Goods and Services Expenses:			
Consultants (1)					

1		

-

Advertising (2) 					

68		

59

Marketing and Promotion (3)				

43		

31

Document Production					

8		

4

Recruitment (4)					

15		

5

Training and Study					

23		

20

Official Duty Fares					

15		

11

Travelling Allowance					

7		

3

Audit and Other Services					

22		

27

Corporate Support by External Agencies			

719		

693

Operating Lease Rental Expense				

20		

17

Repairs and Maintenance					

666		

532

Property Management					

972		

984

Motor Vehicles					

438		

533

Information Technology Expenses				

346		

351

1)

Includes marketing, promotion and IT consultants.

2)

Includes marketing and promotion advertising but does not include recruitment
advertising.

3)

Excludes advertising for marketing and promotion which is incorporated under
Advertising and excludes marketing and promotion consultants’ expenses, which are
incorporated in the consultants’ category.

4)

Includes recruitment-related advertising costs.			
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6.

2014		
$’000		

2013
$’000

CASH AND DEPOSITS			

Cash on Hand					

5		

5

Cash at Bank					

262 		

467

							

267 		

472

Accounts Receivable					

87		

87

Less: Allowance for Impairment Losses			

(9) 		

(3)

							

78		

84

7.

RECEIVABLES

		

Current			

Interest Receivables					

1		

1

GST Receivables					

47		

44

Other Receivables					

66 		

73

Total Receivables					

192 		

202

At cost					

43 		

37

Total Inventories					

43 		

37

8.

INVENTORIES					

General Inventories			
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9.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT		

2014		
$’000		

2013
$’000

			

Buildings 			
At Fair Value 					

38 487		

39 579

Less: Accumulated Depreciation				

(16 016) 		

(23 893)

							

22 471		

15 686

Infrastructure			
At Fair Value					

25 707		

23 929

Less: Accumulated Depreciation				

(12 353) 		

(15 665)

							

13 354		

8 264

Plant and Equipment			
At Cost					

593		

703

Less: Accumulated Depreciation				

(532) 		

(616)

							

61		

87

Computer Hardware			
At Cost					

33		

45

Less: Accumulated Depreciation				

(33)

(45)

							

-		

-

Transport Equipment			
At Cost					

17		

6

Less: Accumulated Depreciation				

(6) 		

(6)

							

11 		

-

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 			

35 897 		

24 037

Property, Plant and Equipment Valuations
An independent valuation of buildings and infrastructure assets was undertaken by Herron
Todd White as at 30 June 2014. Refer to Note 10 Fair Value Measurement of non-financial
assets for additional disclosures.
Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment
Territory Wildlife Parks’ property, plant and equipment assets were assessed for impairment
as at 30 June 2014. No impairment adjustments were required as a result of this review.
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Property, Plant and Equipment Reconciliations
A reconciliation of the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of 2013-14 and
2012-13 is set out below:
2014
Buildings

Infrastructure

Plant &
Equipment

Transport
Equipment

Computer
Hardware

Total

$’000
Carrying Amount
as at 1 July 2013		 15 686

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

8 264

87

-

-

24 037

Additions

-

-

-

-

11

11

Disposals

-

-

(5)

-

-

(5)

Depreciation 		 (1 080)
Additions from
asset transfers
Revaluation Increments
Carrying Amount
as at 30 June 2014
2013

Carrying Amount
as at 1 July 2012
Disposals
Depreciation
Additions from
Asset Transfers

(21)

-

-

(1 802)

873

-

-

-

-

873

6 992

5 791

-

-

-

12 783

22 471

13 354

61

-

11

35 897

Buildings

Infrastructure

Plant &
Equipment

Transport
Equipment

Computer
Hardware

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

16 261

8 738

117

-

-

25 116

-

-

(1)

-

-

(1)

(29)

-

-

(1 759)

(1 026)
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(704)

451
230
							

Carrying Amount
15 686
as at 30 June 2013			

136

(701)

8 264

87

-
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10. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS			
(a)

Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair values of non-financial assets categorised by level of inputs used to compute fair value
are:
2014
		

Level 1
$’000

Level 2		
$’000		

Level 3
$’000

Total Fair Value
$’000

Asset Classes				
Buildings

-

-		

22 471

22 471

Infrastructure

-

-		

13 354

13 354

Total		

-

-		

35 825

35 825

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Levels 2 or 3 during the period.
(b)

Valuation Techniques and Inputs

Valuation techniques used to measure fair value are:
Level 3 Techniques

							
Asset Classes			
Buildings						

Cost

Infrastructure						

Cost

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period
Herron Todd White has provided valuations for the buildings and infrastructure assets. Level
3 fair values were determined by computing their depreciated replacement costs because an
active market does not exist for such facilities.
(c)

Additional Information for Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

(i)

Reconciliation of Recurring Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

							
						

Buildings		
$‘000		

Fair value as at 1 July 2013				

15 686		

Infrastructure
$‘000
8 264

Additions from asset transfers				

873		

-

Depreciation					

(1 080)		

(701)

Gains/losses recognised in other 				
comprehensive income

6 992		

5 791

Fair value as at 30 June 2014				

22 471		

13 354

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

		

Buildings and Infrastructure
Unobservable inputs used in computing the fair value of buildings and infrastructure assets
include the historical cost and the consumed economic benefit for each asset. Given the
large number and varying nature of the assets, it is not practical to compute a relevant
summary measure for unobservable inputs. In respect of sensitivity to fair value to changes
in input value, a higher historical cost results in a higher fair value and greater consumption
of economic benefit lowers fair value.
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2014		
							
$’000		
11. PAYABLES
					

2013
$’000

Accounts Payable

136

67

Accrued Expenses

335

254

		

471

321

12. PROVISIONS			
Current 			
Employee Benefits			
		

Recreation Leave					
Leave Loading 					

393		
98		

372
121

		

Recreation Leave Fares				

1		

-

130 		

126

622 		

619

Other Current Provisions			
Other Provisions (Fringe Benefits, Payroll Tax		
and Superannuation) 					
			
							
Non-Current
Employee Benefits				 			
Recreation Leave					
174 		

194

Total Provisions				

796

813

Balance as at 1 July					

813		

896

Additional Provisions recognised				

90		

80

Reconciliations of Provisions			

Reductions arising from payments			

(107)

(163)

Balance as at 30 June					

796

813

The Territory Wildlife Park employed
118 employees as at 30 June 2014
(77 employees as at 30 June 2013).			

13. DEPOSITS HELD
Current			
Deposits held in gift fund account				

57		

55

Accountable Officer’s Trust Account				

10 		

7

Total Deposits Held					

67 		

62
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2014		
							
$’000		
14. EQUITY			
			

2013
$’000

Capital						
Balance as at 1 July 					

20 878		

20 197

Equity Transfers In - Assets				

873 		

681

Balance as at 30 June					

21 751 		

20 878

Balance as at 1 July					

18 746		

18 746

Increments – Buildings					

6 992		

-

Increments – Infrastructure				

5 791 		

-

Balance as at 30 June					

31 529 		

18 746

Balance as at 1 July					

(16 062)		

(14 208)

(Deficit) for the Period					

(2 128) 		

(1 854)

Balance as at 30 June					

(18 190) 		

(16 062)

Reserves 				
Asset Revaluation Reserve			
The asset revaluation reserve includes the net
revaluation increments and decrements arising
from the revaluation of non-current assets.
Impairment adjustments may also be recognised
in the Asset Revaluation Reserve.

Accumulated Funds					
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15

NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT 			

Reconciliation of Cash			
The total of Territory Wildlife Parks’ cash and deposits recorded in the Balance Sheet is
consistent with that recorded as ‘cash’ in the Cash Flow Statement.		
Reconciliation of Net (Deficit) to Net Cash Used In Operating Activities
Net (Deficit)					

(2 128)		

(1 854)

Non-Cash Items:			
		

Depreciation and Amortisation				

1 802		

1 759

		

Loss on Disposal of Asset				

5		

1

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:			
		

Decrease/(Increase) in Receivables			

10		

(9)

		

(Increase) in Prepayments				

(15)		

(5)

		

(Increase) in Inventories				

(6)		

(12)

		

Increase/(Decrease) in Payables				

150		

(144)

		

(Decrease) in Provision for Employee Benefits		

(21)		

(69)

		

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Provisions 			

Net Cash Used In Operating Activities			

16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

4

(14)

(199)

(347)

		

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments held by
Territory Wildlife Parks include cash and deposits, receivables and payables. Territory Wildlife
Parks has limited exposure to financial risks as discussed below.
(a) Categorisation of Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts of Territory Wildlife Parks financial assets and liabilities by category are
disclosed in the table below.
2014		
$’000		

2013
$’000

Cash and Deposits					

267		

472

Loans and Receivables					

141		

154

							

408		

626

Amortised Cost					

415		

305

							

415		

305

							
							
Financial Assets			

Financial Liabilities			

(b)

Credit Risk

Territory Wildlife Parks has limited credit risk exposure (risk of default). In respect of any
dealings with organisations external to Government, the entity has adopted a policy of only
dealing with credit worthy organisations and obtaining sufficient collateral or other security
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any
allowances for losses, represents the entity’s maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of the value of any collateral or other security obtained.
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Receivables
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure that exposure to bad
debts is not significant. A reconciliation and ageing analysis of receivables is presented
below
Internal Receivables
							
							
Ageing of Receivables			

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Not Overdue					

13		

7

Overdue for less than 30 Days				

-		

-

Overdue for 30 to 60 Days				

-		

-

-

		

-

13 		

7

Overdue for more than 60 Days				
Total Gross Receivables 				

Reconciliation of the Allowance for Impairment Losses			
Allowance for Impairment Losses at the Beginning of
the Reporting Period

-		

-

Decrease in allowance recognised in profit or loss		

-

		

-

Allowance for Impairment Losses at the End of the
Reporting Period			

-

		

-

External Receivables
Ageing of Receivables 		
Not Overdue					

101

117

Overdue for less than 30 Days				

23

20

Overdue for 30 to 60 Days				

3

10

Overdue for more than 60 Days				

10

3

Total Gross Receivables 				

137

150

			
Reconciliation of the Allowance for Impairment Losses			
Allowance for Impairment Losses at the Beginning
of the Reporting Period

3

4

Increase / (Decrease) in allowance recognised in profit or loss

6

(1)

Allowance for Impairment Losses at the End of the
Reporting Period

9

3
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(c)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. Territory Wildlife Parks experiences seasonal fluctuations of its business and it
receives a Community Service Obligation payment (refer to Note 18). Territory Wildlife Parks
liquidity risk includes credit cards which are managed with tight controls and low limits.
Credit card use and limits are reviewed regularly. The Balance Sheet indicates that Territory
Wildlife Parks has a liquidity risk and is reliant on Government guarantee. Territory Wildlife
Parks is currently finalising an alternative operating model which is partly to address liquidity
issues.
The following tables detail the entity’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial assets
and liabilities. It should be noted that these values are undiscounted, and consequently
totals may not reconcile to the carrying amounts presented in the Balance Sheet
Maturity Analysis for Financial Assets and Liabilities
2014

Variable Interest

Non Interest Bearing

Carrying
Amount

$’000

1 Year
$’000

>2 Year
$’000

$’000

262

5

-

267

-

141

-

141

262

146

-

408

57

10

-

67

-

348

-

348

57

358

-

415

Assets
Cash and Deposits
Receivables
Total Financial Assets
Liabilities
Deposits Held
Payables
Total Financial Liabilities

2013

Variable Interest

Non Interest Bearing

Carrying
Amount

1 Year
$’000

>2 Year
$’000

$’000

467

5

-

472

-

154

-

154

467

159

-

626

55

7

-

62

-

243

-

243

55

250

-

305

$’000
Assets
Cash and Deposits
Receivables
Total Financial Assets
Liabilities
Deposits Held
Payables
Total Financial Liabilities
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(d)

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. It comprises interest rate risk, price risk
and currency risk. The primary market risk that the Territory Wildlife Parks is exposed to is
interest rate risk.
i)

Interest Rate Risk

The entity has limited exposure to interest rate risk as all financial assets and financial
liabilities, with the exception of the cash at bank and the Gift Fund held are non-interest
bearing. Interest earned on the Gift Fund is accounted for as both an asset and a liability,
therefore changes to the variable rates of 100 basis points (1%) at reporting date would
have had no effect on the entity’s profit or loss and equity. The exposure to interest rate risk
on the remaining financial assets and financial liabilities is set out in the following table.
				

			
Profit or Loss and Equity

				
				
				
				

100 Basis 100 Basis
Points
Points
Increase Decrease

100 Basis
Points
Increase

2014			

					

100 Basis
Points
Decrease

2013

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Financial Assets – cash at bank

2

(2)

4

(4)

Net Sensitivity		

2

(2)

4

(4)

				

ii)

Price Risk

Territory Wildlife Parks is not exposed to price risk as it does not hold units in unit trusts.
iii)

Currency Risk

Territory Wildlife Parks is not exposed to currency risk as the entity does not hold
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies or transactional currency exposures arising
from purchases in a foreign currency.
(e)

Net Fair Value

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial
statements approximates their respective net fair values. Where differences exist, these are
not material.
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2014			

					

2013

				

Internal		 External

Internal

External

				

$’000		 $’000

$’000		

$’000

17. COMMITMENTS 		
Other Expenditure Commitments							
Other non-cancellable expenditure
commitments not recognised as
liabilities are payable as follows:							
Within one year		

-		

536

-		

469

Later than one year and not
later than five years
				

-

104

-

500

-

640

-

969

								
Non-cancellable Operating Lease Expense
Commitments							
Future operating lease commitments
not recognised as liabilities are payable as follows: 						
Within one year		

- 		

262

-		

304

Later than one year and not
later than five years
				

-

510

-

609

-

772

-

913

18. COMMUNITY SERVICE OBLIGATIONS			
								

2014		
$’000		

2013
$’000

Community Service Obligation received				

7 842		

7 915

The Community Service Obligation covers non commercial activities.			

19. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS
a) Contingent Liabilities
The entity had no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2014 or 30 June 2013.
b) Contingent Assets
The entity had no contingent assets as at 30 June 2014 or 30 June 2013.

20. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE
No events have arisen between the end of the financial year and the date of this report that
require adjustment to, or disclosure in these financial statements.
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21. ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER’S TRUST ACCOUNT
In accordance with section 7 of the Financial Management Act, an Accountable Officer’s
Trust Account has been established for the receipt of money to be held in trust. A summary
of activity is shown below:
Nature of Trust Money		

Opening Balance
1 July 2013
Receipts Payments
$’000
$’000
$’000

Other Money

Closing Balance
30 June 2014
$’000

7

3

-

10

7

3

-

10

						

22. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The entity operates two major parks, which are its reportable segments. Information related
to each reportable segment is set out below:
						
Territory Wildlife
Park
							
2014
2013
$’000
$’000
Business Segments

Alice Springs
Desert Park

Entity

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

5 199

5 149

5 235

4 939

10 434

10 088

(Loss) from Ordinary Activities

(1 647)

(1 461)

(481)

(393)

(2 128)

(1 854)

Assets

17 789

10 813 18 108 13 224

35 897

24 037

Revenue

Unallocated Assets

-

-

-

-

527

721

Unallocated Liabilities

-

-

-

- (1 334)

(1 196)

Property, plant and equipment is allocated to reportable segments. All other assets and
liabilities are not reported by segment.

23. WRITE OFFS, POSTPONEMENTS
		
AND WAIVERS				

2014
$’000

No. of
Trans

2013
$’000

No. of
Trans

Public property written off

5

13

-

-

Irrecoverable amounts payable to the
entity written off

-

-

2

3

5

13

2

3

Write offs, postponements and waivers under
the Financial Management Act				
Represented by: 				

Total written off, postponements and
waivers by Delegates
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Head Office - Alice Springs
Tom Hare Building
Arid Zone Research Institute
Alice Springs NT 0870
08 8951 8250
08 89518290 (fax)
www.parksandwildlife.nt.gov.au
Opening hours: 8am-4.21pm (Mon-Fri)
Darwin Region
Level 2 Goyder Centre
25 Chung Wah Terrace
Palmerston NT 0830
08 8999 4555
08 8999 4558 (fax)
www.parksandwildlife.nt.gov.au
Opening hours: 8am-4.21pm (Mon-Fri)
Katherine Region
32 Giles Street
Katherine NT 0850
08 8973 8888
08 8973 8899 (fax)
www.parksandwildlife.nt.gov.au
Opening hours: 8am-4.21pm (Mon-Fri)
Alice Springs Desert Park
Larapinta Drive
Alice Springs NT 0870
PO Box 1120 Alice Springs NT 0871
08 8951 8788
08 8971 8720 (fax)
asdp@nt.gov.au
www.alicespringsdesertpark.com.au
Opening hours:
Office: 8am-4pm (Mon-Fri)
Park: 7.30am-6pm (7 days)

Territory Wildlife Park
Cox Peninsula Road
Berry Springs NT 0838
PO Box 771 Palmerston NT 0831
08 8988 7200
08 8988 7201 (fax)
twp@nt.gov.au
www.territorywildlifepark.com.au
Opening hours:
Office: 8am-4.21pm (Mon-Fri)
Park: 8.30am-6pm (7 days)
George Brown Darwin Botanic Gardens
Geranium Street
The Gardens
Darwin NT 0820
08 8999 4418
08 8981 1647 (fax)
botgardens.darwin@nt.gov.au
www.parksandwildlife.nt.gov.au/botanic
Opening hours: 7am-7pm

